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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lu Peijun
Mr Luo Chengyu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Guilin (appointed with effect from 25 April 2023)

Mr Chan Kin Man (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Ms Ou Ningxin (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr Chan Kin Man (Chairman)

(appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)
Ms Ou Ningxin (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)
Mr Chen Guilin (appointed with effect from 25 April 2023)
Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman)

Ms Ou Ningxin (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Mr Chen Guilin (appointed with effect from 25 April 2023)

MrHung Wan Shun Stephen (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr Chen Guilin (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2023)
Mr Lun Ruixiang
Ms Ou Ningxin (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022)
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen(resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Tang So Him (appointed with effect from 1 September 2023)
Mr Lo Chi Ho Wilfred (resigned with effect from 1 September 2023)
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr Lun Zhao Ming
Ms Tang So Him (appointed with effect from 1 September 2023)
Mr Lo Chi Ho Wilfred (resigned with effect from 1 September 2023)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

1, Beihuan Lu, Houjiezhen
Dongguan, Guangdong
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Office No. 1907, 19th Floor
Great Eagle Centre

No. 23 Harbour Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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www.huijingholdings.com

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Deacons

As to PRC law:
Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP (Shenzhen)

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Hang Seng Bank

Dongguan Rural Commercial Bank Houjie Branch
ICBC Dongguan Houjie Branch

China Construction Bank Dongguan Houjie Branch

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.huijingholdings.com
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MR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEN2ANALEE

For the year ended 31 December
20184 20194 2020 2022
2018 2019 2020 2022
AEETT ARETTT ARETTL ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
e Revenue 2,238,462 3,605,606 5,153,233 5,309,290 85,893
BREL A& A Profit before tax 937,350 1226,809 1,329,129 1,102,164 (2,806,057)
FEHS L Income tax expense (536,382) (606,798) (588655) (551,768) (27,839)

BREEEAELER Total comprehensive income/
2EME/(FR) BE (loss) for the year attributable

to owners of the parent 401,664 613,795 485,805 279,746 (2,485,306)
R12A31H
As at 31 December

20184 20194 2020 2022 F

2018 2019 2020 ] 2022

ARETT ARETT AREFT : AR¥ETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BELE Total assets 9,972,828 8,617,258 12,738992 15,182,212 12,213,441
BERR Total liabilities (8,884,858) (6,994,634) (8,909,356) (10930837)  (10,894,770)

EmeE Total equity 1,087,970 1622,624 3,829,636 4251375 1,318,671

3R 2022 Annual Report @
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BN SARE Dear Shareholders,

KTAEREXRAFEETZ(UATEBIESE])  Onbehalf of the board of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to
RAMSAIR2ESIEBRBR AR (JARER  as the “Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of Huijing
[ARRDERENB AR VA TEMEIASE  Holdings Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) and

EDEZ202F12A31B2FEEE - its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

EFEXERBBARR ANNUAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

(1) EEKXETBE (1) Significant decline in performance
XEWETERBEEETE  #HE2022 Affected by the continuous downturn in the real estate industry, for the
F1N2ANH FAREBERADNAEAR year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue for the year was
Kesom B BRE—FRERALL TR approximately RMB85.9 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
#49984% - EFMHBAREOBE T - approximately 98.4% respectively, gross profit was approximately
EMEDARBI%  FAFBEEHNBAR RMB6.9 million, gross profit margin was approximately 8.1%, and net loss
#528339B BT ° for the year was approximately RMB2,833.9 million.

N

@ JESIEIRABRAT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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(2)

(1M

HE20202F12A31HB A&EEBHT
BHHEEEOARBNEE TNA
XY TEFE 453,033 F K °

Bt 7 iR O T i JBR h
QNFRBEN—F  AEERBREES
AR®1221348 87T R LR A
WL #196%  F B EE BKI892% - F
BEBRBRAN479% BEBESTEE
KN EE202F12A831BIEEFEHNR
HARR S o

EXEKREZLHE

002F AREEDAERBATAEER
BRTEER UWHMEHFAZL X
IREEMMEEXAER N —E—%
MEI|HBRAOR ZERAEENEZE
M NEHRADBNZLDRE R AT
B RAE S o

(2)

m

As of 31 December 2022, the Group achieved contracted sales of
approximately RMB441.0 million and contracted gross floor area of
approximately 53,033 sg.m..

Financial position under pressure

2022 was a difficult year, the Group's total assets was RMB12,213.4
million, representing a decrease of approximately 19.6% over the
same period last year; the net debt ratio was approximately 89.2%
and the net gearing ratio was approximately 347.9%. The Board did
not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Distinct advantages in business strategies

In 2022, the Group will continue to adhere to the business model of
“focusing on residential development projects, while taking the
urban renewal projects as the core, as well as the cultural and
tourism-healthy living towns and the scientific and innovative
technologies industrial towns as the two wings (LA {¥ % 1 % & =
BER  URTERRZL  NIKESNBEIEZRER),
which constitutes its “one focus, one core, and two wings (— & — 1% /i
)’ blueprint, to enrich the diversity of profit structure and
continuously enhance the core competitiveness and sustainable
development capability of the Company.

3 2022 Annual Report @
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(2)

(3

HWHEHMEXREE—E
BRETEORREIFREL  [ENRE
BHPMERIN  REPMREERE
2 BB ERITE BT =M
REECTNRERA] BHmEHRE—
HEBANTEBS - 2202F K A%
BERBEEBEMAMRTEEEMS -9
{878 B L7 HE A B R B AR 5 7

MAEXBRDESIKSERR

ERARR][ME | EHEE 2 — oAl
EX FRALERTRBEMEERR ER.
BESCEEBDHEEERR  BX
REARRREREEIMHTRE E
REX-FEASERGAMAER -
MEEMBERREL  SHASTRE
BAm = BEEESELS BN
MAltEl Ex-IEHNEBESE
SCEAFR L - A 3T AR AR IR S 40 A ik
FeRFERER - ERLEBEZFR
EWETELBERERNES  REATE
REMBHX BT R RERI - BV E
KA ERARER -

(2)

(3)

Going a step further in urban renewal

Since the State proposed in the 14th Five-Year Plan to “accelerate
the transformation of urban development, coordinate urban
planning and construction management, implement urban renewal
actions, and promote the optimisation of urban spatial structure and
quality improvement”, urban renewal is a major industry trend. By
the end of 2022, the Group has obtained the qualifications of
preparatory services providers for nine projects and is in the process
of obtaining the qualifications of preparatory services providers for
the other nine projects.

Regional economic development driven by the science
and technology industry

As one of the “two wings” of the Company’s business strategy, the
science and innovation industry also achieved a breakthrough
development during the year: Huijing - Bay Area 5G Smart
Manufacturing Port (E & « /& [2 5G 2 %58 ) will help enterprises to
upgrade and transform, and open a new chapter for a smart factory
in Dongguan Eco-environmental Park; Huijing Industry « Zhihui
Valley (E & E 2 - %5 [ &) will build a comprehensive science and
innovation park, and create a science and innovation ecosphere
integrating the transformation of scientific and technological
achievements, high-end talent apartments, joint office space and
commercial support carriers; Huijing « Jiangbian Ancient Village
project CES - /T2 &5 /1 B ) will lead a new style of civilisation,
and will be developed into a tourism resort project with
characteristics of revitalisation of villages in Dongguan. Through the
advantages accumulated in the real estate industry over the years,
Huijing is promoting the industrialisation of the research results of
artificial intelligence and technological innovation, helping the
construction of innovative industrial ecosystems.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

RERK  FHETSEEARISEEN
AEERERRMRE  LEXNER TR
R ERRERME I OEEULG - REXR
R—FHEREF AEEKEEEINER
WRHNMEERER LESRERERET
M=BBEER -

HE202F12A318  REBER2E 11 EH
TAREAEHEEMEED R4+ +
MR EEEA3112656 F K- BE
BREHIHEEEAEENZELERIRE
EM G EHREBRERE  ERERDE -

e NRABRRESERC U228
R -REE AEEP 2BRAFUALGE
EERANIFBABRROHE -

BEAMENBREELE  BRMERTE
BHEME - AZBRMBEES BHE 20
EREE ISR - FREEERERT  HEE
HEFTAEAR o

ESEKEFSTE
fRint

20242 A26H

Going forward, the real estate market will continue to focus on the keynote
of “stability” and the Group will adhere to the strategic positioning of
“penetrating into Dongguan, maintaining foothold in the Greater Bay Area,
and sustaining coverage of the Southern, Central and Eastern China areas
(FMRZE - URARER MBEM FEPRNRERMME). Looking
forward to the coming year and even the next year, the Group will
continue to focus on property development projects in the Southern China
region, especially the Three-old Transformation projects in Dongguan,
Guangdong Province.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group owned a total of 24 real estate projects
and 4 parcels of land in 11 cities across the country, with a total gross floor
area of the land reserves of approximately 3,112,656 sg.m.. The high-quality
and sufficient land reserves will ensure the Group’s sustainable
development, extend the depth of the Group's brand and refine the quality
of its products.

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders, investors, customers that we
cooperate with, colleagues and the community for their support.

Although the road ahead faces challenges, we strive for self-improvement
and face challenges head-on. As long as we firmly believe and unite, we
can definitely overcome obstacles. We hope we can continue to working
together and forge ahead on a new journey.

Lun Ruixiang
Board Chairman of Huijing
26 February 2024

3 2022 Annual Report @
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBHEEATREZBLENEZMEKITS
KETINFREFAENES - A RBUT G
BESEBERY  AEERINBRREE
HoERIEWE] [BEE] [BEHIM
[ZEBJBEEZE UWRERHEMSRIERFIRM
FERREER o

EEHNEENMBRERET  AREREE
RENERED BERIVEANER  FHE
o MRER ERRERITSIBENTIN
o BBERFIAEEHEREEER A
WHEHBZL  NIRFEEMMAEXRE
BRINI—E-—EMBIXZBRE - ABORT
BRI AR BN OHETE N RAIFHEEREN

As a major part of the macro economy in China, the real estate industry has
experienced a deeply transformative adjustment in the year of 2022. The
Chinese government will continue to adhere to the keynote of its policy
that “houses are for living in, not for speculative investment”, and to adopt
city-specific measures (B{ETK B HEER) to achieve stability on the
three fronts (=#8) of land prices (B2#B{&), housing prices (BF &) and
expectations (1% T8 #1), with a view to fostering a positive cycle and
healthy development of the real estate market.

Under the new economic and policy environment, the Group has
maintained a steady momentum of development that revolves around
establishing, cultivating and expanding its foothold and presence in the
Greater Bay area, Dongguan and the high value-added cities in the
Southern, Central and Eastern China areas respectively (37 & X/E[&E » &
MR - MmRER EPREIEFIEEIMNT). As part of its “one
focus, one core, and two wings (— & — 1% M £ )" blueprint, the Group has
maintained the business model of focusing primarily on residential
development projects with urban renewal projects at its core on the one
hand, and the cultural and medical tourism living towns and scientific and
innovative technologies industrial towns as its two wings on the other (A
EERBEBL/ILEL  UHHEH/ZL XIKEEMBEIER
&% &), continuing its relentless effort to bolster the Group's core
competitiveness and capacity for sustainable development.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REBNPAZEZREYENEE  HXRE
WEYERE - ARNZEIFEARLME ([
B EHETEERKLERETFNEEY
ZCHE20NFNANBILFE  AEEK
BBRANARKSGIBEL AL TRELY
98.4% °

BHHE

HE2F1N2ANAL AEEBERAED
EHBNANHERNABARBI0BET
BHE2021F12A31HIEEEBETNEY
945%: R(NVAHLBEEEERB((BEEE]D
4953033 F A K ®E = 2021F12A318 1
ZAHHEEEEERE TP 4994.6% o

MEHEE

HE202F12A318  WEHEWALEEFR
LE TR 98 7% EH AREEI B EIT - (5
EBEBRRAAL04% - BLZ=2022F12A31H -
AEBEEREHEREEMBEL 15997 F
FAR B FRBAZBEEMBETRLY
979% - EREMEHENMEL FHEE
([FHEEBDHNABFEHKARK4318T
[ LE & 49 38.2% ©

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties and, to a
lesser extent, lease of investment properties. Under the continuing impact
of the overall unfavourable business environment of the People’s Republic
of China’s ("PRC") real estate industry, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB85.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 98.4%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2022, including those of joint ventures,
the Group recorded (i) contracted sales of approximately RMB441.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 94.5% compared to the year
ended 31 December 2021, and (ii) contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) sold
of approximately 53,033 sq.m., representing a decrease of approximately
94.6% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue from sales of
properties recorded a year-on-year decrease of approximately 98.7% to
approximately RMB69.1 million, which accounted for approximately 80.4%
of the total revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group recognised total GFA sold of approximately 15,997 sq.m., which
represented a decrease of approximately 97.9% as compared to the same
period in 2021. The average selling price (“ASP") of the properties
recognised as property sales was approximately RMB4,318 per sq.m.,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 38.2%.

3 2022 Annual Report @
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TRINTEZ2022F 12831 BIEEEIBEM  The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold of each

REHEREMEEEE®E district as at 31 December 2022:
HERR
ERRE #EXEER E2ER 2 HER-R
BEER ARk FHIEE WABZEE
Percentage Percentage
of of total
Recognised recognised  Recognised  Recognised recognised
Location GFA GFA ASP revenue revenue
ARET/

FR 9 FAK  AR®TRT %
sq.m. ! RMB/sg.m. RMB'000 %
s Dongguan 4,018 25.1% 9570 38,450 55.7%
AR Heyuan 7,793 48.7% 1,052 8,195 11.9%
&R Hefei 3,658 22.9% 7,272 26,602 38.5%
&5 Hengyang (827) -5.2% 8,143 (6,736) -9.8%
D Chengdu 1355 8.5% 1,899 2,559 3.7%
&t Total 15997 100% 4318 69,070 100%

BB KRB B BB TR TE Particulars of projects and land parcels are set out in the following table:

HE
BEER ARG
458 (F5%) TUEE HE ]
i) 323 : (1) REN% BEER BEER AREr  BLAE
The Group's Saleable GFA Total estimate
equity (sqm)  Investment  Unsaleable GFAforfuture Total  Attributable

Name of Project interest GFASold (Note 1) property development  consideration*  consideration Land cost

(sgm)
WEER % 100% 4309 7775 - 49257 - 559891 559891 1,144
Huijing Riverside Villa Dongguan
BRER &R % 100% 32871 - - 5276 - 80059 80059 20987
Hujing Riverside Vila « Perfection Dongguan
Sl R 100% 22095 3428 - HM - 184600 184600 6929
Royal Spring Hill Dongguan
LIES % 100% 13653 557 - 24566 - 91,79% 91,7% 6170
City Valley Dongguan
ERAHRL = 100% 121675 435 15329 28659 - B0 21031 13591
Huijing City Centre Dongguan
thET R 100% 50200 8308 - 27168 - 102639 102639 909
Century Gemini Dongguan
B2 % 100% - - 25780 - - 102639 102639 909
Huijing City Dongguan

@ TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



BEEEZ AR
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e
BEER ARER
(EH%) FUHE fhitd
il 353 (1) RENZ BEEE BEER BREr  EERE
The Group's Saleable GFA Total estimate
equity (sqm)  Investment Unsaleable  GFA for future Total Attributable
Name of Project interest (Note 1) property development  consideration*  consideration Land cost
T1) %171
hAZR R 100% 62590 4770 - 11670 - 80097 80097 10135
Central Palace Dongguan
RN R 100% 15447 0 - 2745 - 105260 105,60 55708
Fenghua Mansion Dongguan
EREE - ERERERML Rz 100% 561 9880 - - - 179899 1798%9 -
Huijing Group — Huing Global Centre  Dongguan
Baagups () E 100% - - - - - B0 3701 -
Houjie Town Baotun Village Area (Note ) Dongguan
HELER () EE 100% - - - - - 250,154 2959154 -
Hongmei Hongwuwo (Note 3) Dongguan
BE=RRE(3) EE 100% - - - - - 186,300 186300 -
Qingxi Sanzhong Area (ote 3) Dongguan
A A S E 100% - - - - - 115075 115075 -
Shatian Renzhou Area (Note 3) Dongguan
ESH R 100% 180785 - - 35,24 - 186,131 18131 816
Bund No8 Heyuan
NEEER TR 100% 377806 318291 - 15413 - T4T 084 747084 9094
Nine Miles Bay Heyuan
RIEB(H7) TR 100% - - - - 530,07 490517 490517 9208
Dongjiang River Galleries (a portion off ~ Heyuan
aEERADHL 2 100% 141,163 66297 8121 69960 - 18723 1873 5054
Hefei Hujing City Centre Hefei
ERES « BRELURNE &k 100% 8979 85,049 - 7441 11055% 33083 330283 2905
Huijing Yanhu International Resort Hengyang
RE R 80% - 6155 - 20%% - 268977 21518 31804
Xingfu District Pinghu
EAE M 90% - 266456 - 61781 - 418600 376,740 12753
Yonghe District Chenzhou
Rl Gl 100% - 333383 - 9813 - 658200 658,200 19179
Jieyou District Xuzhou
EEER filE 40% - 87401 - 2679 - 38184 152737 42389
Feili Palace Xichang
EhRe i 51% 144131 8348 - 8053 - 26421 120575 14127
Yongjinlan Bay Chengdu
HRER ] 51% - 451 - 331 - nan 35841 16136
Royal View Peak Chengdu

3R 2022 Annual Report @
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#E
REOR AR
A58 (¥5%) FUEE CHE
L3 (W) RESZ  BEER @ BEER AR EERE
The Group's Saleable GFA Total estimate
equity (sq.m.) Investment Unsaleable  GFA for future Total  Attributable
Name of Project interest GFA Sold (Note 1) property GFA  development  consideration® consideration Land cost
(F5%)
BERER R 51% 577% 2583 - 18995 - 114898 5659 11811
Royal View Palace Chengdu
BREL R 51% 4375 5098 - 3878 - 107545 54848 16976
Royal View Riverside Chengdu
B &R 1% 2048 41387 63505 BEY - 578816 251% 16669
The Tst Mansion Fuyang
ERZRERTL &Y 49% 131354 100588 - 64672 - 826040 404760 27849
Huijing Global Centre Changsha
Eh 2447850 1474353 188,735 677558 1638303 7797854 6508915 3789
Total

* REWRIEE ARt E A * Refer to the cost of land which the project company acquired

Ktz - Notes:

1) FE T ERAEERYE NI IEREEE - 1. Saleable/leasable GFA refers to the internal floor area of a property, which has
MO EERT AR © () fH 7 E 0 2 a0 El been derived from the relevant (i) pre-sale permit; (i) floor area prediction
DRGEETEESTE  NABEREEN report (55 EE [ 18 78 I ¥ & ), where a pre-sale permit is not available for the
e - AU R R R E A ke di k. whole or a part of a property; and/or (iii) relevant development indicators
BEHFUBZ TEEEABEEARSE  BlA approved by the relevant authority responsible for urban and rural planning
WAPIR B S I EM AR ERE S A or the Group's internal records, where neither a pre-sale permit nor floor area
EEAIPRLEEE - prediction report is available for the whole or a part of the development.

2. EEEE TN TEEAmBE T~ A 2. The expected GFA is not available for Houjie Town Baotun Village Area as the
BERASN TS E - BEE—F latest land planning remains subject to approval. For further details, please
g =28 A NG BEA20199F12 A31 H refer to the subsection under the Company's prospectus dated 31 December
MBI ER ([BIESR]) FEFEEER 2019 (the "Prospectus”) headed “Compliance with Laws and Regulations —
_BRATABRSENH —OREE T ES Historical Non-compliance Incidents - (A) Delay in Commencement and/or
BETAMIETHRANERTEESH TR % completion of construction within the prescribed period as stipulated in the
W —4 o relevant land grant contracts’.

3. R20202F 128318 BEE=-hEE it 3 As at 31 December 2022, the land in Qingxi Sanzhong Area, Hongmei
BEEESEBNEEN TSR A TERS - Hongwuwo and Shatian Renzhou Area was zoned for industrial use, and the
BEESE (BEwErR) BAEEENE current information (including plot ratio) is not relevant for our Group’s
B-BAHE—SHE SR BRERIE purpose. For further details, please refer to the subsection under the
& G | TE T - Prospectus headed “Business - Land reserves".

4. o7 RESHMRE b At 4 Century Gemini and Huijing City are situated on the same parcel of land and

BREE B EAE

therefore share the same site area.
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Investment properties

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total GFA of approximately
188,735 sq.m. (leasable area of approximately 43,007 sq.m.) with rental
income of approximately RMB8.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Land reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has land reserves amounting to
approximately 3,112,656 sq.m., with 24 projects and 4 parcels of land
located in 11 cities in the Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta Urban
Cluster, the Mid-Stream Urban Cluster and the Chengdu-Chongging Urban
Cluster.

The following table sets out the GFA of the Group's land reserves by
geographical locations as at 31 December 2022:

1h+ b fEE

T i EE BMEBREME

BEEMEE Aok

Percentage of

Total land total land

Location reserve GFA reserve GFA

(sgm.) (%)

(FFFHK) (%)

= Dongguan 39,746 1.3%
AR Heyuan 850,998 27.3%
=i Hefei 66,297 2.1%
765 Hengyang 1,190,645 38.3%
88 Pinghu 61,525 2.0%
BB Chenzhou 266,456 8.6%
wmM Xuzhou 333,383 10.7%
me Xichang 87,401 2.8%
D Chengdu 74,230 2.4%
BI5 Fuyang 41,387 1.3%
& Changsha 100,588 3.2%
&5t Total 3,112,656 100%
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—ENEER ([ZEXEEE DM#EEW T« The progress of the Three-old Transformation Schemes (the “Three-old
Transformation Schemes”) was as follows:

BARGEE LA ZEB B NG E]
FRETZENEER - BRIERER
EMBEARABRBREAENCREMEARE
B B EE T 1+NAEE T
M E)RBLE BEERRBEIEE L
HFTEREW RN T FERE - RE
RWBW SN HEEE  FEHAQF
1R 2024 F E—FEEB TR LA
RERE - TEETRT A EEA367222F 5K ©

FRPIFTEF R - ZIEE BN HEFIA 8%
FRET—ESCEER - ARIEB TR
#EFIERERE H T 2= /HRE (2020
F-20355F) WEEIA - BT B R
BEE BEEBNHEBIEFTKAEE A
1F o RARFEFTATILBAT TIERAK % -
PEPIRTE A IR B3k T 5 T HE AR R 2024
FE—FEMIE - %EB BN EE
B14910F 5K » TERTET A HE1E 434,288
FFHAK o

DHFRMAE BB RUEF A B
FRETH —ENGEIER c ZEBMR
YD HIE BEHEEL77321 F T K e
BRIZEMEEEE A BBENLH
FAEMEAMIEXA  AFTRERE
& A270625F HK - ZEEBR=EXK
EHEEDR2021FE7AEK BRIE ©
IR & - IEEHEERER -

Project Zhangmutou Baoshan Area: The Three-old Transformation
Schemes for this project is carried out on a Collaborative Basis
between Villages and Enterprises. Currently, the project has secured
the approval regarding the “Overall Implementation Plan for the
Commercial and Residential Transformation Unit 1+N in Baoshan
Area, Zhangmutou Town, Dongguan City, and will subsequently
apply to deregister the current land title and be issued a new land
use right. It is expected that the Company will obtain the new land
use right certificate before the first quarter of 2024 following the
relocation of residents and the payment of land premium. The
expected plot ratio accountable GFA was 367,222 sq.m..

Humen Xinwan Area: The Three-old Transformation Schemes for this
project is carried out on the Right Owners Self-Redevelopment basis.
As the project is located in Humen area, which is within the territorial
spatial planning of Guangdong Province (2020-2035), the urban
renewal procedure is suspended until the completion of the
planning by relevant government authorities. The Company
anticipates that the urban renewal procedure of Humen Xinwan
Area will resume in the first quarter of 2024 following completion of
the aforesaid government work. The total site area of this project is
14,910 sgq.m. with an expected plot ratio accountable GFA of 34,288
sg.m..

Shatian Renzhou Area: The Three-old Transformation Schemes for
this project is carried out on the Right Owners Self-Transformation
basis. The project is located in Shatian town with a total site area of
approximately 77,321 sq.m. The Three-old Transformation was
currently completed and the land used for the project was identified
as M3 industrial land, with an expected total GFA of 270,625 sq.m..
The Three-old Transformation Schemes for this project was
completed in July 2021. It currently finished the relevant land supply
procedures and is under the progress of construction.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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4.

The Company had entered into nine agreements as preparatory
services providers with relevant parties. The relevant projects are all
located in Dongguan city carrying out preparatory services and have
a total site area of 2,229,500 sq.m.. The Three-old Transformation
Schemes for the relevant projects is expected to be carried out on
the Open Invitation for Implementing Entities basis. The details of
the projects are as follows:

1HH wE 48 {1 Hh T 78

Project Location Total site area
(FF7K)

(sq.m.)

A el B4 REETH i el 42 323,000

Xie Gang Li Village Xiegang town, Dongguan city

DHASEENE(—H) REmAPHE 294,400

Shatian Al Smart Town (First Phase) Shatian town, Dongguan city

dAE REMRAE 255,300

Qishi New South Qishi town, Dongguan city

I Ex REMAEILE 207,800

Cha Shan Shang Yuan Chashan town, Dongguan city

BREE REMEEHE 161,300

Qingxi Qingxia Qingxi town, Dongguan city

RILIKEA & REMEILE 105,700

Chashan Waterworks Area Chashan town, Dongguan city

BB R REMEIHBA R 210,000

Wanjiang Gonglian Area Wanjiang Gonglian area, Dongguan city

HIGHERR & R M tkigE 485,300

Hongmei Hongwuwo Area Hongmei town, Dongguan City

LA HENE R £ EA 186,700

Hengli, Wangniudun Wangniudun town, Dongguan City

&t 2,229,500

Total
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Overall performance

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB85.9 million, which represented a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 98.4%. Gross profit was approximately RMB6.9 million,
which represented a year-on-year decrease of approximately 99.6%. Gross
profit margin was approximately 8.1%, which represented a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 23.3 percentage points. For the year ended 31
December 2022, loss for the year was approximately RMB2,833.9 million, as
compared to a profit for the year of RMB550.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2022, loss attributable to
owners of the parent was approximately RMB2,452.7 million, while a profit
attributable to owners of the parent was recorded at RMB256.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Revenue

Revenue decreased from approximately RMB5,309.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB85.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which represented a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 98.4%. The GFA delivered decreased from 758,749 sq.m. for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to 15,997 sq.m. for year ended 31
December 2022, which represented a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 97.9%, while the ASP decreased from RMB6,992 per sq.m. to
RMB4,318 per sgq.m. mainly as a result of a fall in the number of projects
delivered in 2022 and a drop in the unit price under the influence of the
market environment.

Cost of sales

Corresponding to the steep decline in revenue, the cost of sales decreased
accordingly from approximately RMB3,642.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB79.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, which resulted from a significant decrease in the GFA
delivered in 2022 as compared to the same period in 2021.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit decreased from approximately RMB1,666.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB6.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, with gross profit margin being approximately
31.4% and 8.1%, respectively. The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly due to the regional portfolio of property delivery and the relatively
lower average selling price of the properties in 2022.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased from approximately RMB124.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB106.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such decrease was mainly due to (i)
the decrease of gain on disposal of subsidiaries by approximately RMB82.4
million, partially offset by (ii) the increase in gain on early redemption of
senior notes of approximately RMB54.5 million; and (ijii) the increase in bank
interest income of approximately RMB10.5 million.

Fair Value (Losses)/Gains on Investment Properties

The fair value gains on investment properties of approximately RMB170.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 turned into a loss of
approximately RMB245.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The change was primarily attributable to the drop in the valuation of
investment properties under the influence of the overall real estate market
environment.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from approximately RMB123.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB44.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such decrease mainly arises
from the decrease of approximately RMB39.6 million of sales agents
expenses and approximately RMB 27.1 million of marketing expenses as at
2022 respectively as compared to the same period in 2021, as a result of
the decline of contracted sales and the optimization of the Group's cost
and expense structure, which led to the Group's reduction of its marketing
expenses.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from RMB472.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB305.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. Such decrease was primarily due to (i) the decrease of
approximately RMB66.9 million in legal and professional fees for the year
ended 31 December 2022 compared to the same period in 2021; (ii) the
decrease of approximately RMB25.8 million in labour cost compared to the
same period in 2021; (jii) the decrease of approximately RMB23.5 million in
business entertainment expenses compared to the same period in 2021,
and (iv) the decrease of approximately RMB13.1 million in share option
expenses compared to the same period in 2021.
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Impairment of trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has provisioned the loss
allowance of approximately RMB44.4 million for trade and other receivables
based on the expected credit loss model (for the year ended 31 December
20217: Nil).

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has provisioned the
impairment of approximately RMB1,857.9 million for inventory impairment
based on the net realisable value of inventory (for the year ended 31
December 2021: Nil).

Remeasurement of financial guarantee contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has provisioned loss
allowance of approximately RMB8.8 million for financial guarantee
contracts based on the expected credit loss model (for the year ended 31
December 2021: Nil).

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased from RMB129.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to RMB217.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such increase was primarily due to (i) the provision for litigation-
related contingent liabilities of approximately RMB11.3 million; (ii) the
increase in fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately RMB43.7 million; and (iii) the decrease of exchange
loss of approximate RMB7.2 million.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures decreased from a share of
profits of approximately RMB20.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to a share of profits of approximately RMB4.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was primarily due to the decrease in the
revenue generated from the property delivery of the joint venture located
in Hunan in 2022.

Finance Costs

Finance cost increased from approximately RMB150.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB199.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was primarily due to the increase in the
average balance of bank and other borrowing.

JESIEIRABRAT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB551.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB27.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, with effective income tax rate of
approximately 50.1% and -1.0% for the respective year. The decrease in
effective income tax rate was primarily due to a turn from a profit before
tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 to a loss before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Net (Loss)/Profit and Net (Loss)/Profit Margin

There was a net loss of approximately RMB2,833.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared to the net profit of approximately
RMB550.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The net profit
margin turned from approximately 10.4% for the year ended 31 December
2021 into a net loss margin of approximately 3,299.3% for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The turn from net profit to net loss was primarily attributable to the
decrease in gross profit by 99.6%, the increase of other expenses by 67.5%
and the decrease in the fair value of investment properties by 244.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Looking back to 2022, the real estate industry underwent significant
changes. It was a difficult year, with the housing market facing softened
demand. Despite the policies issued to support the real estate market, the
overall market environment and financing conditions remained
challenging for most real estate enterprises.

Looking ahead to the coming year or even next year, the real estate
industry may still face a demand and financing pressure. In view of such, it
is anticipated that stimulating policies to improve the general macro
economy and the real estate market will likely continue to be issued. It is
also expected that the consumer confidence and market sentiment can be
restored at some point, taking into account the time needed for the
relevant policies to take effect. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
implement measures to improve its operational efficiency and achieve its
business objectives.
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The Group is principally engaged in the business of property development
in China, and going forward, the Group will continue to focus on property
development projects in the Southern China region, especially the Three-
old Transformation projects in Dongguan, Guangdong Province. Taking
into account the policy about ensuring timely deliveries of pre-sold
housing and the current market conditions, the Group will continue to
focus on:

(i) the completion and delivery of its property projects, including
working with different partners;

(i) implementing measures to accelerate the sale of properties under
development and completed properties; and

(i) consolidating resources to optimize its operations and reducing
expenses and capital expenditures.

On the other hand, the Group has been facing financing pressure from
lenders and creditors and is in the process of negotiating with lenders and
creditors. The Group will continue to engage in proactive and constructive
dialogue and maintain a positive momentum with the lenders and
creditors with a view to working out solutions as soon as practical.

Finally, the Group remains optimistic and hopeful about the future, and
believe that through the efforts of all employees, the Group will overcome
the current difficult conditions. Accordingly, the Group would like to
express its sincere gratitude to the Company’s shareholders, investors,
partners, customers and employees.
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The Group operated in a capital-intensive industry and has funded its
growth primarily through cash generated from operations including
proceeds from the sale of its properties, debt financing and capital
contributions from shareholders. The Group's cash requirements relate
primarily to acquisitions of lands, properties development, debt repayment,
and clearance of all applicable taxes for projects developed.

Going forward, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will be
satisfied by cash generated from its operating activities, banking facilities
available to us, and the net proceeds received from the Company’s global
initial public offering (the “Global Offering”) and issuing notes.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB78.3 million as compared to approximately RMB2,702.4
million as at 31 December 2021. The decrease was primarily due to
substantial decrease in proceeds from sales of properties. Substantially all
of the Group’s cash and bank balance are denominated in RMB.

The Group's net current assets were approximately RMB3,638.7 million and
RMB89.8 million as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively. The
decrease in net current assets was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease of
cash and bank balances of approximately RMB2,624.2 million as at 31
December 2022, (ii) the decrease in prepaid land lease payments of
approximately RMB732.1 million; and (iii) the decrease of prepayment,
other receivables and deposits of approximately RMB970.6 million as at 31
December 2022; being partially offset by (i) the increase in other
receivables and deposits of approximately RMB284.3 million; (ii) the net
increase in current portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of approximately RMB186.6 million as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's borrowings of RMB1,661.5 million
(2021: RMB1,068.1 million) were borrowings with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had banking facilities in the total
amount of RMB10,080.0 million, of which approximately RMB1,335.2
million, representing 13.2% has been utilized.
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Key financial ratios

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's net gearing ratio (calculated as the
total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and bank balances divided
by total equity) was approximately 347.9%, which represented an increase
of 716.3% as compared to approximately 42.6% as at 31 December 2021.
The increase was primarily attributable to the significant decrease of
approximately 69.0% in the balance of total equity as at 31 December
2022.

The Group's current ratio was calculated based on its total current assets
divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates and
remained relatively stable at 1.4 times and 1.1 times as at 31 December
2021 and 2022.

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group's revenue and expenditure are denominated
in RMB. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not entered into any
hedging transactions. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are primarily affected by
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group manages its
interest rate risk by closely monitoring the trend of interest rate fluctuation
and its impact on the Group's interest rate risk exposure, as well as
regulating the debt portfolio of the Group.

Pledge of assets

The Group’s bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 with
carrying amounts of RMB3,614.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB3,292.5
million), RMB248.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB229.2 million) and
RMBO million (31 December 2021: RMB74.8 million) denominated in RMB,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars, respectively, out of which
RMB3,268.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB3,292.5 million) were secured
by certain land held for development for sale, equity interests in certain
subsidiaries, properties under development, investment properties, right of
rental income and completed properties held for sale of the Group.
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BAREE Capital commitments
R202F 128318 REBCEFTOBEREE  Asat 31 December 2022, the Group had commitments that are contracted
R YRS AENT but not provided for in respect of property development expenditure as
follows:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2022 F 2021 %
2022 2021
(AR®TRr) (ARETT)
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
EHENEES 2 Contracted, but not provided for:
FREER Y Properties under development 2,379,630 1,691,648
BB Investment properties under construction 313,829 168,640
FERKEEERBERE b Purchase of land through acquisition of
assets and liabilities 480,560 578,040
| Total 3,174,019 2,438,328
MBEEREIAEE Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities

R202F 124318 NEBMPEERLE  As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total financial guarantees are as
UM follows:

M12A31H

As at 31 December
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
(AR¥TR) (ARETT)
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)

BAAEBYE 2 EPIRED Guarantees given to banks in connection with
AR BB R ERIT IR mortgage facilities provided to customers of

the Group's properties 2,956,845 3,588,717

REERE TRTAANEBEMELENDE  The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted

IYEZELPREMITBRERMEER B by certain banks to the customers of the Group's completed properties

BRARTZHEDT  MEFPHEXREELE - Bl heldforsale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case

AEBEEEEEBNRPRANIRITAHRMERE  of default on mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is

RIBAR® KA R B R ETRK - responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with
any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted customers to
those banks.
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Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the
banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage
repayments by these customers, the banks are entitled to take over the
legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.
The Group's guarantee period starts from the start of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the customers take possession of the relevant
properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in respect of
the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to customers of
the Group’s completed properties held for sale. In the opinion of the
Directors that in case of default on payments, the net realisable value of
the related properties would be sufficient to repay the outstanding
mortgage loans principals together with any accrued interest and penalties
and accordingly, no financial liability has been made in connection with
these guarantees.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not carry out any material
acquisitions or disposals of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Significant investment held

As at 31 December 2022, there was no significant investment held by the
Group.

Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 388 employees (for the
year ended 31 December 2021: 545). Total expenditure on salary and
welfare of the Group'’s employees for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately RMB134.3 million (2021: approximately
RMB221.2 million). The Group has adopted a system of determining the
remuneration of employees based on employees qualification, experience,
position and seniority. In general, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to employees, which include basic salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonus, performance-based rewards and year-end
bonus. The Group operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group's operations, particulars of which will be set out in
the section headed “Share Option Schemes” of the Company’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group also pays social
security insurance for the Group's employees, including social insurance
and housing funds. In terms of employee training, the Group provides
consistent and systematic training to employees based on their positions
and expertise, in order to enhance their expertise in real estate and their
related fields.
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Events After the Reporting Period

(a)

*

On 29 November 2023, the Company entered into an agreement to
acquire the remaining equity interest of Sincere Partner Holdings
Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
from Mr Chen Jinxuan, a director and substantial shareholder of
Sincere Partner Holdings Company Limited. Upon completion,
Sincere Partner Holdings Company Limited will become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 November 2023 and 11
December 2023.

On 23 November 2023, the Company entered into a letter of intent
of strategic cooperation with Dongguan Communications
Investment Property Co., Ltd.* (R R B X BFR A F))
(“Dongguan Communications Investment”). Pursuant to the letter of
intent, the Company and Dongguan Communications Investment
will explore and study on the feasibility of cooperation, including,
but not limited to, (i) cooperation related to equity interest and
capital contribution in relation to individual projects; and (ii)
cooperation related to equity interest of the Company, subject to
the entering into of definitive agreement(s) by the parties. Details are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2023.

For identification purpose only
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TREFPR202F 12 A3 BAEBE L REE  The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the Group's land

EMEIBE DM ELEEERLE reserves by property project as at 31 December 2022:
R202%12831BEAT R202E12A31BEE
Completed as at 31 December 2022 Under development as at 31 December 2022
AftLE g/ st
FUHE E= HE THE FU#E AREE
BEAE 2 BEEE 00 BEEE 0 REME  BEER 0 BEER 0 REWE  AR%ER
Total
GFA Saleable/ estimate GFA
Unsaleable availablefor  Investment leaseable  Unsaleable  Investment for future
Property Type GFA GFAsold sale/lease property GFA property  development Total GFA
(F55) (FpR) (AR (F5R) (Frx)  (FAR) (Fk)  (FAK)
( (sqm) (sqm) ) (sq.m)
rENEER Residential property project
S Dongguan 162,706 938585 35411 - - - - - 1136712
AR Heyuan 100,715 558591 BEWA)] - 285060 59942 - 532707 1570246
i Pinghu - - - - 61525 29% - - 84521
M Chenzhou - - - - 266456 61,781 - - 38237
Gl Xuzhou - - - - 333383 9813 - - 343,19
[ Yichang - - - - 87401 2679 - - 90,080
A Chengdu 30926 256242 33999 - 4021 331 - - 364,719
i) Subtotal 294347 1753418 102651 - 1074056 160532 - 532,707 391771
EEESE Integrated property project
(1] Dongguan 28659 121675 4305 - - - - - 154659
AR Hefei 7415 141163 4777 - 61,520 62,545 - - 27740
& (hangsha 64672 131354 100,588 - - - - - 29,614
&l Fuyang 3191 210448 10532 - 30855 7 - - 283,783
g Subtotal 132667 604,640 120022 - 92375 62572 - - 1012476
RENE Investment property
Ed Dongguan - - - 4,109 - - - - 41109
Gl Hefe - - - - - - 84121 - 84121
gl Fuyeng - - - - - - 63505 - 63505
It Subtotal - - - 41109 - - 147626 - 168735
RBRETEN Property project promoting
VLY specific industry
&R Hengyang 12867 8979 3680 - 81,369 14574 - 1,105.5% 1307878
i) Subtotal 12867 89792 3680 - 81369 14574 - 1,105,59% 1307878
£t Total 439881 2447850 226553 4109 147800 1678 147626 1638303 6426800
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RunEnANABAT RunEnANALE
Completed as at 31 December 2022 Under development as at 31 December 2022
i3
FaEE BE  AfthE THE  TRE BE  TAEE ARER ER/6 RARR
BYEE REEE REER R EEER REEM BEER  REER W | BREER BIRE  EERH
Total Actual/ Actual/
estimate estimated estimated
GFA Total GFA GFA construction  pre-sale
Total  Unsaleable available Investment  TotalGFA  Saleable Pre-saleable Presale  Unsaleable  Investment under forfuture commencement commencement
Location sitearea GFA  GFAsold forsale  property  completed GFA GFA GFA GFA  property development development ~ Total GFA time time
¥hR) ¥hR) ik ¥rR) - (Fh% ) (Fri ) (¥4 ¥ (¥4 Fhk) (¥4
(sq.m,) ) (sq.m,) M. (
HEER ] 315867 0l B 177 B 5| - - - - - - S 090 W4l
Huijing Riversice Vla Dongguan
WEER BR R 10220 5276 281 - - B4 - - - - - - - B4 00791 1018428
Huijing Riverside Vil Perfection ~~ Dongguan
BREL £ 119999 o0 %S 348 - 4T - - - - - - SNG4 W02 1150
Royal Spring Hil Dongguan
e R 59665 us6 1363 557 - - - - - - - - M6 04415 WIS
ity Valley Dongguan
ERHTRL £ 705 BEY 65 435 1539 169988 - - - - - - - 9% 1SI06 201648
Huijing City Centre Dongguan
jucct- 5 B - 768 50200 8308 - 8676 - - - - - - - 85676 2011121 02521
Century Gemini Dongguan
E5H £ 17314 - - - 25780 5780 - - - - - - - 5780 1112 AEfina
Huijing City Dongguan
PRER R 18914 11670 02590 4 - 900 - - - - - - - 0 004 01048
Central Palace Dongguan
EREERAD ] - - 561 9880 - 1041 - - - - - - - 04 TEBne MERn
Huijing Global Centre Dongguan
2i08 R 604 1745 15447 703 - 18895 - - - - - - - 1885 18104 019119
Fenghua Mansion Dongguan
gt 06 191365 1060260 19746 009133040 - - - - - - -3
Subtotal
S b 0007 B IR0 - B 1] - - - - - - - 26M9 W67 1958
BundNo8 Heyuan
hE&LE E 350 B 36 BB - 468 28500 BT 116506 5994 - Wm - BUSI0 0081130 208120
Nine Miles Bay Heyuan
RIEE(H7) b 26353 - - - - - - - - - - - s s TEfne FER
Dongjiang River Gallries 2 portionof] - Heyuan
g 06000715 SS9 Eihi] 75X A Y| BT 1656 5994 R <9 VA Y P
Subtotal
ARERATEL & 7m WS I8 4n S 55 S ) £3%6 11 £2545 @ 088 S 317 I 0 AR I 1)
Hefei Hujing City Centre Hefei
ERER EHEEXE0E &R 93847 12867 89792 3680 - I0639 81369 59739 090 14574 - KU LIS 1307878 2016428 0171030
Huiing Yanhu InterationalResort~~ Hengyang
B2 T B4 - - - - R 6155 185 9% - L] - @S 0630 201215
Kingfu District Pinghu
#HE il 107319 - - - - - 266456 589% 0% 61,781 - - I3 9B W63
Yonghe Distict Chenzhou
k il %38 - - - - - omm 5465 25549 9813 - W% - W% 0 w18
JieyouLate Xuzhou
SBER [i] 0297 - - - - - g T4 97 269 - 90080 - 000 091018 2020109
Feli Palace Xichang
U 1053% 08 3% 8457 S Do B WE BB @21 LIS0I L1055 2815453
Subtotal
Fine w# 766 803 14131 8348 ) - - - - - - N X 1A PSR YA
Yongjinlan Bay Chengdu
BRER w# 14641 - - - - B i) 00 1o 33 - 85 - B 0042 2000831
Royal View Peak (hengdu
HRER w# 30640 18%% 5173 1058 - 91284 - - - - - - - o8 91030 2191218
Royal View Palace Chengdu
HREL w# B4 3878 4375 5098 - 63351 - - - - - - - 63351 08114 29118
Royal View Riverside (hengdu
U5s 116357 096 26 139% - e an 001 11 330 - 85 B ]
Subtotal
RS Ho 114879 I 20M8 1052 ) R ) 1440 0514 7 63505 w37 - W TN W80
The 15t Mansion Fuyang
ESEERAL &Y i) w3 100588 - e - - - - - - - B4 2016630 07105
Huijing Global Centre Changsha
& 668557 498 JMIE0 26553 4009 35 14780 94 W6 BIS A GBI 16833 646800
Total
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Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr Lun Ruixiang, aged 56, was appointed as a Director on 9 January 2019
and was appointed as chairman of the Board and redesignated as a non-
executive Director on 25 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and the member of the remuneration committee
of the Board. Mr Lun Ruixiang is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies, development and directions, as well as monitoring the
operations and management of the Group. Mr Lun Ruixiang founded the
Group in 2004 and has over 17 years of experience in residential and
commercial property development and business development. Mr Lun
Ruixiang has been engaging in the automobile industry in Dongguan since
January 1995.

Mr Lun Ruixiang is a relative of Mr Lun Zhao Ming and the father of Ms Lun
Ying Kit.

Executive Directors

Mr Lun Zhao Ming, aged 59, is the chief executive officer of the Group. He
has been appointed as a Director and redesignated as an executive
Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company on 25 March
2019. Mr Lun Zhao Ming joined the Group in June 2005 as a chairman
assistant and was primarily responsible for human resources and
administration affairs. He was promoted as a vice president in November
2009, during which time he was engaged in overseeing the daily operation
of the Group as well as management affairs. Mr Lun Zhao Ming was
promoted as a senior vice president in January 2015, and was promoted as
the chief executive officer of the Group in January 2018. In addition to
participating to monitor our daily operation and management, he is also
participating to formulate the Group’s business strategies and directions
and serving as director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lun Zhao Ming worked at Dongguan Humen
Port Mayong Xinsha Development Co,, Ltd. (5 5210 52 P95 fifl /& 372 59
B PR A F]), a company primarily engaged in industrial park
development, from September 2003 to May 2005. Mr Lun Zhao Ming
graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") with a bachelor's degree in science in July 1984.

Mr Lun Zhao Ming is a relative of Mr Lun Ruixiang and Ms Lun Ying Kit.
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Mr Lu Peijun, aged 51, joined the Group as the financial controller in
March 2005 and became a vice president of the Group in May 2015. He has
been appointed as a Director and redesignated as an executive Director
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company on 25 March 2019. Mr
Lu is mainly responsible for risk control department of the Company and
assisting in monitoring project implementation and progress. He has more
than 12 years of finance-related experience before joining the Group. He
worked at Guangdong Development Bank (R 2 E £ 17) (now known
as China Guangfa Bank (&2 R 1T)) from January 1994 to March 2005.

Mr Lu graduated from South China Normal University with a degree of
bachelor in legal studies through online education in February 2005.

Mr Luo Chengyu, aged 40, is the vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an Executive Director on 7 May 2021. Mr Luo is mainly
responsible for the management of the investment development
department and financing management department of the Company. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in traffic engineering from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in 2006 and a master's degree in
architecture and civil engineering from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology in 2014. From 2008 to 2016, he worked for the People’s
Government of Town Street governed by Dongguan City, responsible for
urban construction and planning, investment promotion, major municipal
projects management, industrial park development and etc. From 2016 to
2017, he was the head of the Urban Renewal Industry Centre of
Guangdong Zhongtian Group. He is familiar with the operation mode and
rules of urban renewal with rich experience in project management, as well
as excellent coordination capability.

3 2022 Annual Report @



SEMEAEEEEN
PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BYFHITESE

BREBREE 4455  N2023F7H206HEZ
TEBYUIFNTES TAEETZERLZE
EEE o

PR 2 A 199899 A £ 20005 6 ALE R EE
BEBER WR2003FE 11 AEFBEIAX
BEREBYEELEN - REEABER
B ARG RS ACCARBEEFEIA
g HKICPAKIE B

BREERBBHME  FBir SSHHEES
Z S8 0 20039 A = 20108638 R
BN LK ET RN E BT EE S ETED
SRS RENEE  RREZRAFE
BLETMIEEBEMFEEEFT TIE-R2010F8A
E2015F 1A BAEAZSHRITRILERITER
BRARIETIIGHEE - KR20165F 7 AZE 2019
FoR MEEZTREGES (FE)REERA
RIETEABEEP LAKIBERIREEBERE
B o 8201949 A K2019F 11 A MR 4
DR —EHEAHZS (PE)HWEREBRAR
(—REBROREERZA ETHAE - BRORSE:
00095) B RIS E KA B E - B2020%F6
At BRIEEAENRIANEEFTRGBR
AR (—REBRDRBZFT ETMHAR - D
R 06866) FUIB IEITES -

BEBL 435 MN2023F 768 EZ
EAEBUFNTES TAEEGERZREZE
g FTHEEeRRBZEEKE -

BR 20 6 S 2 BB 28 3T 20 F 1R 0 Bl 2004
FIAMFHBEERBEEREE R 2005
FRETEEMREE -BLTBARTP
REHMEEMN - RABRREEMELHA
BEBARTERN BAXLTERZEARZRE
BHEEREEREIRERE - DFEATEEEA
RGEMAE BEMEERERS -

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Chan Kin Man, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 26 July 2023. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Board.

Mr Chan studied at Saint Joseph’s College from September 1998 to June
2000 and obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts in Accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr Chan is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the UK
(ACCA) and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA).

Mr Chan has many years of experience in financing, auditing, accounting,
etc.. From September 2003 to March 2010, Mr Chan acted as an
accountant, senior accountant and audit manager in Ernst & Young, and
participated in projects relating to listings in Hong Kong and annual audits
for various companies. From August 2010 to November 2015, Mr Chan
served as the financial controller in New Northeast Electric Holding Limited
(FEIABERIZR AR A 7). From July 2016 to September 2019, Mr
Chan served as the general manager of capital operation center and the
investor relations director in LVGEM (China) Investment Company Limited
(£ = (F )% & B BR A 7A)). Starting from September 2019 and
November 2019, Mr Chan has been serving as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of LVGEM (China) Real Estate Investment Company
Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 00095), respectively. Starting from June 2020, Mr Chan is an
independent non-executive director of Zuoli Kechuang Micro-finance
Company Limited* (£ 7 & 8]/ 88 E 3% 10 B BR 22 7]) (a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, stock code:
06866).

Ms Ou Ningxin, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 26 July 2023. She is also a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board.

Ms Ou has around 20 years of working experience as solicitor. She obtained
the legal professional qualification certificate in the PRC in March 2004 and
qualified practicing certificate in the PRC in 2005, respectively. Ms Ou is
currently a practicing lawyer in Dongguan, PRC. She is the co-founder and
chief lawyer of Guangdong Tianbing Law Firm* (& 3R K ZZE RN ET5FT).
Ms Ou specializes in work associated with legal services including
corporate equity investment and financing, corporate governance and
inheritance, family offices, commercial arbitration and mediation etc..
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Ms Ou has served as the director of the Female Lawyers Working
Committee of the Dongguan Lawyers Association* (R 5= M 2 A 1 & K
R TIEZEE) the director of the Family Law Professional Committee*
(REBEEEH % ZE®
outstanding committee d|rector in both committees. She is currently the
director of Dongguan Lawyers Association* (SR 3= 2 Al 15 &
of the Legal Professional Committee of Commeroal Arb|trat|on and
Mediation* (7 E P& B F R IEEHE X Z B8 ®), the arbitrator of
Dongguan Arbitration Commission* (3 52 ﬁlﬁi B ), and the
arbitrator of Guangzhou Arbitration Commission* F':“}Hﬁlﬁi/\ & She
is also the supervisor of Dongguan Red Cross Society* (B 52 M AL 5%
chief supervisor of New Social Stratum Friendship Association in V\/anyang
(BT,
in Wuchuan Chamber of Commerce of Dongguan City* (R 522 )l i &
F{E), director of Association of Women Entrepreneurs in Wanjiang* (£
I EFKWE) and legal counsel of Chamber of Commerce in
Wanjiang* (& I B &), Individual Private Association* (1E 48 L & % &
and Catering Association* (& £k 1% & ). Ms Ou graduated with a degree of
Bachelor in Civil and Commercial Law from Southwest University of Political
Science & Law in the PRC.

, which she was awarded the honor of

), director

executive committee of Young Entrepreneurs’ Association

Mr Chen Guilin, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 April 2023. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Board.

Mr Chen has over 30 years of experience in engineering design consulting,
project contracting, real estate development and property investment. He
has been appointed as the chairman and design director of Dongguan
Meilin Jianye Design Engineering Co,, Ltd* (e M EME EF T T2
B R~ Al) since August 2004. He has also been appointed as the
chairman of Hefei Meilin Land Investment Co, Ltd* (& IBTI EME 1 1%
& B R AR since April 2013. He is the founder and chairman of Chizhou
Meilin Real Estate Co,, Ltd* GhINZEM B EBR A
since April 2014

) in Anhui Province

Mr Chen holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Water Conservancy and
Hydropower Engineering Construction from Hohai University in Nanjing.
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Mr Chen Shaobin, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group. He first joined
as the deputy general manager of Real Estate Development Department in
the Group in April 2004 and became our vice president in May 2016. Mr
Chen is responsible for assisting the Group’s outreaching affairs.

Ms Lun Ying Kit, aged 29, is the vice president of the Group. In 2016, she
obtained a bachelor’s degree in art and business from the University of
New South Wales, Australia, and a master's degree in marketing from
University of New South Wales, Australia in 2018. She is in charge of the
Group's brand management, customer relationship management and
commercial sector of property with excellent market acumen, insight and
team management ability.

Ms Lun Ying Kit is the daughter of Mr Lun Ruixiang and a relative of Mr Lun
Zhao Ming.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.
The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its
own code of corporate governance.

The Board had reviewed its corporate governance practices throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022, and confirmed that up to the date of
this annual report the Company has complied with all principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules save as the deviations disclosed below. The Company will
continue to enhance its corporate governance practices and will review
from time to time to ensure the compliance with the evolving regulatory
requirements.

On 9 December 2022, Ms Lin Yanna (“Ms Lin") resigned as an independent
non-executive Director as she needed to devote more time on her personal
commitments. Upon the resignation of Ms Lin, she also ceased to be the
chairman of the remuneration committee (‘Remuneration Committee”)
and a member of each of the Audit Committee and nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) of the Company. As a result, the Company
temporarily failed to comply with the requirements as set out in Rules
3.10(1), 3.21, 3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules and shall appoint an
independent non-executive Director within three months after failing to
meet the requirement according to Rule 3.11. On 15 March 2023, the Stock
Exchange agreed to grant the waiver to the Company to extend the time
to 30 April 2023 for filling the vacancies. On 25 April 2023, Mr Chen Guilin
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Following the appointment of Mr
Chen Guilin, the Company was in compliance with the requirements under
Rules 3.10(1), 3.21, 3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules.

On 6 July 2023, (i) Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (“Ms Chiu”") resigned as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee
as she desired to devote more time to other business and personal
commitments; and (i) Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen (“Mr Hung") resigned
as an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
due to his other business commitments. Following the resignations of Ms
Chiu and Mr Hung, the Company temporarily failed to comply with the
requirements as set out in Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21, 3.25, 3.27A and

13.92 of the Listing Rules.
3 2022 Annual Report @
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On 26 July 2023, (i) Mr Chan Kin Man was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee; and (i)
Ms Ou Ningxin (“Ms Ou") was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Following the appointments of
Mr Chan Kin Man and Ms Ou, the Company re-complied with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21, 3.25,3.27A and 13.92
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all the
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Group. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was
noted by the Company during the period commencing from the Listing
Date and up to 31 December 2022.

The composition of the Board as at the date of this annual report is as
follows:

Non-executive Director:

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman)

Executive Directors:

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lu Peijun
Mr Luo Chengyu

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Chen Guilin (appointed with effect from 25 April 2023)

Ms Ou Ningxin (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Mr Chan Kin Man (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022)
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The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The chairman, being Mr Lun Ruixiang, provides leadership for and
management of the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings and
receive, in a timely manner, adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information. He also takes primary responsibility to ensure that the
Board works effectively, performs its responsibilities and discusses all key
and appropriate issues in a timely manner. He fulfills this by encouraging
Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board's affairs and
ensure the Board acts in the best interests of the Company. He also
encourages Directors with different views to voice their concerns, allows
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensures Board decisions fairly
reflect Board consensus. The chairman is responsible for facilitating the
effective contribution of non-executive Directors and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors.

The chief executive officer, being Mr Lun Zhao Ming, is responsible for
leading the day-to-day management of the Group’s business in accordance
with the strategy, policies and programmes approved by the Board. The
chief executive officer is also responsible for providing reports and advice
to the Board on the performance of the Group’s business. The chief
executive officer would be supported by the management, who provides
relevant information and recommendations to facilitate informed decision
making.

Mr Lun Ruixiang is a relative of Mr Lun Zhao Ming. Save as disclosed
aforesaid, none of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise, save as disclosed below.

On 9 December 2022, Ms Lin resigned as an independent non-executive
Director as she needed to devote more time on her personal
commitments. Upon the resignation of Ms Lin, she also ceased to be the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and nomination committee of the Company. As a result,
the Company temporarily failed to comply with the requirements as set
out in Rules 3.10(1), 3.21, 3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules and shall
appoint an independent non-executive Director within three months after
failing to meet the requirement according to Rule 3.11. On 15 March 2023,
the Stock Exchange has agreed to grant the waiver to the Company to
extend the time to 30 April 2023 for filling the vacancies. On 25 April 2023,
Mr Chen Guilin was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Following the
appointment of Mr Chen Guilin, the Company was in compliance with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.21, 3.25 and 3.27A of the Listing Rules.

On 6 July 2023, (i) Ms Chiu resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee as she desired to devote
more time to other business and personal commitments; and (ii) Mr Hung
resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a member of each
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee due to his other business commitments. Following the
resignations of Ms Chiu and Mr Hung, the Company temporarily failed to
comply with the requirements as set out in Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A,
3.21,3.25,3.27A and 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

On 26 July 2023, (i) Mr Chan Kin Man was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee; and (ii)
Ms Ou was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, and a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Following the appointments of Mr Chan Kin Man
and Ms Ou, the Company re-complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1),3.10(2), 3.10A, 3.21,3.25,3.27A and 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Code Provision C.2.7 of the CG Code provides that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive
Directors without the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
present. The Chairman held a meeting with the independent non-
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Code Provision B.2.2, every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Under the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Also, under the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed either by the board or in a general
meeting by ordinary resolution to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

Each of the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is
appointed for an initial term of three years and is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary
and senior management of the Company. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses, for discharging their duties to
the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they have
provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022. Directors have also disclosed to the
Company their interests as director or other office in other public
companies and organisation in a timely manner, and have regularly
reported to the Company on any subsequent changes.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), significant domestic and/or overseas investments, financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

A summary of training received by Directors and/or reading materials
relevant to the business or directors’ duties during the period under review
and as at the date of this annual report according to the records provided
by the Directors is as follows:

LEENE
ZI, HMEER
Attended
briefings/
trainings/
Directors read materials
i 3 1 5 A Mr Lun Ruixiang v
fm FRAA % A4 Mr Lun Zhao Ming v
EE kA Mr Lu Peijun v
RIS A Mr Luo Chengyu v
BBt (82023F 7 Ao BB T) Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (resigned with effect from

6 July 2023) v

BEIEZ 4 (B8 20234F 7 A6 BAEBHT) Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen (resigned with effect from 6
July 2023) 4
ME L+ (8 2022 F12 B9 B AEBHE) Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022) N/A
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Board meetings

Code provisions C.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Board should
meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times each
year. The Board held four meetings and one annual general meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The table below sets forth the
details of the attendance record:

Members of the Board should attend general meetings to gain and
develop a balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders. Mr Lu
Peijun, an executive Director, was unable to attend the annual general

meeting due to his other prior engagement.

HE g8 HE g8
BORY BIRE
Attended/
Number of Attended/
annual general Number of
Name of Directors meeting(s) meeting(s) held
fRInHF A Mr Lun Ruixiang 1 3/4
fim RREA L 4 Mr Lun Zhao Ming 1/1 4/4
EME LA Mr Lu Peijun 0/1 4/4
RS A Mr Luo Chengyu 1/1 4/4
HEEZ T Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna
(B2023%F 7 A6 HBEHT) (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023) 1/1 4/4
RREER A Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen
(B2023F7 A6 HEET) (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023) 1/1 4/4
MAEIB Lz + Ms Lin Yanna
(B2022F 12 Ao B BET) (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022) 1 3/4
EETZ8TE BOARD COMMITTEES

EXECRUERZES FHEZESNIER
2EREE UEBARAFTHBNER-
ARBLAMEESFEZEENCHITER
BERE HNARE LB RAE - WA

tREFEEZBEMAROKEADRE LI
WTEF BEEFEZREBEMNTIFRKE
HEHNAFRIABER] —H -

The Board has established the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All the said Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of the said Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and
members of each Board committee is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.
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Name of committee member
BB (EE)

(B2023F7 A6 HEET)
BB S A (B 202367 Ao BEET)

M2+ (52022412 Ao B EEFHE)

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to consider any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor; (ii) to review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;
(ii) to communicate and monitoring the work of internal audit and external
auditors to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services, and to report to the Board,
identify and make recommendations on any matters requiring action or
improvement; (iv) discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations,
and ensure coordination where more than one audit firm is involved; (v) to
examine the financial positions of the Company; (vi) to oversee the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and (vii) to oversee the Company’s corporate governance
functions.

As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee was chaired by Ms Chiu Lai
Kuen Susanna with two other members, Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen and
Ms Lin Yanna, all being independent non-executive Directors.

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, the chairman of the Audit Committee, met the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audit plan, reviewed the annual
financial results and report as well as the audit report prepared by the
external auditor relating to accounting issues and major findings in course
of audit, reviewed major internal audit issues, reviewed the financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems and processes, recommended re-appointment of
external auditors and relevant scope of works and continuing connected
transactions, ensured the Company’s corporate governance function and
fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. During the year ended 31 December
2022, three Audit Committee meetings were held. The table below sets
forth the details of the attendance record:

HEER
HITRHE

Attended/
Number of
meeting(s) held

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (Chairman)

(resigned with effect from 6 July 2023) 3/3
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen

(resigned with effect from 6 July 2023) 3/3
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022) 2/3

JESPERRABBRAAF  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Name of committee member

IRt ()
(820225912 A9 BB EE)
CE=itas

BB E S (B 20234 7 Ao BAEBHT)

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to recommend
the Board on the Company's remuneration policy and structure for the
Directors and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (iii) to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment; (iv) to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors; (v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies in the
industry in which the Company operates, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; and
(vi) to consider and recommend to the Board for approval the grant of
share options to Directors and senior management pursuant to any share
option schemes in effect.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described
in paragraph E.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Director and senior management member).

As at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Ms
Lin Yanna, an independent non-executive Director with two other
members, Mr Lun Ruixiang, a non-executive Director and Mr Hung Wan
Shun Stephen, an independent non-executive Director. No Director
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee considered and recommended to the Board
the remuneration package of the individual executive Directors and senior
management as well as the remuneration of the non-executive Directors
and fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. During the year ended 31
December 2022, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
table below sets forth the details of the attendance record:

HE &
BITRE
Attended/
Number of
meeting(s) held

Ms Lin Yanna (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 9 December 2022) 1/1
Mr Lun Ruixiang 11

Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen

(resigned with effect from 6 July 2023) 1/1
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Remuneration bands (excluding

equity-settled share option expense)

AR 750,000 8 AT
AR 750,001 = A R ¥ 1,000,000
AR #1,000,001 s A

Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the period under review are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of senior
management (excluding Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

AE

Number of

person(s)

RMB750,000 or below 1
RMB750,001 to RMB1,000,000 2
RMB1,000,001 or above 1

REEES
RAZBENIZRECRIBFRIES
SHRE RE EARRZT ARES
B REA AR T A DX B AT EH B TR
ZEPREHREF INZEXEEREFTARE
FeRNER  (NMERENMARETES
YRR EETEEFNAZRAESTSREE
& WENHNESFENBZTCMBER Ryl
REEERRMEFHELRE RV EEBETL
FHITESME N -

REZBESHRBEEFAEREREASRIA
WA BB REBEURRARE B NI
BITBERBENES REZEENES
BEBERMIREETESSFLIRE -

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company'’s corporate strategy; (ii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; (iii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship; (iv) to review the policy on Board diversity and make
disclosure of such in the corporate governance report; and (v) to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

SESHERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Name of committee member

imtEdE (E)
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ME 2+ (8 2022 F£12 A9 B R EBHT)

As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr
Lun Ruixiang, a non-executive Director with two other independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen and Ms Lin Yanna.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board, reviewed the board diversity policy, as well as
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors, made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the retiring Directors
and fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. During the year ended 31
December 2022, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. The table
below sets forth the details of the attendance record:

HEaa
BHITRE
Attended/
Number of
meeting(s) held

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman) 11
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen

(resigned with effect from 6 July 2023) 11
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022) 1/1

REBBEK
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IR AR ([IRBBER]) SIAFERIZER
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i) B
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B 22 -
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REAANE - AR =R AR -

(i) BEFE

R E RN EEAMER T ERN
T REFENE  REEZES2EN
AEBEETRRY  EFENREBE .
HERAEERLENTE LR L
B ELRJ A o B ] e AR R A o O AR
AR BHARRATERANESTEZ T
BRRENTHEZ TIEER - ZEFH
=EHRS2E UIRSBMENEERAR
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THABBEIREREAA -

Nomination Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) setting out the
selection criteria and nomination procedures to identify, select and
recommend candidates for Directors. Details of the Nomination Policy as
follows:

(i)  Objective
The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to
the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to the
Shareholders for election as the Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
Directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or
the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

(ii)  Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board, the
factors which would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee include but not limited to the Director’s reputation for
integrity, his/her accomplishment and experience in the industry
which the Group operates, his/her commitment in respect of
available time and relevant interest as well as the diversity in all its
aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the
Company from time to time. These factors are for reference only, and
not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person, as it

considers appropriate.
3 2022 Annual Report
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(iii) Nomination Procedures

The Nomination Committee shall invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also
put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy and/or as an addition to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by the Board
to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will be sent to
shareholders. The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any
other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
nomination committee will monitor the implementation of the Diversity
Policy and will review the Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Diversity Policy also sets out the Board’s commitment to gender
diversity and other diversity aspects. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company had one female Director. The Board will take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members over time as and when
selecting and making recommendation on suitable candidates as Directors.

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the period under review with the support
from the Company’s finance and accounts department.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report”.

The remuneration paid to Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited ("Prism”),
the external auditors of the Company for the period under review was
RMB5 million for audit services, respectively.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
supports the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and the Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary
is an employee of the Company and has day-to- day knowledge of its
affairs. The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary
will be approved by the Board as appropriate at a physical board meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr Lo Chi Ho Wilfred was the
Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2022.

On 1 September 2023, Mr Lo Chi Ho Wilfred tendered his resignation as (i)
the Company Secretary; (i) the authorised representative of the Company
(the “Authorised Representative”) under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules; and
(iii) the authorised representative for acceptance of service of process and
notices on behalf of the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Rule
19.05(2) of the Listing Rules (the “Process Agent”). Following the resignation
of Mr Lo Chi Ho Wilfred, Ms Tang So Him was appointed as (i) the Company
Secretary; (ii) the Authorised Representative; and (i) the Process Agent
with effect from 1 September 2023. Ms Tang So Him is a director and a
founder of AFFLUENT SEA CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED, the external
professional service provider, and engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. The external professional service provider's primary
contact person at the Company is Wang Di, the general manager of Risk

Control Center of the Group.
3 2022 Annual Report
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Three Lines of Defense Model

ATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
Duties of the Board and the Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness at least annually through the audit committee.

The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives, and monitoring the establishment and maintenances of
appropriate and effective risk management and internal controls system.
The management is responsible for designing and maintaining an effective
risk management and internal control system as well as providing
confirmations to the Board on the effectiveness of the system.

Such risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
that there will be no material misstatements or losses.

Risk Management

The Group's risk management structure meets the best practice model
known as “Three Lines of Defense Model” with the first line of defense
being operational management and internal control measures, the second
line of defense being finance, cost and quality control, human resources
functions, legal and compliance, and company secretarial, and the third
line of defense being internal audit.

EE® EREEE

Board/Audit Committee

BREEAR
Senior Manageme

1 1

E—ERR

1st Line of Defense

ARMES
Affairs

ESERARA

Huijing Holdings Com
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board, through the audit
committee, conducted a comprehensive review of the risk management
system, identified the risks facing the Group and adopted the relevant
countermeasures with the help of external consultants, clarified the main
department responsible for risk management, countermeasures, objectives
for improvement, and reported the assessment results to the audit
committee.

Internal Control

The Group’s risk management system is integrated with internal control
system which was developed based on the COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) principles.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group’s
assets, providing reliable financial reporting information and complying
with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems and procedures are also
established to identify, measure, manage and control, rather than eliminate,
different risks arising from different business and functional activities.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department plays an important role in enhancing
internal control system of the Group. It assists the Board in determining
whether sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards by performing
periodic audits over all major operations of the Group, under a rotational
cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising annual audit focus and audit
frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk
assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the audit
committee at the beginning of each financial year. If any material risks or
internal control defects are found, the internal audit department will
discuss with respective department heads to have actions agreed and
subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory controls are
maintained. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the audit
committee for review and all improvement actions will be properly
followed up by management to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time.

The Group complies with the requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group will disclose inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the “safe harbours” provisions and satisfies
the conditions under the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group will ensure that the information is kept strictly
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The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information and established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group's affairs, so that only the executive
Directors are authorized to communicate with parties outside the Group.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the Year, covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls, and it has considered the Group's risk management
and internal control system to be effective and adequate.

The Board strives to maintain on-going dialogues with the shareholders
through various communication channels, for instance, the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. All such
information are available on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of the Board committees will attend the
annual general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions. The external
auditor of the Company will also attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s
independence.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy which
will be reviewed regularly to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be conducted
effectively during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
However, shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow Article
58 of the Company's Articles of Association for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting.
The requirements and procedures of Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association are set out above.

Regarding proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are
available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

If shareholders have any queries in connection with their shareholdings,
please write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at:

17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1066

Fax: (852) 2262 7584

Website: www.tricorglobal.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

In order to conform Articles of Association with the core standard
protection standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules and make
some house-keeping amendments, a special resolution was passed for the
adoption of the second amended and restated Articles of Association at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2022, which
took effect on the same date. The Amended and Restated Memorandum
of Association and Second Amended and Restated Articles of Association
of the Company are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Directors pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 91 to 220 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. The principles and guidelines of
such are as follows:

(@) The Company has no fixed dividend payout ratio;

(b)  Any declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
made in accordance with the constitutional documents of the
Company and the relevant laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies
Law"). Pursuant to the Cayman Companies Law, the Company shall
not declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus (which, for this purpose, includes proceeds
arising from donated shares, credits resulting from the redemption
or conversion of shares at less than the amount set up as nominal
capital, and donations of cash and other assets to the Company), if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the Company is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities;

(@  Any declaration and payment of dividends by the Company,
including the amount of any dividends to be declared, is subject to
the discretion of the Board and, where required under the
constitutional documents of the Company and the Cayman
Companies Law, the approval of the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders”); and

@ TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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(d)  The Directors may recommend a declaration and payment of
dividends after taking into account the Group's operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future
development requirements, Shareholders' interests and other factors
which they may deem relevant at such time.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (2024 AGM")
will be held on Tuesday, 25 June 2024. The notice of 2024 AGM will be
published and issued to shareholders of the Company in due course.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 20
June 2024 to Tuesday, 25 June 2024 (both days inclusive), for the purpose
of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024
AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all
completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited of 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
Time) on Wednesday, 19 June 2024.

An overview and the outlook of the Group's business are provided in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” of this annual report. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the Year. Certain financial key performance
indicators can be found in the section headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group's relationship with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance are
included in a separate “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”,
which will be published in compliance with the stipulations under the
Listing Rules, and in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company for the Year.
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Principal risk and uncertainties

The Group believes that the risk management practices are important and
use its best effort to ensure it is sufficient to mitigate the risks present in
our operations and financial position as efficiently and effectively as
possible:

—  Our business and prospects depend on the performance of the PRC
property market and may be adversely affected by any market
fluctuations;

—  Our expansion into new geographical markets presents certain risks
and uncertainties;

—  Our involvement in urban renewal developments may require more
costs and resources and the benefits from such developments may
not become apparent in the near future;

—  We may not be able to recoup committed resources if our land
acquisition fails;

—  We may acquire land parcels in the future, title or other defects of
which we may not be able to remedy;

—  We may not be able to acquire land reserves in desirable locations
that are suitable for our development at commercially acceptable
prices in the future, which may affect our business, financial
conditions, results of operation and prospects;

—  Our business and operations, including our urban renewal projects,
are highly subject to government policies and regulations. We are
susceptible to adverse changes in policies in the PRC real estate
market and in regions we operate;

—  Property development involve uncertainties, and we may incur
impairment losses of our assets (including our land reserves,
properties under development and completed properties held for
sale) if our property development or our property becomes less
economically viable; and

—  We are exposed to the credit risk of our joint venture.

For other risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



HELHS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FHRSRIERERASE USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

AARFR2020F1 B16 BN EB KM The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
T BREEEETRINBBTHERAZE  Exchange on 16 January 2020. 788,100,000 new ordinary shares of the
REITHREE001 B ITH 788,100,000 % ¥  Company of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at the offer price of
B - FEMBBRMOBITRAR ETWEA% - HKS$1.93 per share. The net proceeds from the Company’s listing amounted
AARMEMABREFEAIIEED  to HKS1,391.1 million after deducting share issuance costs and listing
T ZEMBREFEBIRESDRIEEM  expenses. Such net proceeds are intended to be or have been applied in
ERIAKRFEINAEBRERZR] — &R accordance with the proposed applications as set out in the section
BEEA - AEREREREEHIINT headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. A summary
of the use of proceeds is set out below:

ARRAETAEREFRE(EEET)
Net proceeds from the Company’s listing (in HK$ millions)

REAFHEAM REFHAH REANEZ

FBRERE TEAR BLd: AER BitBEE
Expected
Utilized asat Unutilized as at timeline of
the date of this the date of this unutilized
Use of proceeds Planneduse  annualreport  annual report proceeds
BHEERMBHIEE - Tofund development costs to advance 765.] 765.] - TERA
REFRKAL urban renewal projects N/A
BEMEER (AAM - Developmentand construction costs for the 2782 2782 - N
ESHTHRLR development of existing property projects, N/A
HEEREN R namely Hefei Huijing City Centre and
XfRNE) M E R Huijing Yanhu International Resort
BEKA
EEETHANE « Repayment of certain existing interest 2782 2782 - TEA
RITEAREMER bearing bank borrowings and other N/A
borrowings
REESEEEES . Toprovide funding for working capital 696 696 - il
REM—RARBRE and other general corporate purposes N/A
wE Total 13911 13911 -
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DEBENTURES ISSUES

Exchange offer in relation to outstanding 12.50% senior
notes due 2022 (the “Old Notes”) and issuance of
US$107,600,000 12.50% senior notes due 2023 (the “New
Notes”)

On 7 July 2022, the Company commenced the Exchange Offer to Eligible
Holders (as per definitions in the announcement of the Company dated 7
July 2022) with respect to the Old Notes held by non-U.S. persons (as
defined in Regulation S) outside the United States. Subsequently, on 21
July 2022, the Company issued the New Notes which are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for refinancing the Old
Notes and extending the Company’s debt maturity profile to improve its
debt structure. For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 7 July 2022, 13 July 2022, 15 July 2022, 18 July 2022, 20
July 2022 and 22 July 2022, respectively, in respect of, among others, the
exchange offer of the Old Notes and the issuance of New Notes.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not issued any debenture during
the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report of the Directors and
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted
at the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donations made by the Group during the Year. (2021: HK$1.9
million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 48 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the Company may make distribution
to the Shareholders out of contributed surplus. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this
contributed surplus if it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30.0% of
the Group's turnover for the Year. The five largest suppliers in aggregate
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 66.3%
and approximately 24.0% respectively by value of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5.0% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr Lun Ruixiang

Executive Directors

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lu Peijun

Mr Luo Chengyu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chen Guilin (appointed with effect from 25 April 2023)

Mr Chan Kin Man (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Ms Ou Ningxin (appointed with effect from 26 July 2023)

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen (resigned with effect from 6 July 2023)
Ms Lin Yanna (resigned with effect from 9 December 2022)
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According to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr Chen Guilin, Mr
Chan Kin Man and Ms Ou Ningxin who was appointed as independent
non-executive Director on 25 April 2023, 26 July 2023 and 26 July 2023
respectively, shall held office only until the 2024 AGM.

According to Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, and the
provisions in the CG Code, Mr Lun Zhao Ming, Mr Lu Peijun and Mr Luo
Chengyu will retire from office, and being eligible, have been
recommended by the Board for re-election as Directors at the 2024 AGM.
The proposals for the re-election of the aforementioned Directors will be
put forward at the 2024 AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this
report still considers them to be independent.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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(i) REQXTRMGZER (i) Interests in shares of the Company
ROHE REREEN R4
E=EH (Hret1) HERG ] ARl
Underlying Approximate
Number of shares percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interests shares (Note 1) interested shareholding
tadmt 4 R LB ER (Mit2) 3,937,331,000 (1) - 3937331,000 74.94%
Mr Lun Ruixiang Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
[ g 44,659,000 (1) 2,600,000 47,259,000 0.90%
Interest of spouse (HisF3)
(Note 3)
BREBA - 9,600,000 9,600,000 0.18%
Beneficial owner
REALE BREBA - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.11%
Mr Lun Zhao Ming Beneficial owner
ENELE BREBA - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.11%
Mr Lu Peijun Beneficial owner
BRBEE BREBA - 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.03%
Mr Luo Chengyu Beneficial owner
Kiat - Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of

FRILKRKRZATRZEROHFE]GE
EREZRHAEGEPEXVED)

REBEREEEMEIREEARDA
3,937,331,000 B f& 10 B FE B2 IR B IR A Bl A f
L EER2EHE -

5 8 7N R 5] 44,659,000 P& A% 17 #9 FE B 12 I B (R
AAHBROZLZTER2ERA MIBEE
FRHEED - BRI =L LR BN ERIE
AR AR TS AERSE I R AL -
AR REELEARL =L TNER B
BHEREBERY  BTAEREARRE =Lt
FriF AR 2B MR+ A -

the SFO) in such shares.

2. Wui Ying Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, holding 3,937,331,000 shares of the Company, is beneficially wholly-
owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang.

3. Wui Shing Holdings Limited, holding 44,659,000 shares of the Company, is
beneficially wholly-owned by Ms Chan Hau Wan and Ms Chan Hau Wan is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Wui Shing
Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO. Since Mr Lun Ruixiang is the spouse of
Ms Chan Hau Wan, he is also deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares which are held by Ms Chan Hau Wan by virtue of the SFO.
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(i) RAQTHEBEEMESR (ii) Interests in the associated corporation of the Company

HEEEEN  REBEEEN
HEEEAE HEERBE REBDE

Numberof Percentage of

class of shareholding
securitiesin interests in the

the associated associated
Name of Director Name of associated company Nature of interests company company
i i 5 5 A M &R B R AR EnBAA 1 100%
Mr Lun Ruixiang Wui Ying Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
Br ESCRTHEEE SN - 722022 12 A 31 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
H BEEERARANESTRAS Directors and the chief executive of the Company had registered an
RAR RS EFRAAERER 2 &M - 48 interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
R REEETHEEREBEES RAE debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
EOIEID2IGER 2 BERAR - R that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
BIRESFRIASITTHE ARG KB or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
ZIERRRE ° pursuant to the Model Code.
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R202F12A31H M TAT (BRESHA
NEIMGREITBABIN EARQFRMDAEE
BihhEaERS AR  REREZHLS
EIEHIE 36 IELEAARBEFELM

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

BRHBE HEEERHN REMA
RRERW MR EmtE (Hiat1) HHE R 4 ag Bk
Numberof  Underlying Approximate
shares shares percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interests (Note 1) interested Total shareholding
ERERARLDA REEEES 3,937,331,000 (1) - 3,937331,000 74.94%
Wui Ying Holdings Limited  Interest in a controlled corporation
ROkt (R ¥ 3,937,331,000 (L) 9,600,000  3,946,931,000 75.12%
Ms Chan Hau Wan Interest of spouse (Kiz22)
(Note 2)
REEE RS 44,659,000 (1) - 44,659,000 085%
Interest in a controlled corporation
ERBEAA - 2,600,000 2,600,000 0.05%
Beneficial owner
Bitat Notes:
1. FHILARRZALRZERGOITEIGE 1. The letter 'L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of

EREZFRAEGEPEXVE)

2. ¥ 5 N A 7] 3,937,331,000 B A% 19 B FE 22 458 A%
BRARHABHELEERZEEE MR
EEERBEES - BImELERRABRE
BIERERARMFERSEORDTHES
R ARBRO=Z T ARIsHE L EnEeE
BEEERAEED  BIAEE AN R
FSEFTFEREE MR T A RS -

P % 1758 % B R A BlHF A 44,659,000 & 2R A 7 %
- HROEZT2EERER  MIBREE
FREEGEN  RIO=Z Wi A% ER
TIRBMR AR E AR EE RMDOER -

B EXFEEEN  R2022F12A8318 - #
B|ATRARRZRG AR D PR
B E RHIEEOIE B6 BETFN AR TN E
ARz ESSAE -

the SFO) in such shares.

2. Wui Ying Holdings Limited, holding 3,937,331,000 shares of the Company, is
beneficially wholly-owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang and Mr Lun Ruixiang is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Wui Ying
Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO. Since Ms Chan Hau Wan is the spouse
of Mr Lun Ruixiang, she is also deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares which are held by Mr Lun Ruixiang by virtue of the SFO.

Wui Shing Holdings Limited, holding 44,659,000 shares of the Company, is
beneficially wholly-owned by Ms Chan Hau Wan and Ms Chan Hau Wan is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Wui Shing
Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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BRARESHBEERESSNA
MEREEN2RERHESA
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ZERBMEMBEFARFRER
MEOEE BRAMESHER
RS AARRIRHEENEE
D - BEED - M WE KR
HHNETEESEENTA -

SHE !
ExgU2RRBELEMAL
WAABATRZHE TBRE -

BRAAHREMBREFNETH
FRITHOROEAZURERERR
EAHEERTRANEIE

R2022F 128318 BEHELXA
SR BREE ] FEITH
KA B % 9 48 £ 51,400,000 A% -
HARRAE B EITIRA0.98% °

BRAHBRENBERESTETE
Z2REERBEEBERENES
=
BRAMBEERERETS T E
HESR2NEEREEERE
ME=EE -

BRETAZBROOMR

BT EABEANBREREET
B AR AR TR B ] AT
TIE - EARBEARHEE
Al iB AR AT BIIR SRR R R UE -

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), effective
from 6 April 2019:

Purpose:

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to provide
selected participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
selected participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme provides the Company with a flexible means of
retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected
participants.

Participants:

The Board may in its absolute discretion, select any persons to
whom options are offered or granted.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the percentage of
issued share capital as of the date of this report:

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 51,400,000, representing 0.98% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme contains no provisions on
the maximum entitlement of each participant.

The period within which shares must be taken up under
an option:

Subject to the provisions for early termination contained in
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the options granted to the
grantees shall become exercisable in accordance with the
time as indicated in the letter of grant to each grantee.

JESIEIRABRAT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments must be
made:

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together
with a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company of
RMB1.0 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within the period specified in the
letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once
such acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have
been granted and to have taken effect from the offer date.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

The Board may in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in
the Pre-IPO Share Scheme as the Board may think fit (to be
stated in the offer letter) including, among others, vesting
period and conditions, restrictions or limitations relating to the
achievement of operating or financial targets.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The subscription price in respect of an option granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be 50% to 70% of the
final offer price at which the shares of the Company are being
offered and issued to investors in the global offering.

The remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was expired on the Listing
Date. Subsequent to the expiry of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, no further option shall be offered but in all other
respects, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect and all options granted
prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and exercisable
subject to and in accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.
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BEERAMBEENERETEZ The movements in the number of share options under the
REHNERESE N AFEENE Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:
FIFREHENTE
BREETHRABAE
Number of shares under the options
B202% KEE rEE REE AEE  R202F
SREFRRSA 181A Bl g T %% 128318 T /B/E)
Asat Vesting/
Asat Granted  Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 Exercise Exercise
Date of grant 1 January during during during during December price per period
Category and name of participant  (dd/mm/yyyy) 2022 theYear  theYear  theYear  theYear 2022 share (dd/mm/yyyy)
gz
Directors
BIRELE 06/04/2019 8,600,000 - - - - 8600000  0965ITT (Hi#1)
Mr Lun Ruixiang HK$0.965 (Note 1)
23/10/2019 1,000,000 - - - - 1000000 09657 (1)
HK$0965 (Note 1)
wRATE 06/04/2019 6,000,000 - - - - 6000000 0965ETT (Hi#1)
MrLun Zhao Ming HK$0.965 (Note 1)
EAERE 06/04/2019 6,000,000 - - - - 6000000 09653TT (Hi#1)
MrLu Peijun HK$0.965 (Note 1)
BRERE 06/04/2019 1,800,000 - - - - 1800000 1351 (1)
MrLuo Chengyu HK$1.351 (Note 1)
P 23400000 - - - - 23400000
Sub-total
EZUHEA
Associate of Director
RBzZ T (fi#2) 23/10/2019 2600000 - - - - 2600000  0965ETT (Hrs#1)
Ms Chan Hau Wan (Note 2) HK$0.965 (Note 1)
E 2600000 - - - - 2600000
Sub-total
EE
Employees
At 06/04/2019 14,900,000 - - - - 14900000 09653 (Hi#1)
In aggregate HK$0.965 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 7,700,000 - - - 3150000 4550000 125457 (Brs#1)
HK$1.2545 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 6,950,000 - - - 3800000 3150000 13517 (Hi#1)
HK$1.351 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 5,150,000 - - ~ 2350000 2800000 13517 (B1:#3)
HK$1.351 (Note 3)
23/10/2019 4800000 - - - 4800,000 - 13IAT (Bii#4)
HK$1.351 (Note 4)
PE 39,500,000 - - - 14100000 25400000
Sub-total
@t 65,500,000 - - - 14100000 51400000
Total

SESHERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



HELHS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ik

20201 A16 B £20214%F1 A
15 A 5 8 20% &Y 2N 2 &) 18 78 A%
3 R2021F 1 A16 A B 20224
1A15BRB20%r A D EHE
B 15+ 7202241 B 16 B & 2023
F1H15H 5B 20% 8 A A 7] 48
B D  R2023F1 8168 E
20241 A5 A BB 200 AR
AR - R 2024F1 A16H
202541 A15 H 5 B 20% &) A
NRFEBERRD o

ROzt RfemEEtEZR
B RIELETRAE4AE R
DRt RmInHEEZBEA -

XA AR R BR8P R
HRAARNTEAESEHFES - T
BEARBRANBXXEBASHA
20206 H19H £2021%F3 A4
HEREEETR -

XA AR R BR8P R
HRAARNTEAESEHFES - T
BEABRANBXEBRASHA
2021 F5 4B E£2021F8 A 14
AEREEETR -

Notes:

20% of the underlying shares of the Company were vested
from 16 January 2020 to 15 January 2021; 20% of the
underlying shares of the Company were vested from 16
January 2021 to 15 January 2022; 20% of the underlying shares
of the Company were vested from 16 January 2022 to 15
January 2023; 20% of the underlying shares of the Company
were vested from 16 January 2023 to 15 January 2024; 20% of
the underlying shares of the Company were vested from 16
January 2024 to 15 January 2025.

Ms Chan Hau Wan is the spouse of Mr Lun Ruixiang. Pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Ms Chan Hau Wan is an
associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang.

The underlying shares of the Company will be vested in five
vesting periods as the same manner in note 1 above. The first
vesting date varies for different grantees from 19 June 2020 to
4 March 2021.

The underlying shares of the Company were vested in five
vesting periods as the same manner in note 1 above. The first
vesting date varies for different grantees from 4 May 2021 to 14
August 2021.
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B. BALHEERERESTS B. Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
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JESPERRABBRAAF  Huijing Holdings Company Limited

The Company adopted a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of
the Shareholders on 11 December 2019. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme:

Purpose:

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide eligible participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will provide
the Company with a flexible means of retaining,
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to eligible participants.

Participants:

Any individual, being an employee, director or proposed
director, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, franchisee, partner, adviser or contractor of any
member of the Group or any affiliate or a close associate
of any of the aforesaid individuals, whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, qualified is entitled
to be offered and granted options.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Post- IPO Share Option Scheme and the percentage
of issued share capital as at the date of this report:

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Post IPO-Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes, in aggregate, is 525,400,000, being
no more than 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on 16 January 2020, being the date the shares of
the Company commence trading on the Stock
Exchange, unless approved by the Shareholders at
general meeting.
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The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Post- IPO Share Option Scheme:

The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the option already
granted or to be granted to each eligible participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant shall not exceed 1% in aggregate
of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall be subject to,
among others, approval of the Shareholders at general
meeting, with such eligible participant and his close
associates (or his associates if such eligible participant is
a connected person of the Company) abstaining from
voting.

The period within which shares must be taken up
under an option:

The period which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine but in any event not exceeding
ten years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

The Board may on a case-by-case basis and at its
discretion when making an offer, impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition
to those expressly set forth in the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as it may think fit (which shall be stated in the
offer letter) including, among other things, vesting
period and conditions, restrictions or limitations relating
to the achievement of operating or financial targets.
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The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which payments
must be made:

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the Company receives a duplicate offer letter duly
signed from the grantee together with a non-
refundable remittance of HK$1.00 in favour of the
Company as consideration for the grant thereof within
20 business days from the date of offer. Once accepted,
the option shall be deemed to have granted as from the
date on which it was offered to the relevant eligible
participant. Unless otherwise stated in the terms of the
offer letter, any offer may be accepted for a number of
the Company’s shares less than which is offered
provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for
dealings in the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by
the Board but shall be not less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer of the grant, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company on the date of offer of the
grant.

The remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme:

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is valid and effective

for a period of 10 years commencing on the Listing
Date.

BETEHEEERBRAFR
BH BEBERERESE XA
BERBRETSIERY

From the Listing Date up to and including as of the date of
this annual report, no options were granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme.
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On 7 July 2022, the Company commenced the Exchange Offer to Eligible
Holders (as per definitions in the announcement of the Company dated 7
July 2022) with respect to the Old Notes held by non-U.S. persons (as
defined in Regulation S) outside the United States. Subsequently, on 21
July 2022, the Company issued the New Notes which are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for refinancing the Old
Notes and extending the Company’s debt maturity profile to improve its
debt structure. For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 7 July 2022, 13 July 2022, 15 July 2022, 18 July 2022, 20
July 2022 and 22 July 2022, respectively, in respect of, among others, the
exchange offer of the Old Notes and the issuance of New Notes.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”, at no time during the
Year did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or holding companies, was a party, and the objects of or one of
the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable the Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” on
pages 71 to 82 of this report, none of the Directors (or any entities
connected with the Directors) had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the financial year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholder
of the Company and their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has any interests in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Other than the Directors’ letters of appointment, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
Year.

The Company shall receive, from each of the controlling shareholders of
the Company (the “Covenantor”), an annual declaration on his/her/its
compliance with the undertakings contained in the deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) entered into by each of
them in favour of the Company pursuant to which each of the Covenantors
has undertaken to the Company that he/she/it shall or shall procure that
his/her/its close associates (other than members of the Group) shall:

(i) not, directly or indirectly, carry on, or participate in, or be interested
or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest (in
each case whether for his/her/its own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of other person, and as a shareholder, partner,
agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in
any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business or
investment activities in the PRC and Hong Kong, except for the
existing Ancillary Properties (as defined in the Prospectus), which is
the same as, similar or in competition or likely to compete with the
businesses carried on or contemplated to be carried or by any
member of the Group (the “Restricted Business”);

(i) ifthere is any project or new business opportunity that relates to the
Restricted Business (“New Business Opportunities” and each, a “New
Business Opportunity”), refer such New Business Opportunity to the
Group for consideration;

(i) notinvest or participate in any Restricted Business;

(iv)  If any of the Covenantors, their respective close associates and/or
companies controlled by them (other than the Group) wishes to sell
any interest in land to any third party (the “Opportunity for Sale”),
each of the Covenantors will and will procure their associates that
the Opportunity for Sale is offered to the Company and the
Company shall have a first right of refusal in respect of such
Opportunity for Sale; and
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(v)  provide, during the Relevant Period (as defined in the Prospectus),
where necessary and at least on an annual basis, all information
necessary for the review by the Company and the independent non-
executive Directors, subject to any relevant laws, rules and
regulations or any contractual obligations, to enable them to review
the Covenantors’ and their close associates’ (other than members of
the Group) compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition, and to
enable the Company to enforce the Deed of Non-Competition.

Details of the Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders”.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company had received an annual
written confirmation from each of the Covenantors in respect of their and
their close associates’ compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition. The
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and were satisfied that
each of the Covenantors has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
for the Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company during
the Year are as follows:

(1) Residential Property Management Services Framework
Agreement with Dongguan Huijing Property
Management Company Limited (“Dongguan Property
Management”)

On 17 December 2021, the Company entered into a Residential
Property Management Services Framework Agreement framework
agreement with Dongguan Property Management. Dongguan
Property Management shall provide services to the Group include
but not limited to the provision of safety and security services, daily
cleaning, hygiene, greening and maintenance services and fire safety
management services to the unsold residential properties.
Dongguan Property Management is beneficially owned as to 60.0%
by Ms Chan Hau Wan and as to 40.0% by Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is
therefore an associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang and Ms Chan Hau Wan and
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Residential Property Management Services Framework

Agreement shall take effect from 1 January 2022 and continue until
31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive).
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The services fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for similar services and similar type of projects of Dongguan
Property Management in the market from three independent third
party service providers.

The above term of the Residential Property Management Services
Framework Agreement has been incorporated to ensure that the
pricing terms are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms
and shall be no less favorable than those offered by the independent
third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Residential Property
Management Services Framework Agreement for the period ending

1 December 2022 shall not exceed RMB11 million. The service fees
are expected to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.

The above annual caps have been determined by reference to,
among others, the following factors:

(i) the historical transaction amount incurred under the 2019-
2021 Property Management Services Framework Agreement
(and revised by the Supplemental Agreement);

(i) the current property projects under which had engaged
Dongguan Property Management for the unsold residential
property management services, and new property projects
which are expected to complete from 2022 to 2024
respectively, with reference to the historical unsold rate,
projected increase of GFA of unsold residential property as a
result of the Group’s expected growth in the number of
property projects and subsequent projected increase for the
current property projects;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services and
guidance rate by relevant government authorities; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Property
Management in provision of management services for unsold
residential properties.
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(2)

Commercial Property Management Services Framework
Agreement with Dongguan Property Management

On 17 December 2021
Property Management Services Framework Agreement with

, the Company entered into a Commercial

Dongguan Property Management in relation to the services agreed
to be provided by Dongguan Property Management to the Group
include but not limited to the office support services for the existing
and anticipated new office buildings such as in Guangdong, Hunan,
Zhejiang and Jiangsu provinces, including property and facilities
maintenance, security services, cleaning services, gardening services,
public area maintenance, greeting and other property management
related services.

The Commercial Property Management Services Framework
Agreement shall take effect from 1 January 2022 and continue until
31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm'’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for similar services and similar type of projects of Dongguan
Property Management in the market from three independent third
party service providers.

The above term of the Commercial Property Management Services
Framework Agreement has been incorporated to ensure that the
pricing terms are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by the
independent third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Commercial Property
Management Services Framework Agreement for the period ending
31 December 2022 shall not exceed RMB9.9 million. The service fees
are expected to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.
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(3)

The above annual caps have been determined by reference to,
among others, the following factors:

() the historical transaction amount incurred under the 2021
Commercial Property Management Services Framework
Agreement;

(i) the anticipated growing demand for office support services
for the forthcoming year from 2022 to 2024, with reference to
the expansion of the Group to new regions such as Zhejiang
and Jiangsu provinces, and the anticipated increase in
demand of quantity and quality of the existing administrative
services of the Group;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Property
Management in provision of office support services.

Sales Centre Support Services Framework Agreement
with Dongguan Property Management

On 17 December 2021, the Company entered into The Sales Centre
Support Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan Property
Management in relation to the sales centre support services agreed
to be provided by Dongguan Property Management to the Group
include but not limited to the provision of cleaning and security,
customer reception and other relevant support services in sales
office, showrooms, display units and club houses in various locations
in the PRC, depending on the location of the property projects on
project based.

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for similar services and similar type of projects of Dongguan
Property Management in the market from three independent third
party service providers.
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The above term of the Sales Centre Support Services Framework
Agreement has been incorporated to ensure that the pricing terms
are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms, and shall be
no less favourable than those offered by the independent third
parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Sales Centre Support
Services Framework Agreement for the period ending 31 December
2022 shall not exceed RMB18 million. The service fees are expected
to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.

The above annual caps have been determined by reference to,
among others, the following factors:

(M the historical transaction amount incurred under the 2021
Sales Centre Support Services Framework Agreement;

(i) the sales centres of existing projects and new property
development projects in the forthcoming year from 2022 to
2024 with reference to size, geographical locations, facilities
and human resources allocation of the relevant display units,
sales offices and clubhouses;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Property
Management in provision of sales centre support services and
the demand of the Company in improving efficiency of
marketing operation.
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(4)

Construction Consultation and Inspection Services
Framework Agreement with Dongguan Property
Management

On 17 December 2021, the Company entered into The Construction
Consultation and Inspection Services Framework Agreement with
Dongguan Property Management in relation to the Construction
Consultation and Inspection Services agreed to be provided by
Dongguan Property Management to the Group include but not
limited to the provision of consultation services at the early
construction stage and inspection services before delivery for the
property projects of the Group.

The Construction Consultation and Inspection Services Framework
Agreement shall take effect from 1 January 2022 and continue until
31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for similar services and similar type of projects of Dongguan
Property Management in the market from three independent third
party service providers.

The above term of the Construction Consultation and Inspection
Services Framework Agreement has been incorporated to ensure
that the pricing terms are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial
terms, and shall be no less favourable than those offered by the
independent third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Construction
Consultation and Inspection Services Framework Agreement for the
period ending 31 December 2022 shall not exceed RMB2.8 million.
The service fees are expected to be satisfied by internal resources of
the Group.
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The above annual caps have been determined by reference to,

among others, the following factors:

U]

(if)

(iif)

the historical transaction amount incurred between the Group
and Dongguan Property Management for construction
consultation and inspection services;

the estimated demand of the Company for construction
consultation and inspection services for the coming year from
2022 to 2024;

the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Property
Management in provision of construction consultation and
inspection services.

As each of the Dongguan Property Management Agreements

("Dongguan Property Management Agreements’) was entered into

between the Company and Dongguan Property Management, the
Company has aggregated the annual caps of the transactions
contemplated under the aforesaid agreements under Rule 14A.82 of

the Listing Rules. As a result of aggregation, the aggregate value of

the proposed annual caps for the aforesaid agreements for each of
the year ending 31 December 2022, amounts to RMB41.8 million,
respectively.
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Commercial Operational and Value-added Services
Framework Agreement with Dongguan Huisheng
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Huisheng”) for the provision of commercial operational
services and commercial value-added services for
investment properties

On 17 December 2021, the Company entered into the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement in
relation to Dongguan Huisheng is commissioned to provide the
commercial operational services and value-added services for various
investment properties in connection with the management projects
of (i) Huijing City in Houjie in Dongguan, the PRG; (i) Huijing City in
Zhangmutou in Dongguan, the PRC; and (iii) Huijing City in Hefei,
the PRC (the “Three Huijing City”) which are held by the Group.
Pursuant to the Commercial Operational and Value-added Services
Framework Agreement, the services agreed to be provided by
Dongguan Huisheng to the Group include but not limited to the (i)
commercial operational services such as shopping mall operational
management, promotion and marketing, security and logistics and
maintaining good relationships with tenants and customers; and (i)
value-added services, such as market positioning of potential
customers and tenants, selection of style of decoration and layout or
the Three Huijing City. Dongguan Huisheng is beneficially owned by
Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore an associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Commercial Operational and Value-added Services Framework
Agreement shall take effect from 1 January 2022 and continue until
31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive).

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm'’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
conditions of the “Three Huijing City”, the operational costs (including
labour costs, material costs, management costs and the mark-up
rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market price for
providing similar services of Dongguan Huisheng in the market from
three independent third party service providers.

The above term of the Commercial Operational and Value-added
Services Framework Agreement has been designed to ensure that
the pricing terms are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial
terms, and shall be no less favourable than those offered by the
independent third parties.
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(6)

The annual cap of the service fees under the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement for
the period ending 31 December 2022 shall not exceed RMB29.6
million. The service fees are expected to be satisfied by internal
resources of the Group.

The above annual caps have been determined by reference to,
among others, the following factors:

(i) the historical transaction amount incurred under the 2021
Commercial Operational and Value-added Services Framework
Agreement;

(i) the estimated demand of the Company for commercial
operational services and commercial value-added services for
the forthcoming year from 2022 to 2024;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Dongguan Huisheng
and the Company’s expansion plans on investment properties.

Framework Decoration Services Agreement with
Guangdong Huifeng Eco-technology Limited
(“Guangdong Huifeng”) for the provision of interior
decoration services

On 17 December 2021, the Company entered into a framework
interior decoration services agreement with Dongguan Huifeng to
govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between the
Group and Dongguan Huifeng in connection with the provision of
interior decoration services to the Group (the “Framework Decoration
Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the Framework Decoration
Services Agreement, where Dongguan Huifeng shall be selected
following the relevant selection process, Dongguan Huifeng shall
provide interior decoration services to the Group according to the
definitive building decoration services agreement to be signed by
the Group with Dongguan Huifeng from time to time. Dongguan
Huifeng is beneficially owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore
an associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The Framework Decoration Services Agreement shall take effect
from 1 January 2022 and continue until 31 December 2024 (both
dates inclusive).

The service fees shall be determined principally by arm’s length
commercial negotiations after taking into account factors including
the numbers and locations of the projects, the operational costs
(including labour costs, material costs, management costs and the
mark-up rate, if applicable) with reference to the comparable market
price for providing similar services of Guangdong Huifeng in the
market from three independent third party service providers.

The above term of the Framework Decoration Services Agreement
has been designed to ensure that the pricing terms are fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms, and shall be no less
favourable than those offered by the independent third parties.

The annual cap of the service fees under the Framework Decoration
Services Framework Agreement for the period ending 31 December
2022 shall not exceed RMB60 million. The service fees are expected
to be satisfied by internal resources of the Group.

The above annual caps have been determined by reference to,
among others, the following factors:

(i) the historical transaction amount incurred under the 2019-
2021 Framework Decoration Services Agreement;

(i) the estimated demand of the Group for the relevant interior
decoration services, projected with reference to the aggregate
GFA under development for our existing property projects in
forthcoming year from 2022 to 2024, respectively;

(i) the comparable market price by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms for providing similar services; and

(iv)  other factors such as the experience of Guangdong Huifeng
and the diversity of our supplier base in connection with the
building decoration services.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio under Rule 14A.78 of the
Listing Rule in respect of the proposed annual cap under (1) the
Dongguan Property Management Agreements, (2) the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement, and
(3) the Decoration Services Framework Agreement exceeds 0.1%,
but is less than 5.0%, such transactions contemplated under each of
the Agreements are therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements, but are exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Mr Lun Ruixiang has abstained from voting on the relevant board
resolutions of the Board in relation to the Agreements in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Other than Mr Lun
Ruixiang, none of the other Directors is required to abstain from
voting on the relevant board resolutions of the Board in relation to
the Agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Dongguan Property Management Agreements, the Commercial
Operational and Value-added Services Framework Agreement, and
the Decoration Services Framework Agreement, and confirmed that
each of the continuing connected transactions has been entered
into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and
() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
above continuing connected transactions, the terms of which

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Prism, the Company's auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions above in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prism has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other non-exempt connected
and continuing connected transactions, arrangement or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest or interest in competing business, whether directly or
indirectly, nor contracts of significance between the Company or its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries,
subsisted at the end of the Year.

AEBRAFEFTUMNSE TEZBH AL Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group

%ﬂﬁT%ﬁiﬁiﬁ BTN 2BEXSHEE  during the Year, which do not constitute connected or continuing

FER S FIEREEUBBRERMFF43HTE o connected transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REAFMEA EFRARAEMETHRAE  Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors or other
HAREBITHBEMEL BAEMIEAS  officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
MERFMEEASERX 2MA T‘é K EE - ﬁ assets and profits of the Company against all losses or damages which they
BRARFEERBITESGRE - AQ may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
EREZRAEENSRA E\ ZHAHE ZE omitted in or about the execution of their duty in their respective offices.
ERERAEBEERRE -

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as of 31
December 2022 are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
this annual report.

Particulars of the projects and land parcels of the Group are shown on
pages 12 to 17 of this annual report.

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, discretionary bonuses, housing and other allowances and other
benefits in kind. The Company also reimburses Directors and senior
management for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably incurred
for providing services to the Company or discharging their duties in
relation to the operations of the Company.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the
Human Resources Department and the employees’ emoluments are
determined on the basis of their qualifications, experiences and area of
expertises.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company and decided by the Board, having regard to the Company'’s
performance and the remuneration benchmark in the industry.

The Group has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme for the Directors and the employees of the
Group, details of which are disclosed in section headed “Share Option
Schemes”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements set out in this annual report.
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As at the date of this report, breaches of the following loan agreements
have given rise to a disclosure obligation pursuant to Rules 13.19 and 13.21
of the Listing Rules:

A civil proceeding was filed by a trust company (the “Trust Company A”)
against certain subsidiaries of the Company in respect of a past-due trust
loan. The Trust Company A demanded (i) the relevant subsidiaries to repay
the outstanding principal of trust loan together with accrued interests
amounting to approximately RMB300 million (calculated up to 25 June
2023); and (i) the Trust Company A shall have the priority in compensation
over the proceeds from the auction or sale of certain assets or equity
interests pledged by the relevant subsidiaries for the trust loan.

A civil legal proceeding has been filed to the Middle Civil Court of
Dongguan, Guangdong* (R & Rz H & A RJEFT) (the “Court”)
against certain subsidiaries of the Company. The legal proceeding was filed
by a trust company (the “Trust Company B") regarding a subsidiary of the
Company failed to repay a fixed-income financial product in connection
with a subsidiary of the Company (the “Financial Product”) issued by the
Trust Company B. The outstanding principal of the Financial Product
together with accrued interests amounting to approximately RMB156
million as at 26 December 2023. The chairman and non-executive director
of the Company, Mr Lun Ruixiang and his spouse are guarantors (the
“Guarantors”) to the Financial Product. The Trust Company B has applied
for and the Court has granted a freezing order on certain assets owned by
the Group and the Guarantors, including certain retail shops and car
parking spaces.

A civil proceeding was filed to the Shanghai Financial Court* (_E )8 & 8%
BT ) by a creditor of the Company (the “Creditor”) against certain
subsidiaries of the Company, Mr Lun Ruixiang, the chairman and non-
executive director of the Company, and his spouse, in respect of a past-due
entrust loan made by the Bank of Dongguan on behalf of the Creditor. The
Creditor requested (i) the relevant subsidiaries to repay the outstanding
principal of the entrust loan together with accrued interests and penalties
and related expenses amounting to approximately RMB530 million
(calculated up to 8 December 2023); and (ii) the Creditor shall have the
priority in compensation over the proceeds from the auction or sale of
certain assets or equity interests pledged by the relevant subsidiaries for
the entrust loan.
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An enforcement case (the “Case”) was submitted to the Court against
certain subsidiaries of the Company relating to a past-due pledged loan
lent by a trust company (the “Trust Company C") with a principal amount
of RMB150 million, requiring the relevant subsidiaries of the Company to
repay the Trust Company C the outstanding principal of the trust loan and
interests amounting to approximately RMB154.5 million.

A civil proceeding was filed by an asset management company (the "AM
Company”) due to the breach of loan repayment by certain subsidiaries of
the Company. The AM Company demanded (i) the relevant subsidiaries to
repay the outstanding principal of the loan together with accrued interests
amounting to approximately RMB394.0 million; and (ii) the AM Company
shall have the priority in compensation over the proceeds from the auction
or sale of certain assets or equity interests pledged by the relevant
subsidiaries for the loan.

As of the date of this report, the Company is in the process of negotiating
with the Creditors , the Trust Company A, the Trust Company B, the Trust
Company C and the AM Company, and complying with the relevant legal
procedures regarding the relevant proceedings or the Case. Please see the
announcements of the Company dated 29 September 2023, 27 December
2023 and 4 March 2024 for details.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other matter subsisting as at the
date of this report which requires disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules.

According to Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, there must be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and for a sufficient public float of
an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that at
least 25.0% of the issuer’s total number of issued shares must at all times be
held by the public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the Stock
Exchange may, subject to certain conditions and at its discretion, accept a
lower percentage of between 15.0% to 25.0% in the case of issuers with an
expected market capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10.0 billion.

The Stock Exchange had granted the Company a waiver from strict
compliance with the requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules
to accept a lower public float percentage subject to the condition that:

(i) the minimum public float shall be the higher of (a) 15.0%; or (b) such
percentage of Shares to be held by the public immediately after the
completion of the global offering (as increased by any Shares to be
issued under any exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined

in the Prospectus));
3 2022 Annual Report
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(i) the Company’s market capitalisation at the time of listing is over
HKS10 billion;

(i) the Company will make appropriate disclosure of the lower
prescribed percentage of public float in the Prospectus together
with a confirmation of sufficiency of public float in its successive
annual reports after the listing; and

(iv)  there will be an open market in the shares offered in the global
offering, and the number of shares and the extent of their
distribution would enable the market to operate properly.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

The changes in Directors’ information as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules for the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report are set out below:

On 9 December 2022, Ms Lin Yanna resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee as
she needed to devote more time on her personal commitments. Please see
the announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2022 for details.

On 25 April 2023, Mr Chen Guilin was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
Please see the announcement of the Company dated 25 April 2023 for
details.

On 6 July 2023, (i) Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna resigned as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee as she
desired to devote more time to other business and personal commitments;
and (i) Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee due to his other
business commitments. Please see the announcement of the Company
dated 6 July 2023 for details.
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On 26 July 2023, (i) Mr Chan Kin Man was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee; and (ii)
Ms Ou Ningxin was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Please see the announcement of the
Company dated 26 July 2023 for details.

The Company is committed to maintain a high level of corporate
governance. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report as set out on
pages 35 to 51 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report,
the Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with all code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

On 31 July 2023, Ernst & Young resigned as the auditor of the Company
and Prism was appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so
arising on 7 August 2023. The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by Prism whose term of
office will expire upon the conclusion of the 2024 AGM. A resolution to re-
appoint Prism as the independent auditor will be proposed to the
shareholders at the 2024 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Lun Ruixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2024

* Foridentification purpose only
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To the shareholders of Huijing Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Huijing
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 91 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of this report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in
our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
incurred a net loss of RMB2,833,896,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 and as of that date, the Group had interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and senior notes payables in total of RMB4,634,935,000, out of
RMB2,411,743,000 will be due for repayment within the next twelve
months, while its available cash and cash equivalent amounted to
RMB27,269,000. Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Group did not
repay principal and interest payables with an aggregate amount of
RMB1,879,075,000 for certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and senior notes, as a result, such non-repayment has constituted an event
of default and lenders may exercise their rights to demand immediate
repayment. These conditions, along with other matters as set out in note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.
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Material uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have taken measures to improve the Group's
liquidity and financial position as set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the directors of the Company on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends on the outcome of these measures, which are
subject to material uncertainties. We are unable to determine whether the
use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively, and to write
down the values of assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for
any further liabilities which may arise. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any such adjustments. However, material
uncertainties exist in relation to the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in view of the Group’s future cash flow. We consider that
appropriate disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning this situation but we have not obtained sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the Group's ability to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due and we consider the
potential cumulative effect on the consolidated financial statements of this
material uncertainty relating to going concern to be so significant that we
have disclaimed our opinion.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unqualified opinion on 29 March 2022.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of this report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lee Kwok Lun.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun

Practising Certificate Number: P06294

Hong Kong
26 February 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

2022 & 2021 4
2022 2021
M it ARET ARET T
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
&= REVENUE 5 85,893 5,309,290
$HE KA Cost of sales (78,957) (3,642,404)
E7 Gross profit 6,936 1,666,386
H b U A R Uk Other income and gains 5 106,188 124,112
HERDHEAXS Selling and distribution expenses (44,347) (122,965)
THAX Administrative expenses (305,120) (472,932)
KEMELTE Fair value (losses)/gains on
(B518), W F 5 investment properties, net 14 (245,854) 170,757
B 5 N A b e W R FURE Impairment of trade and other receivables (44,351) =
WomTEE ] #I0 FE Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value (1,857,898) -
H bRz Other expenses (217,564) (129,927)
WS ERERENGTE Remeasurement of financial guarantee
contracts (8,755) -
B 75 A 7R Finance costs 6 (199,097) (150,801)
DMEEBELE R RER Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 4,392 20,299
DIE—KEE BT NEE  Share of profit and loss of an associate (587) (3,265)
BRBIAT (B518) SRR (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 (2,806,057) 1,102,164
FriS i > Income tax expense 10 (27,839) (551,768)
FR(EE) &R (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (2,833,896) 550,396
AT (L - Attributable to:
NEER A Owners of the parent (2,452,694) 256,140
eI i Non-controlling interests (381,202) 294,256
(2,833,896) 550,396
BARER AEWN (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
R (B8R) BF ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT
AERRES(BRARET) Basic and diluted (RMB per share) 12 (0.47) 0.05

3R 2022 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BUZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

2022 F 2021 &
2022 2021

KtaE ARET T ARBTT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

R (EE), B (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (2,833,896) 550,396

HEHBEMETSEFDHEEEIEE  Other comprehensive income/(10ss)
ZEMEEEA(EE) that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
BMERRBRBHRER IELETE Exchange differences on

translation of financial

statements of the Company 39,804 (19,326)
HERHMAgeET RS Other comprehensive (loss)/income
BuEzHEM2mE (B8 that may be reclassified to profit or
WA loss in subsequent periods:
BEWBRARMBHRER Exchange differences on
E N Z% translation of financial
statements of the subsidiaries (72,416) 42932
FAHMEE (EE), WA Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (32,612) 23,606
FR2ME (BB WALHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (2,866,508) 574,002
LT Attributable to:
ISNEIEZ YN Owners of the parent (2,485,306) 279,746
3'5? &4 2 Non-controlling interests (381,202) 294,256
(2,866,508) 574,002

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R20224F 12 A31 H Asat 31 December 2022

ft et

Notes

2022 F
2022

AR®TR

RMB'000

2021 4
2021
AREF T
RMB'000

FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Wz - RERE&E Property, plant and equipment 13 67,236 69,071
FREESE Right-of-use assets 15(a) 28,440 2,010
"EWE Investment properties 14 1,596,000 1,786,900
mEAE Intangible assets 16 5,097 6,321
REBEENRE Investments in joint ventures 17 276,352 290,660
R—REELENTE Investment in an associate 18 1,648 2,235
FERM B A SR i Land held for development for sale 19 1,442,722 597,814
BEEFIBE B Deferred tax assets 32 168,839 168,962
IRBEELE TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,586,334 2,923,973
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
FIERB AR EEN it Land held for development for sale 19 381,000 113,137
e Properties under development 20 3,622,833 3,388,502
BIEHERNE % TS Completed properties held for sale 21 1,262,412 872,569
H 5 REBAR Trade receivables 22 20,930 37,497
TERTSRIE ~ Hith FEUGRIE 2 Prepayments, other receivables and

EAh éff% other assets 23 2,780,418 3,751,039
FEME B 1 FE R Receivables from joint ventures 17 378,604 160,256
EAFEET AR ﬁﬁZ Financial assets at fair value through

BREE profit or loss 24 99,403 232,819
AN TR ER Prepaid land appreciation tax 3,239
He RIRTTH R Cash and bank balances 25 78,268 2,702,420
REBEEHLE TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,627,107 12,258,239
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
g I EMNER Trade payables 26 1,342,089 1,678,076
HMENFRIE skizek Other payables, deposits received

FEETE A and accruals 27 814,837 530,527
HEAE Lease liabilities 15(b) 5,162 1,933
AHEE Contract liabilities 28 2,513,734 2,676,239
FTEIRIT REMER Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings 29 1,639,070 1,452,479
BEEE Senior notes 30 772,673 915,930
RS EE Provision for corporate income tax 774,357 726,907
T Hb I AT B Provision for land appreciation tax 37 675,357 637,404
REEEREE TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,537,279 8,619,495
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 89,828 3,638,744
EERERABAEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 3,676,162 6,562,717
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20224 12 H31 H Asat 31 December 2022

2022 £
2022
AR¥ T
RMB'000

it

Notes

2021 5
2021
ARBTT
RMB'000

FRBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FTERITREMME R Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 29 2,223,192 2,143,762
HEEE Lease liabilities 15(b) 25,215 79
EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 109,084 167,501
IRBEEHAE TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,357,491 2,311,342
EEFE NET ASSETS 1,318,671 4251375
R EQUITY
BAREE AEGER Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
B EITRA Issued capital 33 47,972 47972
B Reserves 35 684,720 3,273,692
732,692 3,321,664
FEPERR A A Non-controlling interests 585,979 929,711
RSB Total equity 1,318,671 4251375
i B8 BA ERIE
Lun Zhao Ming Luo Chengyu
- o
Director Director

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



GAMNEDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

BORHFH AR

Attributable to owners of the parent

(BitEE)/
B#E  EERE RERG : REEF a3t [ $:3
(Accumulated
Share Statutory losses)/ Non-
Issued Share option Capital Merger surplus  Exchange retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
ARMTRE ARMTR ARMTR ARBTRZ ARWTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMT:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RanFE1A1A At1 January 2022 47972 843,471 86,631 656 499 259,962 (9,764) 2,092,237 3,321,664 929,711 4,251,375
ERES Loss for the year - - - - - - - (2452694) (2452694)  (381,202) (2,833,896)
EREMRERE: Other comprehensive loss for e year:
BEHBRROELZSE  Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements - - - - - - (32612 - (32612 - (32,612
ERCEBELER Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - - (32612)  (2452694) (2485306  (381,202) (2,866,508
WE R ER Acquisition of non-controling interest - - - - - - - - - (220000 (22,000
REFERRRZER  Contribution from non-controliing
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 59,470 59,470
INEREEMBERERSE  Fquitysetted share option
(Hiit34) arrangements (note 34) - - 7,266 - - - - - 7,266 - 7,266
BREANAERMEE  Transferring share option reserve
BRERE upon the forfeture or expiring of
share options - - (12,736) - - - - 8,155 (4,581) - (4,581)
BER0IERBRE  Final 2021 dividend declared (note /1)
(Hiatn) - (106351) - - - - - - (106351) - (106351)
RunENA3NE Asat 31 December 2022 47,972 737,120* 81,161* 656% 499* 259,962* (42,376)* (352,302 732,692 585979 1,318,671
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

Share

premium

b —

Ran%E1A18 At 1 January 2021 47972 1,062,114 76,040 656 499 145187 (33370) 1945712 3244810 584,820 3829636
EREF Profit for the year - - - - - - - 256,140 256,140 294256 550,3%
FRERZENRA : Other comprehensive income for

the year:
BEHBRROELZSE  Exchange differences on translation

of financial statements - - - - - - 23606 - 23606 - 23606
FNEERNES Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - - 23606 256,140 219,746 294,256 574002
HENBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1%y (28125)
WEMBRAR (H37)  Acquisiion of subsidiares (nore 37) - - - - - - - - - 109529 109529
URER SEi AR 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interest B B = - - - = = = 66,790) 66,790)
REFERRRZER  Contribution from non-controlling

shareholders - - - - - - - - - 289,143 289,143
IREEENERERE  Equitysettied share option

(Wit arrangements (note 34) - - 10591 - - - - 5,160 15,751 - 15751

BER00FRERS  Final 2020 dividend declared - I8e) - - - - - - (1868) - (8e)
ERaREER Transfer from retained profits = = = - - 114775 = (114779) = - -
iVIEVERE Asat 31 December 2021 47972 8434T1* 86,631* 656* 499* 259962 (9764F  2092237% 3321664 929711 4251375

* ZERBERERGEMBERAZTRAABAR =
¥ 684,720,000 7T (2021 FF :+ A R ¥ 3,273,692,000
TL) WERA R

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB684,720,000 (2021: RMB3,273,692,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

@ ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

2021 4F
2021
ARBFIT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®TR
RMB'000

REZER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BrFiAT (E518), 5t A (Loss)/profit before tax (2,806,057) 1,102,164
FHE Adjustments for:
RITF B U A Bank interest income 5 (24,904) (14,449)
M—XEELEENRN Interest income of a loan to

B A ajoint venture 5 (15,951) (13,034)

M BEREETE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 7 7,199 6,020
FERAEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 7,555 4,752
| & Amortisation of intangible assets 7 1,506 1,855
BmEEERERS Equity-settled share option expense 7 7,266 15,751

EUR MR Forfeited contributions 7 (4,581) =
REMENTEEE,/ (W)  Fairvalue loss/(gains) on investment

il properties, net 14 245,854 (170,757)
BATEGFAERZZEM Fair value changes on financial assets at

BEZAFEEZS fair value through profit or loss 7 129,260 85,530
HEME  BERXK Gain on disposal of items of property,

1 B Ml plant and equipment 5 (288) (84)
ERELEEREWE Gain on redemption of senior note (54,523) =
HEWB AR MW F58 Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 5 - (82,419)
DMhEEBERFERMNKREE Share of profits and losses of

joint ventures (4,392) (20,299)
DIE—REE O EHR NEIE  Share of profit and loss of an associate 587 3,265
B 5 R H A SR FORE Impairment of trade and other
receivables 44,351 -
WoREE Write-down of inventories 1,857,898 -
P ERERENTE Remeasurement of financial guarantee
contracts 8,755
LY B IDEIN Finance costs 6 199,097 150,801
(401,368) 1,069,096
FER B A HER L HIEIN  Increase in land held for development
for sale (772,063) (421,263)
FEREYE (M), B (Increase)/decrease in properties under
development (974,870) 2,265,292
BIEHENE R TYE (Increase)/decrease in completed properties
(), R held for sale (441,933) 384,605
E 5 WER FOR A Decrease in trade receivables 15,925 16,356
TERTFRIE - Hith FEUGRIE & Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other
Hi &R () receivables and other assets 550,773 (1,025,825)
B EMNBRRE D Decrease in trade payables (335,987) (379,008)
AREERD Decrease in contract liabilities (167,222) (2,652,592)
HEEIE BEWIZE R Decrease in other payables,
JEET BRI deposits received and accruals 168,161 (242,493)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
Kt et ARMT ARBTT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
KEFTAES Cash used in operations (2,358,584) (985,332)
B F & Interest received 24,904 14,449
BB BECEMER PRC corporate income tax paid (1,178) (130,744)
B AT B A I (E PRC land appreciation tax paid (12,187) (290,205)
RETHFAREREFE NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (2,347,045) (1,392,332)
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
REGEPENEER Settlement from joint ventures 1,150 108,736
BTEBREZBRK Advance to joint ventures (6,812) =
EBEYHE BERZEEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment 13 (6,669) (10,897)
RNBEREE Additions of intangible assets 16 (282) (558)
NEREWME Additions of investment properties 14 - (91,716)
BERATEFABRZZ Purchases of financial assets at fair value

THMEE through profit or loss - (48,667)
HERATFEFAERZ Disposal of financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss 19,423 203,233
g1 NG] Acquisitions of subsidiaries 37 - 44,934
HEHE R Disposal of subsidiaries 38 - 74,015
LEME  BERZE Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

TE B TS R plant and equipment 405 1,654
ZRRHIZR SR, () Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 1,167,131 (831,275)
RETERE(FTA) NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)

ReRBFE INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,174,346 (550,541)
BMEED FINANCING ACTIVITY
EARHLE Interest paid (448,144) (150,801)
ERRE Dividend paid - (218,643)
U i FE 1 B b Acquisition of non-controlling interests (22,000) (66,790)
FIRTT R E AR New bank and other borrowings 1,821,393 3,264,292
BB RIT R EAMER Repayment of bank and other borrowings (1,555,372) (1,558,675)
BITEBERBABHIA Proceeds from issuance of senior notes - 148,634
BAZBREITHAR Issuance costs of senior notes (17,267) (13,044)
BEELERE Redemption of senior notes (149,560) (103,709)
KB FEIERR AR R 2 K Contribution from non-controlling

shareholders 59,470 289,143

HENKH AR E D Principal portion of lease payments 39(c) (7,540) (5,748)
MEED (FA) B NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM

RERBFE FINANCING ACTIVITIES (319,020) 1,584,659
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

2022 F 2021
2022 2021

et AR®TR ARBTT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

HeERBASEEBYRLDFE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,491,719) (358,214)
FHEREREASEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,484,290 1,696,868
b BB FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 34,698 145,636
FRESRRESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR 27,269 1,484,290

HeERFASEBYERIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
B RIRTTA Cash and bank balances 25 78,268 2,702,420
B ZBRHIER S Less: Restricted cash (50,999) (1,218,130)
meERenERAMML Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
BekReEED consolidated statement of cash flows 27,269 1,484,290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

ESERBERAR([ARF]) R —FKR
2019¢1H9EME})§B%XE¥% aDE (58
NE)VEREHSIMRIHEREE
RAR e RABIB M EREM IR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
RARARBEBEESE %iﬁﬂﬁuﬁiﬁxa/é‘
FEEB23REET L 19181907

AANBBRMDR2020F1 816 BEFR B
ABRBEAERAR ([BAT]) R LT -

ARRR/REEBRRAR - FR - AR
P B E?EKMEP%)\EA%D!(FEP
BDREDEHAERKRE - ARAES
(EXDRE ARAHNRKRMERE
BABIREREZEBRARAR (ER]) -
MARBERBR SminELE (R
FRE] BEER(ERNRBRELHS
AEMAK)) KRGO mz+ ([BRzt]
fmintf R AR B IRBERTERAR
na)) (s [ ERARR ) -

Huijing Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
9 January 2019 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong is located at Office No. 1907, 19th Floor, Great Eagle
Centre, No. 23 Harbour Road, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16
January 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year,
the Company's subsidiaries were principally engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the ultimate and immediate holding company of the
Company is Wui Ying Holdings Limited (“Wui Ying”, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) and the controlling
shareholders of the Company are Mr. Lun Ruixiang (“Mr. Lun
Ruixiang”, through Wui Ying) and Ms. Chan Hau Wan (“Ms. Chan”,
spouse of Mr. Lun Ruixiang and through Wui Shing Holdings Limited)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”).

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

1. RAEIREEER »#)

ERNERRHNER

ARANEEHBRROFERBOT

BEERERAA
Hai Feng Holdings Limited

REmERIREFHERE
ARDE

Dongguan Huijing Kailun Bay Property
Development Limited

ESSEERARS
Huijing Group Limited

ESEREMERERR DA
Hengyang Huijing Property Development
Limited

SMERFHEERARLDF
Dongguan Huijing Property Development
Company Limited

REmERRBIEERER
ARAR([REERRAAE]

Dongguan Huijing East Automobile
Development Limited ("Dongguan
Huijing East Automobile”)

REMHERYERMERE
BRRAR

Dongguan Jade Peninsula Property
Development Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

MR
BEREL

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

Hong Kong

FRE i
PRC/Mainland China

FREL/ R E A
PRC/Mainland China

FREL/ R E A
PRC/Mainland China

R E/ R E R
PRC/Mainland China

B/ E R

PRC/Mainland China

RE R E i
PRC/Mainland China

CRIZER
SMRAEE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

capital

1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR #1,500,000,000 7T
RMB1,500,000,000

AR 50505051 7T

RMB50,505,051

AR #1,0000007C
RMB1,000,000

AR #30,000,000 7T

RMB30,000,000

AR 10000007
RMB1,000,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

KRR AR
BRERD

Percentage of

TERH

indirect equity
interest
attributable

tothe Company Principal activities

1000 REEKR
100%  Investment holding
100% YR
100%  Property development
100% HRAEAR
100% REZR
Property development
and investment
holding
100%  MEFE
100%  Property development
100%  MERE
100%  Property development
408%"  MERE
408%""  Property development
100%  ¥ERE
100%  Property development

3R 2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

1. REIREEER 2

ERNBEARNEER (&)

AEEEERARRA

Hefei Fuhua Properties Limited

RRERTKBRENRERR
BRAR

Dongyuan Dongjiang River Village Long
He Investment Development Limited

REGREEEREBRAR
Dongyuan Yayuan Property Investment
Limited

REmEBLREHHERAA
Dongguan Haiya Trading Limited

RETRMBHEXBERDA
Dongguan Humen Wanfang Properties
Limited

REERIKBEXERAF
Dongyuan Dongjiang River Village
Properties Limited

EEERERIRERR A

Hengyang Yanhu Eco-tourism Limited

PMHRER(RZ)BERAR
Songsen Furniture (Dongguan)
Company Limited

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited

1.

ued)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Contin

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

MR
WHRELEHEH

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
place of operations

F B E A
PRC/Mainland China

F B E A
PRC/Mainland China

FEL R A
PRC/Mainland China

B, E
PRC/Mainland China

F B E A
PRC/Mainland China

FE/ RN
PRC/Mainland China

B E A
PRC/Mainland China

B/ R A
PRC/Mainland China

CRTLER
HMRAEE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

registered share
capital

AR 150,000,000 7T
RMB150,000,000

AR 50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR #30,000,0007T
RMB30,000,000

AR ¥ 500,0007T
RMB500,000
AR #100,000,000 7T

RMB100,000,000

AR 61,250,000 7T
RMB61,250,000

A K # 5,000,000 7T
RMBS5,000,000

11,000,000 7T
HK$11,000,000

AR AL
REBA L
Percentage of
indirect equity
interest
attributable

to the Company

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
98%

98%

92%
92%

100%

100%

100%
100%

Principal activities

MEFRELRERR

Property development
and investment
holding

ELES

Property development

NER%E

Property development

ES G

Property development

ELES

Property development

MERHE

Property development

MER%E

Property development

NER%E

Property development
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1. RAEIREEER »#)

EHRNBERARNER (&)

RETRRABEXREFRAF"

Dongguan Jiayishi Investment Limited

RRERIEBREERERAA
([FIER])*

Dongyuan Dongjiang River Galleries
Tourism Development Company Ltd.
(‘Dongjiang River Galleries”)

REMmhBESEABRAF
Dongguan Ruicheng Information
Consulting Co,, Ltd.

RE L EFEMERERR DA
Chengdu Lida Real Estate Development
Co. Limited

LB TS EERARAT"
Pujiang Gaoyu Zhongxinhai Real Estate
Co,, Ltd.

BIBERTEEERBERAA™

Pujiang Gaoyu Xinda Real Estate Co,, Ltd.

EETERBEXRRAA
([REE#])™

Fuyang City Xinggang Properties
Company Ltd. ("Fuyang Xinggang’)

HEBEFHEREFRATF
(TR EHHE])

Xichang Shuxin Property Development
Company Limited ("Xichang Shuxin”)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

i) A s
BRREE W

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

RE/ R E R
PRC/Mainland China

R E R E R
PRC/Mainland China

R E/ R E R
PRC/Mainland China

R i
PRC/Mainland China

FRE/ R E R
PRC/Mainland China

R E/ R E R
PRC/Mainland China

RE/ R E R
PRC/Mainland China

B/ HEA

PRC/Mainland China

RITZER ZF’D\EJFE{EF‘Hﬁ

EHHHQZFEE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

capital

AR 50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR #29679950 7T
RMB29,679,950

A K # 500000070
RMBS5,000,000

AR 81632653 7T
RMB81,632,653

AR 40816327 T
RMB40,816,327

AR 16,000,000 7T
RMB16,000,000

AR % 100,000,000 7T
RMB100,000,000

ARH33333333 7L

RMB33,333,333

REBS
Percentage of
indirect equity
interest
attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ESGE:

Property development

100%
100%

100%  MFERE
100%  Property development

00% REHERE

Real estate rental

51%  MERE
51%  Property development

51%  WERE

51%  Property development

51%  MERE
51%  Property development

51%  WER%

51%  Property development

40%  PIERE

40%  Property development

3R 2022 Annual Report
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FRNBARNERN (&)
* REFEZGEEANEERAF -

" RBPEERELAIEBERSE -
G RIEFEERELCATICERDER -

" R B 72 AN 2 [ B (1 o B RS AR A D
R50%KERT  NEBNESRBFE
FIRER M AR TIARN AKX
SENBAR

‘ H R 3% & A A 3 8 A AR ) IE 00 32
XEW RERXEBEHEARRE
EERNEEBSERXAEMESNK -

ERIHEERR/EIEFEAREFA
EEIBERASBEEFERAR D Z
ARBIMBEBAR - EEZRE - JIHEAM
MEBARZHBHESIREBNITE

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

* Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.

A

Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

e Registered as a sino-foreign equity entity under PRC law.

AR

This company is accounted for as subsidiary of the Group because the
Group owns more than half of the voting rights even though the
equity interests in this entity attributable to the Group are less than
50%.

The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate their Chinese
names as they did not register any official English name.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

TESIERABRAT  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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HE2002F1N2ANBILEE A&EE
EEBEFE ARK283389,0007T
HEZBH AEENTEERITREM
BHRURERBLEIEREAEARE
4,634,935,0007C  EF AR
2,411,743,000 7T #& 7 R 2K + = & A A 2
HEE MORRSRESZEEWAA
R 27,269,0007T ° 72022412 A31 8
BREZZELRAMEHRAMEBDER
AEBMIAKERES T BRITREAMSE
RERBEEENAE REMNFEEEA
R¥1,879,0750007T * Bt ZEAREE
RIBREKELDEH  UBMERARITHE
FEF B SR BN RHEEE - Eat B R R
FEBATHEM  AEeYREBN
SEC LR NEESEREM -

EREBER EFCREERAEE
B W& Mz BREDDR+/\(E A &
ReRERB - XRNER T EBEF
BREENELBARBENEE - BE
RESRIEE MEAREE IR
M ANEEDHIE A TSGR

@ ARBE-—EBEFEINZERLIND
XEB NAREERNRERYE
RERTYRHENEE

by AEB-—BEEBRRSERNAENLE
BYRIAXIREARAIL B
SREEBHARRAZEETYE
BHRER UWEEBEINRSAA
R/ SORERSME o bLoh - K&
= 2 B B AR B 15 5 MR BR T
VENEARX RERBDER
REZREAEMEZRRER
54

© AEBILBEGHEREERAD
EBAEHEE TERE MU
EITERE - ASECREAEY
BHRBETERMESS KA
BEMENREREE -

The Group incurred a net loss of RMB2,833,896,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and as of that date, the Group had
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and senior notes
payables in total of RMB4,634,935,000, out of RMB2,411,743,000 will
be due for repayment within the next twelve months, while its
available cash and cash equivalent amounted to RMB27,269,000.
Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Group did not repay
principal and interest payables with an aggregate amount of
RMB1,879,075,000 for certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and senior notes, as a result, such non-repayment has
constituted an event of default and lenders may exercise their rights
to demand immediate repayment. The above conditions indicate
the existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In light of the above, the Directors have carefully considered the
Group's expected cash flow projections not less than 18 months
from the date of reporting period and have given due consideration
to the matters that give rise to material doubt as to its ability to
continue as a going concern. The following plans and measures are
formulated to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
financial position of the Group:

(@)  the Group has been focusing on the completion and delivery
of its property projects as well as the implementation of
measures to accelerate the sale of properties under
development and completed properties;

(b)  the Group has been consolidating resources to optimise its
operations and reducing expenses and capital expenditures,
including to look for partners to jointly develop certain
property development projects to generate additional cash
inflows and/or reduce cash outflows. In addition, the Group
has implemented cost control measures and eliminated
unnecessary capital expenditures to preserve liquidity for on-
going development of its existing property development
projects; and

(c)  the Group is actively in discussion with its existing lenders to
renew and/or refinance the Group's certain borrowings. The
Group has engaged in constructive dialogue with prospective
financiers to explore possible refinancing options.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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EXCEHNMEEERIIAEEERE
HIREE AR 1818 A HHF‘WJ@%@/EE

?ﬁ“H‘J’?)S‘Zi'Fw% Z R Eac & R
CAREBEHREELRETRE

%IEHﬁWTﬁ%XU%WW%E
T-Eit  BEERE - E%?ﬁ%%%
FRAZEGREYBRERTIERE

BEWL  XEEESER LlFE R
BRDEEERTEEE A£ERE
B AL EHBURRAEBE BT
FREETERE REEE S MAEES

@ A REHTERMRNEE
EEBE URERMREEZYE
RERTYMEHEENER &

(b) %E%?fﬁ*hﬁkméiéﬁ/‘}z

TTHRE -
AL EARREER Lt 8 MEHE - Bl
AREEAEERBERE  WAREDLS

B -UKEEBEMRZETKEE
BoEMAREANE - TARELD
B URERDEERFERBDEED
REFHPEARDEELTDER - %
SEEARNTE RN GE MBWE
MR

The Directors have reviewed the cash flow projections of the Group
prepared by the management covering a period of not less than 18
months from the end of the reporting period, they are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above plans and measures, the Group
will be able to adequately fund its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis is
appropriate.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the Group's ability to generate
adequate financing and operating cash flows through the following:

(@)  the successful and timely completion and delivery of its
property projects as well as the implementation of measures
to accelerate the sale of properties under development and
completed properties; and

(b)  the successful renewal and/or refinancing of its certain
borrowings.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets as
current assets and non-current liabilities as current liabilities. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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ZEVBRRDIBREREGFNLE
(BAEFMAE]) RENEBYBER
SEA ([HRMBHRESER] - MR
BEEAMBHREEN  FESHER
(IFEest &) k2B  FEQR
ST RAIREE R BB H 35 FE AR E
8o ZF P MR TIRIBE LA MR
2 ERATEAEZREVERRA
FEFABRZEREERI - ZEM
BHREAARE (AR IR - B
ABERI ERESNEBERED
ZTUH(ARBTIT) °

meERE
BEMBRRBEARRRENB AR
(B AEE]) #HZ=202%12A318
IEFEZHBEHRER - MBRREARAT
BEESHEZEZFINER (RREAELE
) EALEBB2HKEHRME
R AR R RAKRKEEE
ROl BAERENERHEEHR
WIEND(RSAEBERIERNEZER
BHRMBBEIBMNIREERN) &%
£ FREF - BNERS IR HI4E o

—RME AEZHRERNAKER
BEEEtE - ERNRRIEEAEEREE
IPRREHRAZHNE RS AR
Mo EFEEEREREHREAED
B AEESZEMEHRBEFEENG
no B

(@ BEREHREMEREEFAED
BRIRE:

b) HMEHOLHEENERN: &

0 ARENRERLEBERSEE-

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the "HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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FERBIERIE BRI -
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REBERRAER ARIEERERAR
B A R EHIE R R AR
BEE BAEEXNERFARARSEH
WFESEARRIENEERARE  #
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AL EENBREE - AT E
2 T A PORE SR 9 AN R (B R 4G B0 0 4%
MO AEEEEENEHBEERAR
MR —HESHHOEEBRNREEF
(as@Em) -

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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AEEERANFEMERRENFEAT
ISR BB IS RE 2R -

BB I REER B BRI
EREACHEY)

BB gsrEl WE BERAE #EA
F163 (B A) BRBFETE

BB e EH| EELH— BORA
ERIEACHEY

BBA B ER BB ENE R
2018 2004 BBYBRELEANE IR
BER BRMEREENE 6%

HIBERTEHI R BB gaE
A% 415k (B %)

HERARARERETBEMBRELE

U=y

(a)

HERFEWNT :

BBV HHREERFIH BFTAR)
B TE LA 2018 6 6 A B B 75 T s 1
SEZ (S EZE]) MR IR
LRI E R 2515 3R K IE SR
Rt MEFTEANEHELEN -
REBIANBEBYEHREE
BIZE 3gRiB R R HISN - &
BRU2EMSERETEERE
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B EEBVEREEEBEES) -
REOZNAGBELIABE KA
BV HHRELEREIFHERERE
SRR E BT ERIFE 375 sk
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22 MIERLSAESR o BN - 7%
ZBEIAEBRREENKER
BHIHERRER - AEEDY
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The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As
there were no contingent assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities within the scope of the amendments arising in the
business combination that occurred during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from
selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

3R 2022 Annual Report @
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

@ ESZERAMR AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 3

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback *

Insurance Contracts '

Insurance Contracts °

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information ©

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments”) 2*
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”) ?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies !

Definition of Accounting Estimates '

Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction '
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

S No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the

2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

£ An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

3R 2022 Annual Report @



Ar e BT R Y o
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

EXRV B REERF 165 (BETA) 5]
HEH —ABAFEEROEARSZE
EMHEEERTEANSRTE - AER
BH — AAATS@ERERSEER
EEBNTARENEESEE - %55
STARRR2024F 1 A1 B 2 BB
EHBAERN - WEEBHERRIZPER
BT HEHRELEE 1658 E B (B12019
F4ATR) BN ERERRZS 7]
REER - ZFBIABHIgHAE
BB BRREETMNERTE -

BB ENE R (BIIK) BESH
ARBRIERBEEESBBEARB K
RPN T FHIRETCERRS
ERBRESMESLNREATESESR
B BEMNDEIZZERITERENT
EBEEABEMITREEMTZE - ZEB5]
ANBEHRERSEABENEBR - R
2002F  BHA SRS EM02FE
FIAE—BE  RERTHEAMEEDN
BERNH - E PR B Bk 2 Bl
BETHROF SV ERBEIBEARY
SIETRED o AN 2022 B ET AR ESE
EEEEENREHE NRMEARTES
EXRRZERETARZONERE
B HEUBERTHRMEENERED
HAERBIELEIINEE - ZZBETAR
M2024F 1 A1 B sk 2 & 50 FE H
AR WEEBPER - AFiRFIE
F o IRATER 2020 F BT A E RS AR
B FEF 202 F BRI AR RZIR - A&
ERETEZEBITANFEUARER
TZEIREBEERBE - REN LT
it ZEBIAEH TS AEENHG
BRREEAMNEATE -

i
i)
-

\;

i}
\\N

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the
2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an
entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In addition,
the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity that
applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In
addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as

held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

ESIERABR /AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited



NN

AR e I R MY R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

EBESHREEE)
BEEVEKATE NEHEERE
MRS RR B NAKE I Z
AR T /A REN AP EBEM
WHER BRIl E EFELAAZERENE
B o MR EREMIA R MAMER AT
WEEEFENLATE EE28 (RE
mig) BRiEaER /R BEWE S -

RIS HERIL - BB ARBAER RET
M@%Eui BEEFHX (EEHX

BB REER SR ENERT)
Eﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ°$%gﬁu
ABETFEREREND - SLRE
ARmME  REBGEATRENHES
WEHEDREEBRHRAIXEREH1HE
MENAEESERSELEMNRES
EEBMAR MAmAEENEMBE
EXRBEARA I RERSTEMLEMMA
Al e

HEREMEEHEARNAESELE
1&@%@?%&@@%)E’JTH&Z@@%E?Z
E-BHRCELABMN ReELEMAE
E“J) MR E BN REE  BIER
BRI - Bl B R REBERE
BREARATRME -

WEBEsEEREELE N (R
Eiﬁﬁ%ﬁ%”) MBI EBE
HE - AEETE L EMRESREEE
BT EXBERNR BT AZER
REREE EZZEB/ATHENEE
E*ETFﬁﬁHj’iﬁi‘kﬁﬂﬁﬂ{ETﬁ&fﬁﬁé
FEEBEMNAREBMHEEETE -

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(@)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment property under construction will be measured at cost
until such time when fair value can be determined or construction is
completed.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a
self-constructed investment property, any difference between the
fair value of the property at the completion date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20-33.33%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
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Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises Over the lease terms
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office premises (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

Land held for development for sale

The land held for development for sale represents parcels of land
owned by the Group for the purpose of development of properties
for sale. The land held for development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. It is transferred to properties
under development upon commencement of the construction work
of the related property development project.
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Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost,
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs incurred directly attributable to
such properties during the development period, and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings attributable
to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on the
prevailing market conditions.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent computer software, which acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years.
The useful life of software is determined mainly with reference to (i)
maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected future
economic benefits from the software for continuous operations, (ii)
expected usage required from the operations of the Group and the
infrequent change of the software, (i) product life cycles for the
similar software used in the past, and (iv) the period of control over
the software.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, senior notes and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the expected credit loss ("ECL") allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e, removed from the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 90
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

provides benefits which are received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset is transferred over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the
Group's performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it
is significant.

For sales contracts for which the control of the property is transferred
at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
the physical possession and the Group has a present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.
The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent

with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relate. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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Contract costs (Continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are charged to the statement of profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the
revenue to which the related asset is recognised. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors of the Company) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB while the
Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. In the
opinion of the directors, as the Group’s operations are mainly in
Mainland China, the use of RMB as the presentation currency is more
appropriate for the presentation of the Group's results and financial
position. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the financial periods. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management in determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a completed property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention of holding the properties at the early
development stage of the related properties. During the course of
construction, the related properties under construction are
accounted for as properties under development included in current
assets if the properties are intended for sale after their completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment properties
under construction included in non-current assets if the properties
are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the properties
developed for sale are transferred to completed properties held for
sale and are stated at cost, while the properties developed to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to investment
properties and are subject to revaluation at each reporting date.
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Judgements (Continued)
Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the Group's
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
through sale is rebutted.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 was RMB168,839,000 (2021:
RMB168,962,000). Further details are included in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
disclosed below:

Impairment review for properties under development,
completed properties held for sale and land held for
development for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
estimated net realisable value is the estimated selling price less
selling expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information. The land held
for development for sale is initially stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated.

The Group has engaged an external valuer to perform a valuation of
the Group's properties under development, completed properties
held for sale and land held for development for sale as at the end of
the reporting period to assess if the net realisable values of these
assets are lower than their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of properties under development, completed
properties held for sale and land held for development for sale at 31
December 2022 were RMB3,622,833,000 (2021: RMB3,388,502,000),
RMB1,262,412,000 (2021: RMB872,569,000) and RMB1,823,722,000
(2021: RMB1,710,951,000), respectively.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As certain
matters relating to the income taxes have not yet been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgements based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of corporate income tax payables at 31
December 2022 was RMB774,357,000 (2021: RMB726,907,000).
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period
in which the differences realise. The carrying amount of provision for
land appreciation tax at 31 December 2022 was RMB675,357,000
(2021: RMB637,404,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment properties
and investment properties under construction, are revalued at the
end of the reporting period based on the appraised market value
provided by independent professional valuers. Such valuations are
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information from current prices in
an active market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting date.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the fair value
include those related to estimated rental values with reference to
the current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, appropriate rental growth rates, discount rates, long
term vacancy rates, occupancy rates and capitalisation rates.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2022
was RMB1,596,000,000 (2021: RMB1,786,900,000). Further details are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

The Group is principally engaged in one single operating segment,
i.e, the property development and investment business. Accordingly,
no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information by operating segment is presented as
the Group’s revenue from the external customers is derived solely
from its operations in Mainland China and more than 90% of the
non-current assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.
Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors, the presentation of
geographical information would provide no additional useful
information to the users of these financial statements.

Information about major customers

During year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of RMB9,200,000
(2021: Nil) was derived from sale of a property in the PRC with a
single external customer.
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5. Yz Hittr A R Yz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
@ AEEKRZISTAT (@  Ananalysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARE T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Y Revenue
KEEFEFE LR Mz Revenue from contracts with customers
R EEE Sale of properties in the PRC 69,070 5,305,367
2K 8 E it KR B W Revenue from other sources
e WA Bz Gross rental income 16,823 3,923
85,893 5,309,290
REEFEFAHHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(@ WmERBH (a) Disaggregated revenue information
FIEREREFPAEANKEE All revenue from contracts with customers are
X —RHEE®ER - recognised at a point in time.
TRETNREHARNETRER The following table shows the amount of revenue

HAFTA DR EH RS S
BRI RO E
Wi

REFFABKHE
B R S

(EL))

recognised in the current year that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period and recognised from performance obligations
satisfied in present periods:

2021 5
2021
ARBTT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®T
RMB’000

Revenue recognised that was
included in contract liabilities

at the beginning of the year:

YR HE

Sale of properties

51,804 1,842,116

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

5. Uz - U AR RES )

REEFEHNHWE (&)
b) BHEE

BERASEROEENERSAL
LI

Y EHE
EPESCEBIVENEYRS
FEEBETERNET-

RNRANBASEREHRTEOEE
MEHNHESRR

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property is
obtained by the customer.

The contracted sales amounts allocated to the remaining
performance obligations as at 31 December are as follows:

2021 4
2021
ARBFT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®T
RMB’000

TEHER R KRN SR Amounts expected to be
recognised as revenue:
—FRA Within one year 995,916 2,300,015
—F1& After one year 1,442,024 95,775
2,437,940 2,395,790

ERTEHNEENANHEE
THREHRRNHEEYE —FRER
RE HPBAOBEEERWE
NEIT-FMEEMOEZHRTE
HNEENGHNHES BN —
Emﬁﬁuuﬁrl&ﬁn t%&ﬁ%m%
BATBIEXRHREAE -

The contracted sales amounts allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
as revenue after one year relate to the sale of properties, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within
two years. All the other contracted sales amounts allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

R 2022 Annual Report @
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BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

5. Uz - Hittr AR W= (2) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
(b) 7&K EH MK A RIS H S AT a0 (b)  An analysis of the Group's other income and gains is as
™ follows:
2022 2021 4
2022 2021
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Habh g A R W25 Other income and gains
HEREB QRN F5E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net - 82,419
AT ER A& Dividend income from financial assets

SREERRBWA at fair value through profit or loss 3,034 6,207
M—REBEDEEFAFEUW A Interest income of a loan to a joint venture 15,951 13,034
RITFBYA Bank interest income 24,902 14,449
RUWIE® Forfeiture of deposits 415 679
HEME  BERZHEER Gain on disposal of items of property,

EollE plant and equipment 288 84
g BB B IR W e Gain on redemption of senior notes 54,523 =
HAit Others 7,075 7,240

106,188 124112

6. BFTERA 6. FINANCE COSTS
MRS AT An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

2022 20214

2022 2021

ARBTRT ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEBERNE Interest on lease liabilities 1,883 306
IRIT R HMERFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 333,383 178,953
BEEEF B Interest on senior notes 123,986 136,427
WamaHNEENT ERX Interest expense arising from revenue contracts 4,717 5,599
463,969 321,285
B BAREFE Less: Interest capitalised (264,872) (170,484)
199,097 150,801

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

7. BR%iAT(EHE) EF 7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEENBRB A (BB), 55 D8 (G The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after (credit)/
A)/HBRIAT S IBEER - charging:
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
HfaF ARBTRT AREBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B EMHEKAR Cost of properties sold 65,462 3,629,596
ISR EME Direct operating expenses (including
EEMEELERY repairs and maintenance) arising on
(BEHERRER) rental-earning investment properties 13,495 12,808
W - BERERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13 7,199 6,020
FHEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(c) 7,555 4752
mI & EEE Amortisation of intangible assets" 16 1,506 1,855
WomGTEE ] #EFE Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value :
FEAZEUE SR T Land held for development for sale 676,395 =
R Properties under development 845,573 =
BIELENERTYME Completed properties held for sale 335,930 =
1,857,898 -
BATEGFABRZZ Changes in fair value of financial assets at
TRIEENQAFEEZH fair value through profit or loss* 129,260 85,530
Wt AGTEHEAMES  Lease payments not included in the
HEMK measurement of lease liabilities 15(c) 396 1,464
1% BLAD BN Auditor's remuneration 5,000 4,700
EERAMAX Employee benefit expense (including
(BREZEEHM (A2E8)) ©  directors' remuneration (note 8)):
e A NREYER Salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind 122,564 191,461
VARG #E 45 B A B IR A 7 =2 Equity-settled share option expense 7,266 15,751
RN 5T 2 3 a Pension scheme contributions* 9,053 14,023
B ORI R Less: Forfeited contributions (4,581) =
134,302 221,235
b = RFE Foreign exchange differences, net 10,078 2,861
8 FFAGEBRROITHRASL] - 9 Included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

* PAGEERRNEMmRAL] - o Included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
e MEE R HASE (EREE) e There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as
RRBEERBHFKT - the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

R 2022 Annual Report @
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BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

8. EENRERSITHAEEM
FREFERRETHRABHFMNRE L
W%EEJJ BB R BRIMEGIZE 383(1)(@) ~ (b) *

OMNIERAR (BEESFZER) B
H'J?ﬁz*ﬁ{’ﬁ.ﬂﬁ% °

ZEMBRRNPBHRRTEBNZEF
EEZAMFHMEIIMT -

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation.

The remuneration of each of these directors as recorded in the
financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out below:

2022 & 2021 4F

2022 2021

AR T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

we Fees 1,169 1,119
HE e - Other emoluments:

Fe BN EYEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,784 6,989

BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 20 324

J«XH%E HEEREREMS Equity-settled share option expense 3,227 6,087

RIS FT B R Pension scheme contributions 230 204

10,261 13,604

11,430 14,723

RBEFE BETESRERERTER
FERAEEREOREBEARAE
IR AFEBEERBRERTS (TE W
34) ERERE BRAE—PHEBIER
RABHREMES - A SERENR
FE(RFEEPENIERRAER) R
L HBEE  BAFERBHRER AR

CHEEBRBRELNEERESITTHRAE
%MH%W

In prior years, certain directors and the chief executive officer were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as defined in note 34) of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration
disclosures.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

8. EERESITHRAESHM =

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

i

(a) BIAFHTEE (a) Independent non-executive directors
FAMBYIATESTZIAOME The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
ST the year were as follows:

2022 2021 %
2022 2021
AR®BTRT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBZT Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna 398 373
ARBEEA Mr. Hung Wan Shun Stephen 398 373
IR 22 & Ms. Lin Yanna 373 373
1,169 1,119
Htat - Notes:
MM 7 2022F 12 AR BHEAR Ms. Lin Yanna resigned as a director of the company on 9 December
NG 2022.
FAMEEAMEN B IERITE There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
E2E Qo215 - &) o non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

3R 2022 Annual Report
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BLZ20224F 12 A 31 HILFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

8. EENRESITHAEEM 2

(b) BITEE —BHITESER
RETBAER

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director

e DY

RAR HEN EihE
BNEN BERA  BRERX aEIfR A
Salaries, Equity-

allowances settled Pension
and benefits Discretionary  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
ARBTRT ARETRE ARETRT AR®TR ARB®TR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

2022F 2022
HITEE: Executive directors:
BT E Mr. Lun Zhaomnin - 1,809 - 885 58 2,752
BhELE Mr. Lu Peijun - 1,458 10 885 52 2,405
BRREE Mr. Luo Chengyu - 1,403 10 84 52 1,549
- 4,670 20 1,854 162 6,706
FHTES: Non-executive director:
(Gt Mr. Lun Ruixiang - 2,114 - 1,373 68 3,555
- 6,784 20 3,227 230 10,261
2021 F 2021
HIEE: Executive directors:
fmREA LA Mr. Lun Zhaoming = 1823 = 1571 15 3409
ENEEE Mr. Lu Peijun = 1456 183 1571 56 3266
BRERAE Mr. Luo Chengyu
(Hizta) (note (i) = 1,249 141 237 56 1,683
AEBESE Mr. Lau Kam Kwok
(HizE0) Dickson (note (i) - 414 = 263 6 683
= 494 34 3642 133 9,041
FHTES: Non-executive director:
ik kA Mr. Lun Ruixian = 2047 = 2445 71 4563
g
= 6,989 34 6,087 204 13604
Bt - Notes:
(i) BISBELEER2021F587HE () Mr. Lau Kam Kwok Dickson resigned as a director of the

EARRBESE -

iy ZEBREXER2021F5878%
ZAEBEARRES -

FAMBERTLLHRENLR
BIEATFE -

Company on 7 May 2021.

(i) Mr. Luo Chengyu was appointed as a director of the Company
on 7 May 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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9.

hEEaEHmMES
FRNAEAGRTINEERE=-"2E=S
Q021 F : =8&) » HEMFBHN Lt
B mEMES R TR (2021F : W
B)RFEARNBESNIIERARRZEST
BABMESEHHEERAFEENTM
HBET

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2021: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2021: two) highest paid employees who are neither
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2021 €
2021
ARBFIT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®T
RMB’000

e EMNREYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,017 5,580
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 10 4178
VAR #E #5 M B AR R 2 Equity-settled share option expense 738 570
RIREETEI K Pension scheme contributions 118 49

3,883 10,377

FHNFUATHENGFEERHMHE
BABMT :

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

2022 F 2021

2022 2021

2,000,001 78 7T & 2,500,000 78 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 =
4,000,001 78 7T & 4,500,000 7 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
8,000,001 78 7T £ 8,500,000 78 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 - 1
2 2

RBEFE  ETHEERFEHITH
ABZERSFMEERRFRNAKE LR
WAV IRTS R B A - BRI — 5F
BENERA M BHRERM T4 - ZFBK
BHOAFE(REBMEANBRRAE
RIRBEHEREE  BAFEN KR
RAFMBEEOAALMIFES RIER
BITBABRZ&=HMESHMBER -

In prior years, share options were granted to certain non-directors
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amounts included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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10.

FriSHip X

AEBARAEEKREARERELEE
PAERLT% B AR B A A ST 15 0 i A 3R
EREELNAEH - REREFER
RBRAZBERNMER  AEERFE
ERELRBRAHSEMKINER
EAGMEAAEN -

HRAEERNFALEETBEEEN
FERBUREF - BUF AW EE BB IS
TR (2021 F « #|) - REFERFEA
b 58 1) BT B A B B 3% 25% 15 K (2021
F 1 25%) BN R Bl D SEFTISHL o

AP E R IR T EE R EILR
HEE 2R 300% = 60% B - BN SE & ¥ AT
SRERAIIIRASY - BF LR -
BRAAREMMERERST - AEH
EREFREERGERERTHAR
E AT RRBEERG AR R L EE
TR - P LIS EFR B E AR
R E RERERRAE -

0. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the
entities within the Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2021: Nil). Subsidiaries of the Group operating
in Mainland China are subject to the PRC CIT at a rate of 25% (2021:
25%).

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated and included in taxation a provision for PRC
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax

laws and regulations. The PRC LAT provision is subject to the final
review and approval by the local tax bureau.

2022 & 2021 &
2022 2021
AREBTRT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BOER : Current:
FEMEMSRH PRC CIT 35,993 250,574
AR 3B E R (M 37) PRC LAT (note 31) 50,140 234,553
86,133 485,127
PEIE (B3 32) Deferred (note 32) (58,294) 66,641
FAMIEZ LB Total tax charge for the year 27,839 551,768

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

10. FiSHFAYX (& 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
FEARARRE 7( 57%( Bt & A RIFTTE A A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit
EREBNEEBREFENREA (B before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the
B,/ aMHBEBMERAY  BFR Company and most of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
MR HEROT - expense for the year are as follows:
2022 F 2021 %
2022 2021
AR®TRT ARKTE
RMB’000 RMB'000
B AT (E518), = 5 (Loss)/profit before tax (2,806,057) 1,102,164
R EDEEEHE Tax at the PRC statutory income tax rate
FHEMHREA (701,514) 275,541
EEREN—REE P Profits or losses attributable to joint ventures
FE(ER T, B 1R and an associate (951) (5,075)
HARUA Income not subject to tax (18,870) (8,584)
Al AEMB R Expenses not deductible for tax 445,722 31,342
RIERTIREE Tax losses not recognised 265,847 82,629
T b IBE T B Provision for LAT 50,140 234,553
TR ER RIS E Tax effect on LAT (12,535) (58,638)
MIA Tax charge 27,839 551,768
HE202F12A31BIEFEZHhE The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting to
BEhEREMOHIERARKI464,0007T RMB1,464,000 (2021: RMB6,766,000) for the year ended 31 December
(2021 + AR #6,766,00070) * 5T A 4R 2022, is included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures” in
EERRPHN[DEHEECERNRE the consolidated profit of loss.
Bl
1. g2 11. DIVIDENDS
2022 F 2021 4
2022 2021
ARTR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BREAREHRE — & Proposed final — Nil
(2021 4F : BIREMAR 2488 Ml)  (2021: HK2.48 cents per ordinary share) - 106,351
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12. BARIHAE AEBLER (5

B) &

BREA (BB BNSBENDERETR
AEBEAEBEBEFTFAEBEBARE
2,452,694,0007C (20214 : FARIEA A
FE A5 & 5 R A R ¥ 256,140,000 7T) &
FABBTTER Z MEFH &K
5,254,000,000 i& (2021 £ : 5,254,000,000
B) RTE -

SIREAREH (FR),/ BT ERIA
TRBHH

(&#8) &7
AR EERERREE
(&18), BNz BRAEEA

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent of
RMB2,452,694,000 (2021: profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent of RMB256,140,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 5,254,000,000 (2021: 5,254,000,000) in issue
during the year.

The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are
based on:

2022 & 2021 £

2022 2021

AR®T R
RMB’000

ARETTT
RMB'000

(Loss)/earnings
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
parent, used in the basic and diluted (loss)/

FEAE (B518), i 7 earnings per share calculation (2,452,694) 256,140
g g
Number of shares
2022 F 2021 6
2022 2021
% 17 Shares
ARETEERER Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(E518), /BRI ZFRAB BT inissue during the year used in the basic
38 A% Y D 15 85 (loss)/earnings per share calculation 5,254,000,000  5,254,000,000
e g TR Effect of dilution — weighted average number
FE of ordinary shares:
AR Share options - 136,451
Rt E SR E Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(JEETE)/@*' ZFRNE#ET in issue during the year used in the diluted
LB AR B I HE T EX (loss)/earnings per share calculation 5,254,000,000  50254,136,451

HRARRBRENTEESREND F
BmE ALAFESRBEIERES
PREARERER -

Because the exercise price of the Company's share options was
higher than the average market price for shares, the diluted loss per
share is same as basic loss per share during the year.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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13. W% - BERRE

2022512 A31H

31 December 2022

BEMEREE

Leasehold
improvements
AR¥T R
RMB’000

HRE HER
WAERE
Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
AR%T R
RMB'000

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Motor
vehicles
AR%T R
RMB’000

Total
AR¥T
RMB'000

R202F1 818 : At 1 January 2022:

B Cost 16,555 64,840 29,481 110,876

2iHiTE Accumulated depreciation (2,709) (15,645) (23,451) (41,805)

IREFE Net carrying amount 13,846 49,195 6,030 69,071
R20261 818 At 1 January 2022, net of

BINKR2FHTE accumulated depreciation 13,846 49,195 6,030 69,071
RE Additions 5,283 1,386 - 6,669
HE Disposals (15) (398) (898) (1,311)
FRIERE (F1:F7)  Depreciation provided during the

year (note 7) (2,461) (3,210) (1,528) (7,199)

IE 5 R Exchange realignment - 6 - 6
R2022%F12 A31H At 31 December 2022, net of

BRI E accumulated depreciation 16,653 46,979 3,604 67,236
R202%F12 8318 At 31 December 2022:

B Cost 21,823 63,911 22,947 108,681

ESEiE= Accumulated depreciation (5,170) (16,932) (19,343) (41,445)

REFE Net carrying amount 16,653 46,979 3,604 67,236

3R 2022 Annual Report
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pml]]]

13. Y% - BENRE @) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
MEMEEE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold eljile Motor
improvements equipment vehicles
ARETTT AREBFT ARBFTT AREBFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2021F12A31H 31 December 2021
R20211 A1 8 ¢ At 1 January 2021:
R Cost 16,373 55,748 28994 101,115
2iiTE Accumulated depreciation (1975) (11,890) (21,920) (35,785)
REFE Net carrying amount 14,398 43,858 7,074 65,330
R21E1 818 At 1 January 2021, net of
BNk 2T E accumulated depreciation 14,398 43858 7074 65,330
WM B AR (Bat37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = 782 = 782
NE Additions 1,39 8,582 919 10,897
He Disposals (870) (268) (432) (1,570)
HEMBE AR (B5£38)  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (344) - - (344)
FERFERE (H:F7)  Depreciation provided during the
year (note 7) (734) (3,755) (1,531) (6,020)
EE Y, 3 2 Exchange realignment - ) = @)
R2021%F 124318 At 31 December 2021, net of
TNk 2T E accumulated depreciation 13,846 49,195 6,030 69,071
R2021%F 128318 : At 31 December 2021:
A Cost 16,555 64,840 29481 110,876
2EHITE Accumulated depreciation (2,709) (15,645) (23451) (41,805)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,846 49,195 6,030 69,071

ESZERAMR AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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14. IREWME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B2%RT T
REWE REW*
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20211 A1 BHEEREE  Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 521,300 912,600 1,433,900
IR BB B R R (K aE37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) = 162,427 162,427
NE Additions - 91,716 91,716
&K B A (A 38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) (28,900) (43,000) (71,900)
N ERE Fair value adjustments (35,100) 205,857 170,757
R2021F 128318 K& Carrying amount at 31 December 2021
202241 A1 HMERMEIE and 1 January 2022 457,300 1,329,600 1,786,900
nNE Additions - 54,954 54,954
N EFE Fair value adjustments (87,900) (157,954) (245,854)
720229 12 A31 BHY Carrying amount at 31 December 2022
BREE 369,400 1,226,600 1,596,000

AEBHREMEUAPEARL - K
Q02F12A3IBRBRIEES ER
f&i 18 B Hongkong Jincheng Surveyors
Limited ([HIS]) (2021 F : HhE BT
FERBEABRAT ([REBT)))E
THEEER A ARKI,596000000
JC (2021 & : AR ¥51,786,900,0007T) °

20225128318 AEBREARE
A AR #1,199,579,000 7 (2021 4F © )
HE TIREMECERR  UERE T
AEBENETRTREAMER M
29) ©

AFEER

HZE2002F 2021 F12A3BIEFE -
AEBEREMETIFERENTA] B R
ABR(BE=F)ETAFEFTE -

EXZRR MAERATEFEZREY
¥EEERSLRERE -

NAFE  F—HAEE_HRZEITED
FEFEERE  TEBEASBELE =R
NEEEE (20214 : )

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on valuations
performed by Hongkong Jincheng Surveyors Limited (“HJS") (2021:
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
an independent professionally qualified valuers, at RMB1,596,000,000
(2021: RMB1,786,900,000).

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,199,579,000 (2021:Nil)
was pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted
to the Group (note 29).

Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair value
measurements of the Group’s investment properties used significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that are
measured at fair value, the properties have been used in their

highest and best use.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2021: Nil).
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14. REWE®) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
NEEBHK (&) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
AT AT ABERITOBEERIZEY Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
EEEMNEEH AZE the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
hER EXFTEERAYE MEF I
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Weighted average
2022% 201 F
2022 2021
EEREME
Investment properties under construction
TE WAE e BE(BYIRREA) AR¥TIZEN6n ARESZE1367T
Retail Income approach Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB77-116 RMB55-136
REZEX (%) 5-10 3
Long term vacancy rate (%) 5-10 3
BER{LZ () 4.25-5 455
Capitalisation rate (%) 4.25-5 45-5
B BRREREE REI#E-FTU5AEE AR¥780 7 NG
Hotel Discounted cash flow approach  Average daily room rate in the first year of completion RMB780 RMB880
BEHSERE %) 5 3
Stabilised rental growth rate (%) 5 3
BE AEX ) 70 70
Stabilised occupancy rate (%) 70 70
BB (o) 78 8
Discount rate (%) 7.8 8

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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14.

REWE #)
NFEREK (&)

CRIRENE

fhER

Valuation technique

Completed investment properties

TE
Retail

fEEf
Car parking space

HRAEREEA

Discounted cash flow approach

WA

Income approach

WA

Income approach

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

EXTURERAYE

Significant unobservable inputs

bt EeBE(BYIARER)

Estimated rental value (per sq.m.and per month)

BERSERE®)
Stabilised rental growth rate (%)

BB & (%)
Discount rate (%)

b2 EE(BFAXREA)

Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month)

RHEEZ %)

Long term vacancy rate (%)

BAILE (o)

Capitalisation rate (%)

fbitEeEE(BRELREA)

Estimated rental value (per lot and per month)

REAZZE X (%)

Long term vacancy rate (%)

EA(CR ()

Capitalisation rate (%)

¥R

Weighted average

20225
2022

AR¥747
RMB74

6.5
6.5

AR®B74T
RMB74

10
10

4.25
4.25

2001 5
2021

AR T
RMBO1

ARE9ITL
RMBY7

325-475
325-475

ARE188TT
RMB188
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DN ERBRE)

RIEFRRSREZE X FEDHEAR
REMAMAENNENEEBREEDN
FH(BRBERNRKEE) £1TMAR -
RIEE RN EEEN —ERRDR
EFEA - MBITERR R ERNERR
TnE  WEEZEERBERATIRD
RE BERaX-REBFEETHBH
MBI o

BeRnENFERERANR LA
BREmESRS BEREHEE
e ERSBHEEMHRE - FEENF
BRERXMSTA(RYERMNN—@E
RiE) e e - EMReRERBIA
HEZ=E  FrkEFE - KEEE -
HEEE #EER KENASER
REMEEMERF A - % — &7
EHEERAFRE  BRET NS
REFHSKEEMGLFESE BRER
=00

REBWAE - BETDREHRBEEOM
SHSWAFETABERCET - L@
EERMENERKREEN  H2EM
BRALBRHHET  ERERIED
AEIARR R 5 - 303 KRR
ER-

EHEEEEREL FHEREBAR
B R S EHR AN E AT EAR
B R RERER  BEERE
A REBAEL N, W BEHITE
WEATEAERD B0 -

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flows in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and
outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment. The
appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period,
is then discounted.

Under the income approach, valuations are based on the
capitalisation of net rental income derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the properties or made with reference to comparable market
transactions and with consideration of adjustments to reflect
differences in transaction timing, location and tenure.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value and the
rental growth per annum in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties. A
significant increase/decrease in the long term vacancy rate, the
discount rate and the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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15. fHE

AEEERHEA

AEERELERMABRRERMIEM

A% HEMNTF2E10F -

(a)

(b)

15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in its
operations, which have lease terms between 2 to 10 years.

FRAEEE (@) Right-of-use assets
RAFE REBHNERAEEE The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and
FREIEREZHHOT the movements during the year are as follows:

0 35 B
Office premises
2022 F 2021 4
2022 2021
ARTR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1A1H At 1 January 2,010 6,684
NE Additions 34,000
REEFEZH Depreciation charged during the year (7,555) (4,752)
ME H 38 B Exchange realignment (15) 78
®12A31H At 31 December 28,440 2,010
HESE (b) Lease liabilities
RAFE AEBHHEE i3 The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and the
HERZEHWOT movements during the year are as follows:
2022 £ 2021 4
2022 2021
ARBTR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1 A1 EMEEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,012 7,297
FEE New leases 34,000 =
RARFE R T FLE Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 1,883 306
INEN Payment (7,540) (5,748)
M 58 2 Exchange realignment 22 157
K12 A31 BREREE Carrying amount at 31 December 30,377 2,012
DT Analysed into:
mENE Current portion 5,162 1,933
ERBE D Non-current portion 25,215 79
HEBBZIHMBITREE Y The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 46

BRI T 46 3K FE -

to the consolidated financial statements.
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15. HE (&)
AEBEABEAE)
() WMEENEZERANSILT :

15. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

2022 & 2021 4
2022 2021

AR®BTRE AR®ETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEBGBANE Interest on lease liabilities 1,883 306
FREEEITESH (MiF7) Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

IR E B S B Ex

(note 7) 7,555 4,752
pense relating to short-term leases and

ZBI#ERZEHEER other leases with remaining lease terms
HmAERBRX ended on or before the end of the
GrATTERX) (Fat7) reporting period (included in
administrative expenses) (note 7) 396 1,464
REERERNERE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 9,834 6,522

(d MEBRSTHAENGEMER
R FE39Q)HEE o

AEBERHEA

REBBELCEHERHEEREYHE
(H3E14)  BREMATPEO=ZIHEEY
¥ AKRBERFABRBHESBABA
R #16,823,0007T (2021 F : AR¥
3,923,0007T) * BREAFFIBE NGRS M5 H
FMIEES ©

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 39(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of
three commercial properties in the PRC under operating lease
arrangements. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB16,823,000 (2021: RMB3,923,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

@ JESZERRABR/ARF  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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15. #HE @) 15. LEASES (Continued)
AEBEAHBAE) The Group as a lessor (Continued)
DA & A EE TR R R REE R The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-
He@BEMT - cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2022 £ 2021 4
2022 2021
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F R Within one year 15,555 16,703
—FRERMFA After one year but within two years 15,896 16,731
WEEBLER=ZFR After two years but within three years 9,371 15,706
= FREREFA After three years but within four years 7,059 8,800
NEZERAFA After four years but within five years 3,096 6,642
hFE After five years 6,606 8417
RS 2% Total amount rental receivables 57,583 72,999
M2022F 124318 ASERED R At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group'’s right of rental income
BANREEE6471,0007T (20214 : ) H with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB6,471,000 (2021: Nil) was
T HeWEEEERR  NERERT pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
AEEMHE TR T R E A E 5 (M 5E Group (note 29).
29) o
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16. BB E 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4
Software
2022 & 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARBTr ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REA At the beginning of the year:
AR Cost 15,776 15218
Rt Accumulated amortisation (9,455) (7,600)
BREDFE Net carrying amount 6,321 7,618
REL] - LR Rt At the beginning of the year, net of
accumulated amortisation 6,321 7618
NE Additions 282 558
FREERE(WE7) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 7) (1,506) (1,855)
RER - KMk Rt At the end of the year, net of accumulated
amortisation 5,097 6,321
RER At the end of the year:
PR 7R Cost 16,058 15,776
BT Accumulated amortisation (10,961) (9,455)
BREDFE Net carrying amount 5,097 6,321

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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17. REBELENRE

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2022 F 2021 4

2022 2021

AR T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

PIEEEFE Share of net assets 276,352 290,660
DERMEE EMNER Receivables from joint ventures

BEDHENIE classified as current assets 378,604 160,256

R2022F 128318 BIW—REEBE
¥ KA A R ¥ 378,604,000 7T (2021 4F
AR ¥ 160,256,000 7T ) A K I IR F|
RE (20214 1 6.18%) 5 B - WAEMK12
MAREE -

EHEEBEER2EAEER L B
MARSEYERZIBE BNABEABERY
FIE - RABBEEEME BEERE
& R R VE 8 B A I B 3R R 17 O B R 2R
OB TER - WREIN—REEDHE
RRBGFEOREN G aESE -
2022 & 2021F 128318 AR A
EERR BEBEBRTAEM -

As at 31 December 2022, receivable from a joint venture of
RMB378,604,000 (2021: RMB160,256,000), which is unsecured, bears
interest at the rate of nil (2021: 6.18%) per annum and is repayable
within 12 months.

The ECLs are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group and the amount
payable to the relevant contractors for the Group's property
development projects. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. There was no recent history of default and past due
amounts for the receivable from a joint venture. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

R 2022 Annual Report @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B2 20224 12 H31 A 1L JZ For the year ended 31

/435
(A5

17. REEBELEMNRE
AEEY SECLEHENT -

AR AR RA
Registered and
paid-up capital

HERRRHERARLR"

Hunan Development Gaoxin Properties

AR 1960784007
RVB196,078,400

Company Limited**
REMENEHBARDA" AR 100000007
Dongguan Nanfangjuan Textile Limited** RMB10,000,000
BHNEREREFARAF" AR 300000007
Xuzhou Huijing Jiacheng Properties RMB30,000,000
Company Limited*
HiaT -

NERBERERARBRMERE -

* RETBEZERELRANERRAF

BN ZE R R &M E R ER MR
NEWE WEEXELEBIAARAE
EERNEEBSERXAHMESRK -

TREAAEETBENERZEED
K EBBMIEER

December 2022

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows:

EATED

Percentage of
MR EBEE FEEER REE  EHER TEED

Place of registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit
and business interest power sharing Principal activity
e/ hERY 4%% 49% 49% nERE
PRC/Mainland China 49% 49% 49%  Property development
E/RERY 50% 50% 50% nERY
PRC/Mainland China 50% 50% 50%  Property development
e/ RER, 50% 50% 50% ELGE
PRC/Mainland China 50% 50% 50%  Property development
Notes:

The above joint ventures are indirectly held by the Company.

*

Registered as a domestic limited liability company under PRC law.

The English name of these companies represents the best effort made
by management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese
name as it did not register any official English name.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of
the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DA EBELEFE R T Share of the joint ventures' profit for the year 4,392 20,299
DMEEELELEKRABRE Share of the joint ventures’ total
comprehensive income 4,392 20,299
REBREGELEREN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
BRmAE investment in joint ventures 276,352 290,660

ESZERAMR AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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17. REEEENRE®) 17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
NEEELEGRMNESEHEEERA The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
AMEBENEEBISEEZSEEDLE ajoint venture Xuzhou Huijing Jiacheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd. because
FeELs  BASEN EREHAEZ the share of losses of the joint venture exceeded the Group's interest
EECENEINEGE  AEAEEE K in the joint venture and the Group has no obligation to take up
IR MZEELENEEGOE - K further losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of
SEAXFERBHORERDGZEE losses of this joint venture for the current year and cumulatively were
rEEBSEI R AAR 75320007 RMB7,532,000 (2021: RMB21,034,000) and RMB28,566,000 (2021
(2021 F : AR#¥21,03400070) B A R#E RMB21,034,000), respectively.

28,566,000 7T (2021 4F : A R ¥ 21,034,000
TT) °
18. R—RBELENRE 18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
2022 F 2021 5
2022 2021
AR¥T R ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
DIHEEFE Share of net assets 1,648 2,235
REBBEDEFHBOT : Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows:
HATEHED
Percentage of
R ES S L FiakfEz RE EhEF FEEH
Place of
registration and Ownership Voting Profit
business interest power sharing Principal activity
Bk THEFEXFRDA R 27.5% 27.5% 275% MERE
Qionglai Xindayu Real Properties PRC/Mainland China 27.5% 27.5% 27.5% Property development
Company Limited**
Htet - Notes:
* RIBEFRBOEEELRRNERRAA © @ Registered as a domestic limited liability company under PRC law.
¢ AR % A B I 8 33 A ] 1F =X /9 25 3¢ o The English name of this company represents the best effort made by
i MEEXEBIARRAER management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese name
ERNEZEBZEPXEEMGER - as it did not register any official English name.
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18. R—FBELENIRE &) 18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
THEEAAEMTBEREAZBLH

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group's

EZHMBER associate that is not individually material:
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARBTRT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DB E R EFEBE Share of the associate’s loss for the year (587) (3,265)
DL E XD HEBEARE Share of the associate’s total
comprehensive loss (587) (3,265)
REBR —RBEDERE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
MR 2E investment in an associate 1,648 2,235
19. FH{ERA M H S L i 19. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARBTR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHREE Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 1,710,951 1,657,879
NE Additions 789,166 675,689
EE SR EYE Transfer to properties under development - (615,492)
Rk 2= 0] B3R R E Write-down to net realisable value (676,395) =
HEWB AR (ME38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) - (7,125)
FRIEMEAE Carrying amount at the end of the year 1,823,722 1,710,951
TEH R IER & ERIPA Current portion expected to be recovered
U 5] 9 BN EA B 5> within normal operating cycle (381,000) (1,113,137)
JEENHAEE Non-current portion 1,442,722 597,814

R2022F 128318 AEBEZ2HEE@AR
BB ARM-364920007T (20215 : AR
#5 986,818,000 7T ) AR VE R B LA I &
ETEHEERIE AR TFAE
B ME T IRITREME K (HEE29) o

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s land held for
development for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB836,492,000 (2021: RMB986,818,000) was pledged to secure
certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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20. 1EEWE

BFHREREEBHKREE

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

2021 €
2021
ARBFIT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®T
RMB’000

Properties under development expected to be

ERYE recovered within normal operating cycle:

—F K Within one year 621,000 2,180,734

— &% After one year 3,001,833 1,207,768
3,622,833 3,388,502

R2022F12A31H AEEBZRE#&
B A AR10139060007T (20214F © A
R #1,45510400070) M&E THEEDEDS
B UERR TAEENE TRT
K E AR (M aE29) ©

21. HELHENES R ITYE
R2022F 12831 AEBZRE#£
EA AR 214547000 7T (20215 : AR
#5850,6150007T) W& TRIEHEME
B TYESERE  UERERTAEE
B A T ERTT R E A8 3k (FRE29) »

22, E 5 EWERFR

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,013,906,000 (2021: RMB1,455,104,000) was pledged to secure
certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

21. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB214,547,000
(2021: RMB850,615,000) was pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2022 2021 4

2022 2021

AR® T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5 RERR Trade receivables 21,572 37,497
VERIERE L] Impairment allowance (642) -
20,930 37,497

B2 RUERTIE MR HE E £ M R YR
Ko MERBRERTPEREBEER

195 7% BO R RS AY © AN SR B 7SR HR UK
JE W BR SRR $5 BR AR 42 6] - B B 5 R e
BEEEREX -

Trade receivables represent receivables arising from the sale of
properties. Consideration in respect of properties is payable by the
customers in accordance with the terms of the related sale and
purchase agreements. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances, which are
reviewed regularly by management.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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22. BESEWERRR (&)
ERAEENE S REKEZIRSES T
CtEFER MTEESAZERAKRE
oo AN B M E HLE B R BE R A
BATAMERRSEMIERAER 25
FEURBE S A a8 o

RERE HRUWIRFIZ K R B sk
BEABMUYHIREBEEENRR ST
T

—FR

Within 1 year

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Since the Group's trade receivables are related to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the year,
based on the revenue recognition date or invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

2021 5
2021
ARETIT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

20,930 37,497

REREH AKEEAEENBRE
R 95 P AT AR ML T AL TR H(E
EBBRELEME - BRERBEERR
wEBHINT

At each reporting date, the Group applies the simplified approach to

provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

2022 F 2021

2022 2021

ARBTR ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REA) At the beginning of the year - -
BEE B FEE Impairment losses, net 642 =
REXR: At the end of the year 642 -

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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23. FE{TFKIE -

HinfEWrs1IERE 23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

mEE OTHER ASSETS
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEfT 3RIE Prepayments 1,668,937 3,176,374
RS KA Cost of obtaining contracts 61,676 70,064
H M EWFIERIE S Other receivables and deposits 1,090,518 504,601
2,821,131 3,751,039
BB Impairment allowance (40,713) -
2,780,418 3,751,039

FHETEREEBRRA RNEREE
RIBD BB 1REBRME 2R - EE A
MEBERT  ESERSERBERED
BEARARRBA 2R BN S BETT
BAEDHT -

Hp WA REEER  2ERR
EXRBEEZAEBRSLNEERS
ReTEAMERS HBGEYWEEAL

ERERMERERL -
BNHIE R EEFRAME B EEN

HEREZSERIOT

The financial assets included in the above balances were categorised
in stage 1 and 2 for the measurement of ECL, where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default and the timing and amounts
of future cash flows.

Other receivables mainly represent deposits with contractors which
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.
Deposit mainly represent rental deposits and has not experienced
any significant credit loss in past.

The movements in impairment allowance of prepayments, other
receivables and other assets are as follows:

2021
2021
ARBFIT
RMB'000

2022 F
2022

AR®T T
RMB’000

REA At the beginning of the year - -
BEE 8 F R Impairment losses, net 40,713 =
RER At the end of the year 40,713 =

JEFTFUIB - Hh ERGRIB R E M E E X
BHEEBEBRLBASENEE EIE
RERAEEEEREIAE EMAIER
AEEMRIE REBAREAGHERN -
HEAKBETEERAE  URBENRK
S0 35 R PR A7 AR O B9 FEDRI o B 2022 FF
12A318 1 8BXKEE144% o

ECL on the prepayments, other receivables and other assets balances
are estimated by a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group and the amount payable to the relevant
contractors for the Group's property development projects. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate as at 31

December 2022 was 1.44%.
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24. BAFEFAESZ2ERAE 24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
= PROFIT ORLOSS

2022 2021 5

2022 2021

ARBTR ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FARAKRE (RAFE) Listed equity investments, at fair value 2,515 56,251

HEMIELEMESKRE JEAFAE) Other unlisted fund investments, at fair value 96,888 176,568

99,403 232,819
PR R IE ETIRE AT DB RIR The above equity and unlisted investments were mandatorily
ATEFAEGZERMEE  RERE classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
AHRESREVIFMRZ A RFE contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and

interest.

BATEFABRZEMEEN LN TR Details of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets at fair value
ERAFFIBEHAGE M EHRERMIFT45 - through profit or loss are set out in note 45 to the consolidated

financial statements.

JESZERRABR/ARF  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



Are MR M et

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLZ 202249 12 A 31 HIEFJE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

25. BERMITLEER

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2022 F 2021 4

2022 2021

ARBTR ARETET

RMB’000 RMB'000

BekNKBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 27,269 1,484,290

IR HIR & Restricted cash 50,999 1,218,130

78,268 2,702,420

M - Notes:

(a) HR2022F 12 A31 BWIR S RIR1TEH (a) Included in the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2022 are

BIETF A R ¥ 50,994,000 7T (2021 £ :
AR M 253613,0007T) - IRIEAEEH
FHBARBRRITRENEBENE
B ZSEWBARARKEME
WIEERBETFARBERITERES %%
GHREAARINMNBRARELENY
XFABKRAREEEHEER -

(b) M202F12831BNEE RIRITES
BIEERTERARES50007T (2021 4 :
AR ®164,51700070) © IRIBEANEEH
THERRMBZEENEBERBER
#FREMBARAGMIETERITER
FEARBEASER -

© R202F12831BMBL MRITES
BREEEFRITERAREZ T (2021
& AR #800,0000007T) * EERH
EZEIBR A o

RIEHR  AEERARBHEZR
e RIBITEHRBARMT78,112,0007T
(20214 : AR#2,700,062,0007C) ° A
RETTHEMER R RER  BRIE
R B A b 9 B B B AR 19 I A B - R DE I
NEEERTE AEEEESBERE
EITINEESMBRTEARE SR AH
&

FRIFTHRSRES B HRITE R
KRACFBN S - |RITERDERER
RIF(EE BRI EE LA RT o
Re RRTTHESREERE R HERS °

deposits of RMB50,994,000 (2021: RMB253,613,000). According to
relevant loan facility agreements signed by certain subsidiaries of the
Group with the banks, these subsidiaries are required to place the pre-
sale proceeds of their properties at designated bank accounts. The
deposits can only be used for the payment of property development
costs incurred by the subsidiaries and the repayment of the relevant
loans.

(b) Included in the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2022 are
guarantee deposits of RMB5,000 (2021: RMB164,517,000). According
to relevant loan facility agreements signed by certain subsidiaries of
the Group, the subsidiaries are required to place deposits at
designated bank accounts as a guarantee.

() Included in the cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2022 is a
pledged bank deposit of RMB nil (2021: RMB800,000,000) which is
restricted as to use.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB78,112,000 (2021:
RMB2,700,062,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and bank balances approximate to their fair values.
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E 2 BARMR 26. TRADE PAYABLES
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EBRE=ZFTHNEZER Trade payables to third parties 1,292,612 1,597,579
JE A B 45 50 A2 P2 Trade payables to related companies
A A E 5 AR controlled by Mr. Lun Ruixiang 49,477 80,497
1,342,089 1,678,076
E’\iﬂifﬁgﬁgﬁﬁﬁrﬂ = HHRBREL An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year,
DT - based on the invoice date, is as follows:
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—FA Within 1 year 569,631 941,593
—EMF 1to 2 years 648,690 418462
78 38 F More than 2 years 123,768 318,021
1,342,089 1,678,076
ESRNERSEER T8 BE— The trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally
BIRBAEE TR ENERETESE - settled based on the progress of the construction of the Group's

properties under development.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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27. HtEAFIE - SiR£€ X FE 27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

sTEHA ACCRUALS
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
HiaE ARBTRE ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Hoh BT 5RIE Other payables @) 433,992 384,565
Bl E Deposits received 34,379 23,366
FEETE R Accruals 139,117 122,596
FET IR E Dividends payable 115,138 =
FEASFIE Interests payable 72,033 =
T Provision for litigation (b) 11,423 =
B EREH Financial guarantee contract (© 8,755 =
814,837 530,527

@ HMEMNKASELF TR
ER—FREE -

b) FRRBETIREANREAZERM
AR E N E A KB
REVOFASE[MTNERBEEN -

© #HZE202%12A318  KEEH®
BITRAEFFEMNIZBR A RHE
SRR 2BMEBERNER
B E B AR 956,845,000 7T (2021
F . AR¥E35887170007T) © AR
FEREHBEEHESE - ~5EH
WESERFETMAERRNE
tE BRI

BRLBIBERT  AKEX TR
HHBER AEEYBERFE
BEN RS MR 40 BT
BRROKEERSRNEREHE -

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable within one year.

The provision for litigation is determined based on the opinion
of the Group's legal adviser on range of the possible outcome
and reliable estimate of the Group's legal obligation.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided financial
guarantees to bank in respect of mortgage facilities granted to
customers. The loan facilities granted by the financial
institutions were RMB2,956,845,000 (2021: RMB3,588,717,000),
of which was fully utilised by the customers. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over the
guarantees.

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for
limited circumstances, details of the Group’s financial
guarantees are included in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. All guarantees are approved by the
directors and senior management.
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27. EWEAFIE s Siz€ X E 27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

;'I' E ::0€-)) ACCRUALS (Continued)

© (&) (@ (Continued)
HMBERENNEKBREREEES The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher
BREEVEERSENR Z5T of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less
EHRARASBE BB E the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL
E-TBHEEBERBHERM allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, which
FFREERREEN MBS E are based on the expected payments to reimburse the holders
BRIDBIEEEFE A (B mkE) (i.e., the financial institutions) for a credit loss that it incurs less
EE/{EAEENTEBS R any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
AEBEHREEBA (ER) K debtors (i.e., the customers). During the year, a ECL allowance
R EMeEmMBEER  FA - of RMB8,755,000 (2021: Nil) was provided as a result of a
HREBEPHBMRAEE  RitE deterioration of the financial position of the customers.

FHRTEHE EE B A R ¥ 8,755,000
TC(20214F : £E) o

28. aHBE 28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
AEECHAUATEHWZEANEGHNE The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract
& : liabilities:

2022 F 2021 4F

2022 2021

ARBTR AREBTE

RMB’000 RMB'000

W) 8 & TR N RUIR Receipts in advance for sale of properties 2,513,734 2,676,239
REBIRIEY S E & #) AT R WK R The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
KAEFPWEGIE - 5B EEYEH schedules as established in the property sale contracts. Payments are
EEABIT 2 ATURER o usually received in advance under the contracts which are from the

sale of properties.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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29. ;T B R 1T R H 85K 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
ERAZ 2R ERA= JHA ARETT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity RMB’000 rate Maturity RMB'000
B Current
BOER—FHEA Bank loans — secured 5.25%-13% 2023 1,339,270  151%-9% 2022 868,883
HthER—EHM Other loans — secured 9.2%-14% 2023 299,800 99%-14% 2022 583,591
1,639,070 1452479
FENH Non-current
BOER—FHEA Bank loans — secured 5.15%-7.15% 2024-2030 1,623,192  5.15%-13%  2023-2029 1,673,762
HbER—EHM Other loans — secured 12%-12.5%  2024-2030 600,000  12%-135%  2023-2029 470,000
2,223,192 2,143,762
3,862,262 3,506,241
2022 F 2021 4
2022 2021
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
DA Analysed into:
EERITER Bank loans repayable
—F R Within one year 1,339,270 868,888
FF In the second year 139,715 736,752
FZEhF(BEEERSF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 515,930 318,642
AEFLAE Beyond fifth years 967,547 618,368
2,962,462 2,542,650
ERHE A AR Other borrowings repayable
—FR Within one year 299,800 583,591
B In the second year 600,000 120,000
FE=EZLF (RIEEREMS) In the third to fifth years, inclusive - 350,000
899,800 1,053,591
3,862,262 3,596,241
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ffat -

g

REE 2 ET;RITREAMMEFIA TS
AR KAELR

() BHRALEERBEHREDE
B AR 836,492,000 7T (2021 £F
A R # 986,818,000 7T ) K £ 1F 5F
B HEBER i (FEE19)

(i) HWHAEEEEBAEARE
1,013,906,000 7T (2021 F : AR¥E
],455,)1 04,0007C) FYTE 2 % (I
7£20) ;

iy EHASBERARKREARS
214,547,000 78 (20214 : A R
850,615,0007T) M FFEH E /B2

% T E (FisE21)

vy HEAEEEEAEEAR
1,199,579,000 7T ( 2021 &F : 4&
BLEYE (H5E14)

v HEAEEEEAEAR
6,471,000 7T (2021 45 : #&) K97
lassiE &

V) RImERRBRAKERET
B /8 % ) O R ©

7K & & BR A A R %6 3,614,134,000 7T
(20214 : A R#3292,204,0007C) * A
R0 (2021 4F : 74,846,000 7T) K A
R ¥ 248,128,000 7C (2021 4F : 229,191,000
J0) WERIT R EMAE KD BIAARE
BT REITLEME ©

EFF

*

N

K>

REREBRE - R2023F11 828 -
HUEARAETHBRARREZET
BEFHEENRTEGHE(REDEER
ZEREREMPRHARER ([
B2l) - SR—REAAE (EE27])
BHEARE ARB150005 & T2 8 5
WFEF - BRARQAEREKEB A A
MELAREEREENEITERDN
2 MFBHANRE15450 B & T °
M2024F2 238 BHE KRR #OR
Wit AEEETHBE AR EEE
ERERAES RFBH AR 15450
BB °

RIREHR®% » KR2023F1288H8 -
—REEEBEANA([BEEBRAAD
RARRIHEBENE A RRZREESRK
MERERUNREHFA -EEETE
REEROBBHBRREERER
B¢ E R ER A B4 AR 39400
BEL RHEEERARHEBN
BAREGEEMERNE TEEXR
EERHERHEMBZREA =
BEZER BELSVBHRERIE
B ZREFDBFDEETE -

Notes:

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured or
guaranteed by:

(i) pledges over the Group’s land held for development for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of RMB836,492,000 (2021: RMB986,318,000) (note 19);

(if) pledges over the Group’s properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,013,906,000 (2021:
RMB1,455,104,000) (note 20);

(i) pledges over the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB214,547,000 (2021:
RMB850,615,000) (note 21);

(iv)  pledges over the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,199,579,000 (2021: Nil)
(note 14);

(v) pledges over the Group's right of rental income with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB6,471,000 (2021: Nil); and

(vi) pledges over the Group's equity interests in certain subsidiaries
as at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's bank and other borrowings with carrying amounts of
RMB3,614,134,000 (2021: RMB3,292,204,000), RMB Nil (2021:
RMB74,846,000) and RMB248,128,000 (2021: RMB229,191,000) are
denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
respectively.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 2 November 2023,
an enforcement case related to a trust loan (the “Case”) was submitted
to the Middle Civil Court of Dongguan, Guangdong (R & Rz
AR A RIEBT) (the “Court”) against certain subsidiaries of the
Company relating to a past-due pledged loan lent by a trust company
(the "Trust Company”) with a principal amount of RMB150.00 million,
requiring the relevant subsidiaries of the Company to repay the Trust
Company the outstanding principal and interests of the trust loan
amounting to approximately RMB154.50 million.

On 23 February 2024, the Case was decided and enforced by the
Court that certain subsidiaries of the Company should repay the loan
with a principal and interests of the trust loan amounting to
approximately RMB154.50 million.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 8 December 2023, a
civil legal proceeding concerning a loan dispute has been filed by an
asset management company (the “Asset Management Company”) due
to the breach of loan repayment by the relevant subsidiaries of the
Company. The Asset Management Company requested (i) the relevant
subsidiaries to repay the outstanding principal of the loan together with
accrued interests amounting to approximately RMB394.00 million; and
(i) the Asset Management Company shall have the priority in
compensation over the proceeds from the auction or sale of certain
assets or equity interests pledged by the relevant subsidiaries for the
loan. The civil legal case proceeding is still in progress as of the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements.

TESIZERRAEBRZAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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30. BRI 30. SENIOR NOTES

2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

20202 FBEER 2022 Senior Notes
ViNG Principal - 867,425
ME Interest - 48,505

2023 FEBEREE 2023 Senior Notes
PING Principal 731,729 =
ME Interest 40,944 =
772,673 915,930
2022 F 2021 4F
2022 2021
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

DA Analysed into:

—FAEREERS Principal repayable within one year 731,729 867,425
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fifet -

R2021F7A28 KRR EITAE
48 %8 /138,000,000 F 7T (K AR ¥
951,320,0007C) KIB L FI& - L F FI =
125%H & - IR 202249F7 A 21 B B &
(MonEBEERE]) -

R2022F7A218 " KRR B BEST
N4 4858 5 107,600,000 3 7T (49 A R #E
741,722,00070) ~ IBREF|FT125% 5T B &
R2023F7 A20H B HIAME KB
([203FBEEE]) TRRBEL -
AR B MR B A8 & BB 00 2022 FF 1B 5%
ZiR - ST - A% 885 138,000,000 3%
TLRI20 FESEEBW S - mH &
7K 4 %8 /5 30,400,000 3€ 7T A 2022 FE 18 %%
ZEEER20NF7RI9BFENUNRS
22,278,000k L IEEEXER - &2
Q02FNANBLEEE  ASEER
fE B8 E R U8 8,122,000 7T (9 A
R #545230007T) ©

02F12A318%  AEBEHKES
2023F 7 H20 8 B A9 2023 F B A R
BAR S KM B 5T 121,050,000 % 7T (48
B R AR #8744200007T) © & 82023
FEAZBEDBEBHORINEN I
BIRBRIEE -

HMMHRARBERBERBENETEA
FET M EE B - AREARER
FHBAEAERRBELETNED
B (AR MERNRE) NBE=ED
BHIR R RS - BE 25
HOBERRE -

REBEHELERBEAEITEE LA
EIRARRE THBRRRBEIERELR -

Notes:

On 22 July 2021, the Company issued senior notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$138,000,000 (approximately RMB951,320,000)
bearing interest at 12.5% per annum and due on 21 July 2022 (the
“2022 Senior Notes”").

On 21 July 2022, the Company completed an exchange offer by
issuing senior notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$107,600,000 (approximately RMB741,722,000) bearing interest at
12.5% per annum and due on 20 July 2023 (the “2023 Senior Notes")
to exchange the 2022 Senior Notes with same principal amount. Upon
completion, 2022 Senior Notes with principal amount of
US$138,000,000 were cancelled and the remaining 2022 Senior Notes
with principal amount of US$30,400,000 were redeemed at the
redemption price of US$22,278,000 on 19 July 2022, and the Group
recognised a gain on redemption of senior notes of US$8,122,000
(approximately RMB54,523,000) during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Group did not repay principal
and interest in total of US$121,050,000 (equivalent to RMB874,420,000)
for 2023 Senior Notes due on 20 July 2023, as a result, the 2023 Senior
Notes became default or cross default and were payable on demand.

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of the senior
notes at any time prior to the maturity date at a pre-determined
redemption price (principal amount plus applicable premium) plus
accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date, as set forth in
the written agreements between the Company and the trustees of
the senior notes.

The senior notes of the Group are denominated in United States
dollars and are secured by pledges over the equity interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

JESZERRABR/ARF  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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31.

1 B {E R B E 31. PROVISION FOR LAND APPRECIATION TAX
2022 F 2021 4
2022 2021
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A18 At 1 January 637,404 697,045
RERIBER AR (f:F10) Charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10) 50,140 234,553
FRRH Payment during the year (12,187) (294,194)
M12 8318 At 31 December 675,357 637,404

BIEMN1994F1 1B EMA P B+ i
EERGITIEMRTE RN1995F1 A 27
B A4 s AR B £ 3 A B TR ) B e
A RRBRAEEREZRA it
FHE EFhEWNBRBELENME
Ui %5 39 78 12 32 (B RE /) 30% &= 60% 2 3 T
KM T HIZER DEEBEEY
¥ WMEMEESBBAINREES 2%
20% -+ BIERIN ©

AEEERBEFEEBHBEERRER
ZHTE AR RAEH S E R A
ER L EREBEEARTREEREY
XHBIBERIRET  BEERAY
ATE T HIEERBENEERL RS -

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the sale or
transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their attached
facilities in Mainland China are subject to LAT at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with an
exemption provided for the sale of ordinary residential properties if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The Group has estimated and made a provision for LAT according to
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on
which the provision for LAT is calculated.
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32, IRIEFIE
RENEEHBEERSBEEBMT -

32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

EEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
I W
H Lt B EH Wi A Bl
AE/RE ANRE EEMN
MEmMEE mEE DR EAE
Arising from Fair value
Arising from prepayment adjustments
revaluation of of land from
investment appreciation  acquisition of
properties tax subsidiaries Total
AR®BT R AR®BT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2021F1 1R At 1 January 2021 89,952 10,767 10,437 111,156
W EE BB A Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Htat37) (note 37) - - 27,539 27,539
HEHB AR Disposal of subsidiaries - (7,586) (7,438) (15,024)
RERBHEEA Charged/(credited) to the
me/ (5t A) statement of profit or loss
(Kt 10) during the year (note 10) 52,955 (232) (8,893) 43,830
2021 F 12 A31 B X% At31 December 2021 and
2002F1 418 1 January 2022 142,907 2,949 21,645 167,501
RENEBREA Charged/(credited) to the
mer/ (Gt A) statement of profit or loss
(KizF10) during the year (note 10) (61,463) 3,046 - (58,417)
A2022F 128318 At31 December 2022 81,444 5,995 21,645 109,084

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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32, JRFEHLHE ()

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EERBEEE Deferred tax assets
AR
K 88 AR 3R
ERBRFN — ELiigE
HEEMEL BEBEMEL
Arising from
losses  Arising from
available for provision
offsetting of land
against future  appreciation
taxable profits tax Total
AR%T AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 5,536 160,266 165,802
UGB B A ) (Ffa£37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 25,971 - 25,971
REANBRZRNA Charged to the statement of
Bk (BtaE10) profit or loss during the year
(note 10) (21,896) (915) (22,811)
MR202F1H18 At 1 January 2022 9,611 159,351 168,962
RERBEREERNR (Charged)/credited to the statement
(0BR) & A of profit or loss during the year
(Btax10) (note 10) (9,611) 9,488 (123)
2022 12 A31H At 31 December 2022 - 168,839 168,839

2022512 A318

 AEEETE R

The Group had unutilised tax losses arising in Mainland China of

EEANARDATEEEBAEARK
233,379,0007C (2021 F : AR ¥
348938000 T) * E At EIEEANFE
REERT  AREEELSEAA®
RIRERBRF - WERZEHERER
BLEMBEE  ERRAERTENERA
TAAREAREE A e B AR IES
8 o

RMB233,379,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB348,938,000)
that can be carried forward for five years from the year in which the
losses arose for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets had not
been recognised in respect of these losses as it was not considered
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses could be utilised.
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32, GRIERIE (&)

RIEF B EEHE - NP B A A
MEINERE R ERINEIREEEIRK
BIER10% M RS TEIR - LR T
B2008F 1 A1 HBER  WEAR
2007 €612 31 B &R o i B N
BN B HFTE R R BRI
o BlREAREA R RN BN -
MASKEME  BARERE% - B -
AEEEETRNFTRAMKIL XS
MEBARB2008F1A1BEELENER
FIET 5 R B9 AR B ST FEFO R

MR2022F K 2021128318 $%@
I 4 B 7E AR B R b BR S RO B B A B ZE B8
H?E%D%RE@?RE&E?‘NJFM%HE’U%E%D%R
BMRIELERE - ARREERAE %25
FI B8 A RIR AT R A% 3RS K A] B8 0 K 32 55
EAH > R202% 12318 BRFAERA

B B R B A I B B R i 3 A b AR
BLEREEBENTRNEHERESENA
AR #1,744324,0007T (2021 F : AR
1,882,710,000 7T °

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately

RMB1,744,324,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB1,882,710,000).

33. g7 33. SHARE CAPITAL
B 5 Shares
2022 F 2021
2022 2021
ARETx ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JERE Authorised:
10,000,000,000 i & ix E & 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
001 BT T Mk HK$0.01 each 90,141 90,141
BEEITRER - Issued and fully paid:
5,254,000,000 I & % E (& 5,254,000,000 ordinary shares of
00182 EBR HK$0.01 each 47,972 47972

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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33. lRA () 33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
5 (&) Shares (Continued)
RARIRAEBBLAM T - A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

BEER#E EEREE

Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
ARETTT
RMB'000
JETE ¢ Authorised:
R2021F1 A1 H ~ 2021 F At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,
12A318 202F1A1B R 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022
202212 H31H 10,000,000,000 90,141
B#fT
EBRYE BERITRA RBEE st
Number of
ordinary shares Issued Share
inissue capital premium Total
ARBTT  ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R20211 418 At 1 January 2021 5,254,000,000 47972 1,062,114 1,110,086
202055 5l E 2020 final dividend - - (218,643) (218643)
R0 ERANAR At 31 December 2021 and
0241818 1 January 2022 5,254,000,000 47972 843471 891443
2001 FREMRE (BfaE11) 2021 final dividend (note 17) - - (106,351) (106351)
R202%12A318 At 31 December 2022 5,254,000,000 47972 737,120 785,092
B BR R Share options
AN T B AR AR 2 % AR 12 B IS R S 23T Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share options
W B RE T SIS S N e A B S R R B granted under the share option scheme are included in note 34 to
2¥34 0 the consolidated financial statements.
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34.

BB e fE 5T 2

R A T 20195 R ) — B IR A T )
(TBRAMEENBREE]) - UB
AEEERGR EHEBNE B
SEEREIMRED - ERARE
MBS B2 A B2 BEREAA
AEFRAEEAMES -

HRX ARSI ERER 220195 4
Be B4R - W 202091 A 16 B @i °

FABAINEZEREGEARE 1T
@: BREOERENZHITRELHHESE
10KANER - ERHERENITERH
HENE—([ERBASAREEERME
BAFEAIE - BEEXAREESHIBERE
AEIEREMNEOBREZTEERE AR
I EE (B12020F1 A16H 51.937%8
TC) B9 50% & 70% ©

8 POCHE 0 R B, T 15 A A K N MR B B 3R
REREZELRERE-

FARBEERAFEESHE—ETE
RARITEZ BEWT

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2019 (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operation. Eligible participates of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme include the Company’s directors and other employees of
the Group.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 6 April 2019
and expired on 16 January 2020.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMB1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the granted
options commences from the respective first vesting date up to the
fifth anniversary date of it. The exercise price of each option granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be 50% to 70% of the
final offer price (i.e. HK$1.93 on 16 January 2020).

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme during the year:

2022 F 2021 4
2022 2021
piik: B It 15
THEE BREZE TEE  BREHE

Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options  exercise price options
i TR BT TR
HKS ‘000 HKS ‘000
®W1A1R At 1 January 1.1092 65,500 1.1265 70,550
FREIK Forfeited during the year 1.3294 (14,100) 13510 (5,050)
W12H31H At 31 December 1.0488 51,400 1.1092 65,500

HE202FM2021F12A31BIEFE -
BRI IE T T(F o

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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34. Bz T8 () 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
REMEER - MARITEZBREZITE The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
BRITEHRET : outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BREHE TEE 1TEH
Number of share options Exercise price  Exercise period
2022 F 2021 6 BRABT
2022 2021 HKS per share
39,100,000 39,100,000 0.9650 16-01-2020 2 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
4,550,000 7,700,000 1.2545 16-01-2020 2 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
4,950,000 8,750,000 13510  16-01-2020 2 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
1,400,000 1,400,000 13510  17-07-2020 & 16-07-2025
17-07-2020 to 16-07-2025
— 1,150,000 13510  31-10-2020 Z 30-10-2025
31-10-2020 to 30-10-2025
- 1,200,000 13510 18-11-2020 & 17-11-2025
18-11-2020 to 17-11-2025
1,400,000 1,400,000 13510  04-03-2021 %2 03-03-2026
04-03-2021 to 03-03-2026
— 1,600,000 13510  04-05-2021 % 03-05-2026
04-05-2021 to 03-05-2026
- 1,600,000 13510 01-07-2021 2 30-06-2026
01-07-2021 to 30-06-2026
- 1,600,000 13510  14-08-2021 % 13-08-2026

14-08-2021 to 13-08-2026

51,400,000 65,500,000
HE202F12A31BILEEFE K& The Group recognised a share option expense of RMB7,266,000
TR BB AR A 7 S AR 7,266,000 7T (2021 (2021: RMB15,751,000) during the year ended 31 December 2022.

£ AR®15751,0007T) °
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34.

BT 8l (@)
BREBRBIAMT

Vesting date

REESERH(HEREER S E Az RN ERRBHEE
EEEFEEBERHEEBFEAZBH

At any time on or after the relevant vesting date (the “Relevant Vesting Date”) to the date
immediately before the first anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

REAEERPREEBFRE RN ENEMERE
ZREEFRBEHE _ABFHAZBH

At any time on or after the date falling on the first anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to
the date immediately before the second anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

RSB PE RS R E Bz BN ERREREZE
ERNMEERPE=(EBEF Az B H

At any time on or after the date falling on the second anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to
the date immediately before the third anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

REERE R PE=EARF A E Bz BNERRHEZE
EEEFEERHENEBSF B2 BH

At any time on or after the date falling on the third anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to
the date immediately before the fourth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

RIEMEE R PENEBF R E R BN EMKER
EEREEFRBEEHFERMABFHAZBH

At any time on or after the date falling on the fourth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to
the date immediately before the fifth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

RMERKR BREHEXHAEEAER
& KA FF A 51,400,000 19 1 R
TERERE - BRERQRBREAEEARRE
T BBAITE M ARTITE 2 B E
E£9751,400,000 [ R~ Rl BB AN B I &
BHONRA (BRBETHZAN) ARK

47,637,000 7 (A& 74 53,910,000 7T) © issue expense).

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The share option vesting method is as follows:

BRETERS
ARG 2
BSES L
Maximum
percentage of
underlying shares
in respect of

the options

may be vested

20%

20%

20%

20%

20%

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 51,400,000
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
51,400,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of RMB47,637,000 (equivalent to HK$53,910,000) (before
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RZEREVBHRRMLEBS  BiESE
/N %m%h%ﬁ% ZIN/NEIR S ST
51,400,00017 (M AR 2 BEARHE - AR
NEE BB EITRMDA0.98% °
AEBRAFERBEFENFEESRE
LENGRERREBREY -

(@) ZEEBKRHEHE
REBH B R BDE R F B ILH

MEARMAKESRMA - 54
B E AR ARTE ARG E

Bl - 15 10% &I BR B 18 40 FI B =05 5E
BHHEH EEHELEBREIH

50% sE & A o RIZIEEE P B IER
NABREM B A G A E IR 4B AP
HETRH EAEBBEETH
FAHE 8 B 18 Sl B 4 3 N AR AN (M 82
BEHBTB LR 25%FME
) o REET AT ARERTE M
SN - B TMERBRESREDIR

(b) mERE
RERERELRBEEHEEEAES -

(0 REAZRPMNMEQREEHNE
HmEAADIK
AMEARERHNESEEAD
I 8 7N 5= [ At AR 7% 55 A W B B
RA)AEREA A TRE -

d) BEXRfHEE

AR5 B Y B AN R 4R W R R IR
RmEL R IR

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,

the Company had 51,400,000 share options outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
0.98% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, each of
the relevant subsidiaries is required to appropriate 10% of its
net profits after tax, as determined under the PRC generally
accepted accounting principles, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
relevant subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be
used either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase the
share capital provided that the balance after such conversion
is not less than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve
cannot be used for purposes other than those for which it is
created and is not distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserve arising pursuant to the
reorganisation.

Distribution to the equity owners of subsidiaries
upon the reorganisation

Distribution to the equity owners of subsidiaries represents
the consideration paid by the Group to the equity owners in
respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries pursuant to the
reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The Group's capital reserve represents the gain or loss arising
from the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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36. EEEARFERESNIB 2
BEZHMEBAT

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following table lists out details of the Group’s subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (“NCI"). The summarised
financial information disclosed below is before any inter-company

TREJNAEERBEEANFERE R
(TFEZER iz ) B A RMFE - TX
BENVBEERBE R R R B I K HE

Al ° eliminations.
RRERRHAE ERER K#EE AR
Dongguan Huijing Fuyang Chengdu
East Automobile Xinggang Project Companies*
2022 2015 2022 2022 20015
2022 2021 2022 2022 2021
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRL
RMB'000 RVBOOO  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB(00O

FERERBAN NCI percentage 59.2% 59.2% 49% 49% 49% 49%
AMEFEREENER  Profit/loss) for the year

wfl/ (B8 allocated to NC| (481) (1494 (204,326) 149838 (167,581) 170491
REREBHRIFERERRN  Accumulated balances on NCI

2i# atreporting date 350,312 350,793 (5,488) 198,838 63,440 231,021
W& Revenue - = - 1568827 2,559 1531461
BEY Total expenses (815) 054)  (416,992) (1263035  (344,562) (1183519
EREH/ (BB Profit/{loss) for the year (815) 0524)  (416,992) 305792 (342,003) 347942
¥ W%WW\/ BE) Total comprehensive income/{oss)

B for the year (815) 0524)  (416,992) 305792 (342,003) 347942
MHEE Current assets 399,394 384938 380,664 674651 271,753 714495
FRBEE Non-curtent assets 1 1 180,754 163,402 17,681 2246
TBEE Current liabilities (45,475) (30204)  (482,276) (475218 (246,463) (344767)
FREEE Non-current liabilities - = (33,325) - (3,000) =
BEEH(FA)/FE Net cash flows (used in)/from

Behie e operating activities (72,121) (232122) (16,852) 6713 (43.411) 17332
REEBMAREME Net cash flows used in investing

FE activities - (182225) - (10004) - =
BEAZYMERSRE Net cash flows from financing activities

ek - 44946 - = - -
BeRREEED Net increase/(decrease) in cash

2/ (Rd) 58 and cash equivalents (72121) 10599 (16,852) (3,291) (43.411) 17332

¢ RESLERWERERARA

/% /I

SERTFREBXARA T&/%/I%I_J
FHREGBEARATSRBAIKEE

BRAE -

# Chengdu Lida Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd, Pujiang Gaoyu Xinda
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. and Pujiang Gaoyu Zhongxinhai Real Estate Co.,
Ltd were together as “Chengdu Project Companies”.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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(a)

EKent
HZE2022F 12831 BLEFE
2022 F AT EEE KUK EE -

HZE2021F12831BLEE

R2021F4H308 ' AEBEHE—F
BYE= T RBEESGEERN51%
IRFERT IR EEE W= - Bt
AEBNHEGE2FNAREH
TR W TEKE  BfF
EENAREERNIEZENBE AR
Al -BEBEETZERFEXLEY
XFABRREE WEHE %
BECEEBERIRB-BHEED
BEREARE AR 51000000
=

R2021F5 8218 » KEBEBT
F=FRWEKEIEE ARSAH
HI519% T ST E ek - UL
ANEBAIEKEIER A R M EE
EEDITAE B RE o WEE TR R -
REEE AR BAEEMNIES
BB AR - KNEIEE AREE
RABEREERERIERYE
EERS RKEEEREDE
HE - HHEBEERAAMNERER
EAIEE AR 63,0000007T °

(a)

Business Combinations
For the year ended 31 December 2022

There is no material acquisition in 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

On 30 April 2021, the Group entered into an equity interest
transfer agreement with an independent third party for the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in Fuyang Xinggang,
pursuant to which the Group can exercise control over the
relevant activities of Fuyang Xinggang. Upon the completion
of the acquisition, Fuyang Xinggang became a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Fuyang Xinggang is principally
engaged in property development and sale, property leasing,
construction design, decoration and engineering in the PRC.
The purchase consideration for Fuyang Xinggang was in the
form of cash of RMB51,000,000.

On 21 May 2021, the Group entered into capital injection
agreements with independent third parties for the
acquisitions of 51% equity interest in each of Chengdu Project
Companies, pursuant to which the Group can exercise control
over the relevant activities of the Chengdu Project Companies.
Upon the completion of the acquisitions, the Chengdu Project
Companies became non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group. The Chengdu Project Companies are principally
engaged in property development and provision of property
management services in the PRC and in total have five
property projects in Chengdu. The aggregate purchase
consideration for the Chengdu Project Companies was in the
form of cash of RMB63,000,000.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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37. WBMEB QS #) 37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) EBE/E) (a) Business Combinations (Continued)
BE2021F12A31HIEFE (42) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)
ZEEBRKERABNITZRANE The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these
ENEEHATFENT entities as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

g
BiH2% HE AR
Chengdu

Fuyang Project
Xinggang Companies

frat AR®TRT AR®TT ARETE

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 13 770 12 782
REME Investment properties 14 162,427 = 162,427
P—REEMENIRE  Investment in an associate = 5,500 5,500
RERIAEE Deferred tax assets 32 14319 11,652 25,971
ERYmE Properties under development 871,603 1,221,758 2,093,361
BIEHEMNERIYWE  Completed properties held for sale 444616 = 444,616
FERTFRIE - EA Prepayments, other receivables
HBRAEMEE and other assets 455257 865,520 1,320,777
ReRBAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20,930 32,004 520934
B 5 ENIER Trade payables (316,013) (185,627) (501,640)
HMEMRE ke Other payables, deposits and
RIEFTEH accruals (53,200) (77,496) (130,696)
EHEE Contract liabilities (1,486,390) (1,736,574) (3,222,964)
EEREE G Deferred tax liabilities 32 (14,319) (13,220) (27,539)
RATESIBRE AR Total identifiable net assets
BEFERE at fair value 100,000 123,529 223,529
IR Non-controlling interests (49,000) (60,529) (109,529)
51,000 63,000 114,000
ATFI A XA Satisfied by:
Be Cash 8,000 = 8,000
ST AEL fth JE T FRIE Y Consideration payable included in
BB other payables 43,000 63,000 106,000
51,000 63,000 114,000

ESZERAMR AT Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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37. BB AR @)
(@) EBEH/E)
BZ2021F 12831 BLEFE(8)
ERAKEZESEENRSRED

37. ACQU|S|T|ON OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) Business Combinations (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of

W these entities is as follows:
PP
BGEB HEB AA #Et
Chengdu
Fuyang Project
Xinggang Companies Total
ARETT ARETT AR%ETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ReERE Cash consideration (8,000) = (8,000)
Ut BEIR & M3R1T4588 Cash and bank balances acquired 20,930 32,004 52,934
BEEESERS Net inflow of cash and cash
MEMREEIREE  equivalentsin cash flows from
BYm AN FEE investing activities 12,930 32,004 44,934

REERE HMERRENRD
F{E A ARM13207770007C © H
HEWRENAENRESARE
1,320,777,000 JT. ©

BUEE AR REEE F2021F
2H31E¢¢F‘E’JH& s Kz ST

RAIFTERNEG BN D5 A
/\E?ﬁ%1,568,827,0007z&/\ﬁ‘5§5
431,686,000 JT °

WEAEHREBYET AFEN
AN B R A EBE A & 5 R
A A R #5309,290,000 7T & A R #E
503,318,000 7T ©

(b) WHRERBEAREBNKEA R

R2021F6 A28 H » REBEB
FEoRRI B EEGE AR
B A K % 88,000,000 7T U i F 5T
E RRAY 80% IR - BT R A
HEMERE - WEEMR 2021574
6A5ER - RUREE B B B AR =
BAERTHIRIN RIIEBILE
ETERNEREBRS - At -
RNEEBWEARY A —BEE
Uk B o

The fair values of the other receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB1,320,777,000. The gross
contractual amounts of other receivables were
RMB1,320,777,000.

Since the acquisition, the Group's revenue and consolidated
profit contributed by these subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2021 were RMB1,568,827,000 and RMB431,686,000,
respectively.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
period, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group
for the year would have been RMB5,309,290,000 and
RMB503,318,000, respectively.

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries that does not constitute
businesses

On 28 June 2021, the Group entered into share transfer
agreements with independent third parties to acquire 80%
equity interests in Dongjiang River Galleries at an aggregate
consideration of RMB88,000,000. Dongjiang River Galleries is
engaged in property development in the PRC. The acquisition
was completed on 6 July 2021. As at the date of acquisition,
Dongjiang River Galleries had not carried out any significant
business transactions except holding certain land parcels in
the PRC. Accordingly, the acquisition had been accounted for
by the Group as an acquisition of assets.

3R 2022 Annual Report
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38. HEMBE LT 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
BZE2022F12A831HLELEE For the year ended 31 December 2022
202 FWHmBEHRBAF - There is no disposal of subsidiaries in 2022.
HZE2021F12831HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2021
2021 5
2021
ARBT T
RMB'000
HENTEEMNEETE : Net assets disposed of:
W - BERZRE Property, plant and equipment 13 344
KEME Investment properties 14 71,900
FIERENERIME Completed properties held for sale 340,721
FHERBE AR EN i Land held for development for sale 19 7,125
Z 5 RN Trade receivables 2,907
TR IR - H YRR K Prepayments, other receivables and
Hi&E other assets 509,262
ReERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 51,588
2 FEMNRR Trade payables (183,504)
HitnfEI 58 - iR REFAER Other payables, deposits and accruals (183,665)
aHBaE Contract liabilities (117,437)
FTERIT REME R Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (10,098)
TSI Provision for corporate income tax (37,068)
TG ET R Provision for land appreciation tax (748)
IR A Non-controlling interests (281,253)
BERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 (15,024)
155,050
HEMB A BRI E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 82,419
ENOEERN —REELENRE Reclassification to investment in a joint venture (43,137)
194,332
ATRE) 5 AT Satisfied by:
B Cash 125,603
FTAH b FE R IB A FE IR (B Consideration receivable included in
other receivables 68,729
194,332

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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38. HEMEBLQE (&)
BERBESEBYRANFESTUOT :

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents is as

follows:

2021 4

2021

ARET T

RMB'000

RERE Cash consideration 125,603
Frt &, BECEGA ABRNES & Cash and bank balances disposed of/deconsolidated

RITAERR (51,588)

FTAREBEHMEESREMIRER  Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents included
REFEWRNFEE in cash flows from investing activities 74,015

39. IR MERMEE

(a)

FEXRERS

FRN AEEBBEBEBERDBH
HEZHNEREEENTHEESR
34,000,0007C (20214 : ) R AR
534,000,000 7T (2021 4F : #&) o

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of RMB34,000,000 (2021: Nil) and
RMB34,000,000 (2021: Nil), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for office premises.
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9. BFEBRERERM:E &) 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) RETHEENABED (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

BB
HEAE REMER
Interest-
bearing bank
Lease Senior and other
liabilities notes borrowings
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 7,297 871332 1,896,140
FIBHAZ Interest expenses 306 = =
RERSNEELENEH Changes from financing cash flows (5,748) 31,881 1,705,617
HEMB AR (B 5E38) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) = = (10,098)
RS Exchange realignment 157 12717 4582
R2021F 128318 K At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
202%1A1H 2,012 915,930 3,596,241
FERE Interest expenses 1,883 123,986 =
NE Additions 34,000 - -
FEEll € Gain on redemption = (54,523) =
RERSREEE NEE Changes from financing cash flows (7,540) (282,631) 266,021
B K Exchange realignment 2 69,911 =
R2022F12 A31H At 31 December 2022 30,377 772673 3,862,262
() HEBRSRHATE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
SFARERERCHEERS AT The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
FERCR NN cash flows is as follows:

2022 & 2021 £
2022 2021

AR®TRE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BMEEEA Within financing activities 7,540 5,748

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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40. MEER 40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

RIMEHR » AKEHEB A TBEFER -

RAREEYEZFPRED
RIBRE RRTTHER

The Group had the following financial guarantees as at the end of
the reporting period:

2022 F 2021
2022 2021
AERET T

AR®T
RMB’000 RMB'000

Guarantees given to banks in connection with
mortgage facilities provided to customers of
the Group's properties

2,956,845 3,588,717

it -

AEEBETRITAARBFEHENRT
MEEPRENZBERERTER - RIZE
REPER - WEPENNRBFA - A
AEEERBEEENTPRNRITHRER
BI/A S R AL A FILS R ER o

RIE L P HEMELRTRITESR
BERNER R BEFEFPEONRIBHN
g RITBBEBEEREERE TEBER
RPEERAERYE

AEENERBEXHERZBEREES
MESEHRECYEMERBL  BFA
REPHANBYER —EMEN -

Note:

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the customers of the Group's completed properties held for
sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default
on mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted customers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the
banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage
repayments by these customers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the start of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the customers take possession of the relevant
properties.
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41. EEKR 41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
EHERNEERITREMMERNEEERT Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group’s bank and other
2B HREREMBERERME S borrowings are included in notes 15, 19, 20, 21 and 29 to the
19220215229 ° consolidated financial statements.

42. 7B 42. COMMITMENTS
NEBRMEHARES AT EREE : The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

2022 2021 4
2022 2021
ARBTRT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRI ABRBE Contracted, but not provided for:

EEYE Properties under development 2,379,630 1,691,648
EEIREYE Investment properties under construction 313,829 168,640

FRWNBEENABGEEE LI Purchase of land through acquisition of
assets and liabilities 480,560 578,040

3,174,019 2,438,328
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43. EBt A X5 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
@ RSB mMEREMM AL (@  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the
BIRZ SN REBRAFE R consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
GHEITUATEARRS : following material transactions with related parties during the
year:
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR®TRT ARKTE
RMB’000 RMB'000
fadm i ST R AR - Companies controlled by Mr. Lun Ruixiang:
@7&&$ Construction costs 3,584 16,988
HAESHERS Office rental expenses 155 1,838
ERBERY Management fee expense 10,014 24,561
EEEBRA Management fee income 424 398
HEMRX Selling expense 2,647 34419
KR Operating expense 9,100 17,200
BEME: Joint venture:
MEHA Interest income 15,951 13,034
ZERSTBBEET EKRAWBED These transactions were carried out in accordance with terms
fERFRIR IR R AGR TR SR AR AT » and conditions in accordance with the terms mutually agreed

by both parties.

(b) XEEZTEEBEASNHE (b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group
2021 4
2021
ARBFT
RMB'000
e EREYER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 14,420 14,897
1B IEAT Discretionary bonuses 33 1,921
LA RS 1 45 & Y ﬁ% AR #E B 2 Equity-settled share option expense 3,965 7,633
RIRBEHEIHE K Pension scheme contributions 574 525
TRHTEEEBEAEN Total compensation paid to
EEEECE key management personnel 18,992 24976
REZFHHOE —TFBEIR Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8

?‘?{:\ B FE SRR I 5ES o to the consolidated financial statements.

44. IZERESHNLM I A 44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
R2022F 202112831 H ' B A As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other than the financial assets at
TFEAFAERZEREERATEFE fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair value, all
I REBRMESRIEERBENLR financial assets and liabilities of the Group were financial assets and
REERATRNeREEREMBE - financial liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.
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MN2022F K2021 5128318 AEHE
TR TAEMKREE KRIZAFET AR
HZERMEERBLEERIN BEQF
BEAEMRE -

BEEMNE  ERNKE —RAELEW
FEU IR - B 5 AR - 5T AR R
A HERRERE M EENSRE
E BReMRTESR BEHREER
FRARMENRIENSRAE BUWIZ
T REFER S ERTREMERKE
Mo MBIMBMRENE - ZFTANA
FEEHER@ERS -

AEEEBMT AR FEFERRERF
Y BEEGTENRAMEHATE
EeRAMBHERAERENBEEE
H-NEREBH ARMBHESH
TAMEBEEZS;ETHNT  WREMRE
RANIEZHARE - HELRAEE
M E B

MAEBREGETBERRARAWLIEUAR
TEAENEENEBE FERITEHE
o e FIERN B E p M BR A E M E A F(E
HME TEBFAFEIF ELEEEAQ
EEAEARET782671,0007T (2021 F A
R#916,886,0007T) * WEBTFEAF 14 -

TREENABENATERBERR S
ZBHERR S CRATBRHERIN)
PRI TANESBEAR-

NENTER BRI RAIEMLE A FE -

FTEBITREMERZIEAEBIE LA
FEEFEB/ERLUER - EERR XF
HEIHREFAE AT A 5t T AR 2 BEIR
REBIBEARRIB S REFTHE - 2022
FR2021F 128318 - AEBBA S A
Bst BIRTT R E M5 R 2 K B4 AR 1
AEBTEKXN Bt BRITREMMER
HISERBE D 2 AP EEEFEEEMRS °

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial instruments, other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and senior notes, reasonably approximate to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of receivable from a
joint venture, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash and bank
balances, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, deposits received and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

For the Group's assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position, the carrying amounts of
the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximated to their fair values and were determined
as Level 3, and the fair values of the senior notes were
RMB782,671,000 (2021: RMB916,886,000) and were determined as
Level 1.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group'’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was assessed to
be insignificant and the fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts.
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45. M TENAFER L2 FE 45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

}ﬁ :%& (#) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
LETRARE 2 A FEERTISZRE The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on their
EE -FLMESKECZAFEER quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted fund investments
BEIRERNRICEERBEREERE are based on adjusted net assets approach by adjusting the book
HERATHE RELABRFEELE value of assets and liabilities of the investees to their fair value. The
EoARRNRAIEZESRA  BEERMFE directors of the Company believe that the estimated fair values
b2 EmE A TFE (GrASRE B BARRER) resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
RATFEEBAZE Gt AER) BEIE - consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
BAMERARZEE2IGE - changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are

reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

LTRIFLMESHREMBEBHERTH Set out below is a summary of the significant unobservable inputs to
BR \HEHE the valuation of unlisted fund investments:

BB i EATIBRRAME

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs

FLEMESKRE RKREBIFEEX WRERAZEERARED
EHEAREEQTE

(AR T) 96,888 176,568
Unlisted fund Adjusted net asset Book value of assets and liabilities of
investments approach the investees adjusted to their fair

value (RMB'000)

WIHERAWMEERBEZ AT EE A 1% increase/decrease in the fair values of assets and liabilities of
i mA1% BEBEEEHESIREN the investees would result in an increase/a decrease in the fair value
ANFEEI, B A REE 969,000 7T (2021 of the unlisted fund investments of RMB969,000 (2021:
F: AR 1,7660007T) ° RMB1,766,000).
RERN A TFEFEEE=ANEEHN The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during
T @ the year are as follows:
2022 F 2021 &
2022 2021
AR¥ TR ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
W1 A1TE At 1 January 176,568 405,514
u% & Disposal (19,423) (148,077)
RIBZERNATELE Change in fair value recognised in the
profit or loss (72,395) (54,871)
& i B Exchange realignment 12,138 (25,998)
®12A31H At 31 December 96,888 176,568
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45, QEEIEE'\J'D\SF{E&'&SF{E 45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

B4R &) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

REEER Fair value hierarchy

TERERAEESRIAC AT EFE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
B4R - of the Group's financial instruments:

BAFEFTENEE :
72022 12H31H

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2022

ERATHERZAPERE

Fair value measurement using

WERME EBEATEHERE EAFTHE
ZRE BAHE A
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR¥ETR (F—%) (B=#%) (E=#4)
RMB’000 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RATERAEDE Financial assets at fair value
TEBMBE through profit or loss
— FTRAREE - — Listed equity investments,
BATE at fair value 2,515 - - 2,515
—HMIELETES — Other unlisted fund
®E - RwATE investments, at fair value - - 96,888 96,888
2,515 - 96,888 99,403

7202112831 H As at 31 December 2021

ERTIREZ R VEFE

Fair value measurement using

RiERH S
2B
Quoted prices
in active
markets
(B—#R)
(Level 1)

AREFT
RMB'000

BERAHE EATAHR
B ABUR W A\ BUR
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable

inputs
(E=H&)
(XY= W)

inputs
(B=#)
(Level 3)

BAFEGABRZ Financial assets at fair value
CREE through profit or loss
— FTRARE — Listed equity investments,
BRTE at fair value 56,251 = = 56,251
—HitFLEmES — Other unlisted fund
G- /N | investments, at fair value = = 176,568 176,568
56,251 - 176,568 232,819

@)
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NEEEHR (&)
HE202FKR2021F12A3BILEFE
CREERCRAEBEHERE —RRSE
HRZEEBETIMAATEE  NEE
ASEBHE=R -

AEENTIECHITABRFEARRITR
HEFTARRE RRITER - %ZFE
BTANEIEENREAAEENEE X
HKEKES AKEEZREMESRE
ENBE NESRKERRE S EN
R DERELXBRERD -

AEEEHMTEMEENTIRERER
MEERE FERREREDESER -
EEmaYRESABRERNEER
R ABMEHN T

A = = b
REBRAZOTSMNEEB AR - =
2 MR AP IE MR M T 20 B AN B
BT BIRTT R E M A K o AN B I EAE
RiTESmMT AR MEER - AEE
RAFBRITER R A ERE R AR
B o

R2022F 128318 MERIT R EAM
f& 3R FI R 38 hn, Rk 1% K BT A H
ERFAE  AAEERIIEN (R
BWEEACFNEFAL) BRFEMER
VR E R D, N AR 16,615,000
7T (20214 + AR™10,681,0007C) °

EERRE
AEEEHERE - FHEEEREHT
ARBFERNBLENEDRRED - R

SRIAFHERENARRLRTA
0 -

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost using
variable rate bank borrowings and other borrowings.

At 31 December 2022, if the interest rate of bank and other
borrowings had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
held constant, the profit before tax of the Group (assuming no
capitalisation of interest expenses), through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB16,615,000 (2021: RMB10,681,000).

Credit risk

The Group has established a policy to perform the assessment of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
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46. TRIEIMEIREHIEZENRBE (A 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

BaRBRFEERND R Maximum exposure and year-end staging

TREHNRNZAJNBREAEEEFE The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum

BRAECHNEELEZRAEAINGES exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is

FEERR (REBEMBEABZ KA mainly based on past due information unless other information is

T/EENAIEIS I E R - BRI AB B R available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

BHERIR) - LRFERFNDR classification as at 31 December.

2N AemEENREAE- The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

R20226F12H31H As at 31 December 2022

1218 A
BHEERE 2HRHEERR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

F1ER F2ME F3MER L7 % -
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR®ETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

KE—FKABLEHR  Receivable from ajoint venture

e IR 381,664 - - - 381,664
g %BEH&ZE%A Trade receivables - - - 21,572 21,572
S AFARFIE - Eft  Financial assets included in

FEW IR R E At prepayments, other receivables

BENEHEE and other assets 1,087,980 - 2,538 - 1,090,518
Be MRTEH Cash and bank balances 78,268 - - - 78,268

1,547,912 - 2,538 21,572 1,572,022
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46. SR EMEBEEHERBEE (%) 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
BERBREERFNDRE) Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
M2021%F12A31H As at 31 December 2021

2HBEHREEER

Lifetime ECLs

F1BE& F 2R F3MBE L apz3 @t
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT ARE®TT AR%ETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

KE—FKABLEH  Receivable from ajoint venture

IR 160,256 - - - 160256
B 5 YR Trade receivables - = = 37497 37,497
ST AFERNFHIE - Efh Financial assets included in

FEMHRIE R K A prepayments, other receivables

BEENEREAE and other assets 465450 - - - 465450
Be kBT Cash and bank balances 2,702420 = = = 2,702,420

3328126 - - 37497 3,365,623

ERETHERBTEFAEMSRE K Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
MEKRRBEREMEENCREE B assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
BIE L B8 foa T SR E R ST H as well as individual assessments on the recoverability of other
) JE W5 SR T8 Y BT AR B o $§‘§T§121 receivables based on historical settlement records and past
RAEHEEBERRT ATENRIE experience. The Group recognises an allowance for financial assets
MERGFIEREMEENS /R é Eﬁé‘ included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets based
% WA R B EEIE (E) # on 12-month ECLs and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic
TTAHE - data, if any.
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46. TRIAMEBEIEBENRIE (®) 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

REBESER Liquidity risk

AEEMEZERRFEROMBBE - The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to
HERRBEEZRDESLE WK monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
VEZERIE  BMRAKEEEES contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains
ReAENERBESTE - sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

AEBESRAEE (UAEHORMRIIBER The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
EREE (BREREHNMNENZNERE the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted cash
BRBRF A ENFEMF)) RRE flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
HROBNEBEBER  ARAREBEAIFEE rates, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
EXNxFEENT : the earliest date that the Group could be required to repay, is as

follows:

2022 5
2022
—FRAR RE=ZF
BRERX REZF nF BBIF

Within one
year or on Inthe In the third Beyond
demand secondyear tofifthyear fifth years Total
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

B RS Trade payables 1,342,089 - - - 1,342,089
=t A E M FE S 3038 - Finandial liabilities included in
BUIZE REET  other payables, deposits

EARESRAR  received and accruals 675,720 - - - 675,720
HEAE Lease liabilities 5,162 5,339 12,287 7,589 30,377
PERTTREM  Interest-bearing bank and other

A borrowings 2,013,108 914,972 1,761,535 1,116,326 5,805,941
BEER Senior notes 772,673 - - - 772,673

4,808,752 920,311 1,773,822 1,123,915 8,626,800

B2 B ISHER ¢ Financial guarantees issued:
EaEReE Maximum amount guaranteed
(Htat40) (note 40) 2,956,845 - - - 2,956,845
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46. TRIAMEBEIEBENRKE (®) 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

REBEEERE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

20214
2021
—F N RE=%
BER  REZF TFE BBERF

Within one
year or on Inthe  Inthe third Beyond
demand  secondyear  to fifth year fifth years Total
ARETT AR®TRT ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

2 5 ENEER Trade payables 1,678,076 = = = 1,678,076
T AE A ERFRIE « Financial liabilities included in

BUIZE R other payables, deposits

BEARERAR  received and accruals 407,931 = = = 407,931
HERRE Lease liabilities 1,933 79 - - 2,012
STESRITREM  Interest-bearing bank and

&% other borrowings 1793827 1061371 2,347,771 - 5202969
BEERE Senior notes 982,716 - - - 982,716

4,864,483 1,061,450 2,347,771 - 8,273,704

B2 H BB HEIR ¢ Financial guarantees issued:
EaEReHE Maximum amount

(Bt5£40) guaranteed (note 40) 3,588,717 = = - 3588717

Wansr e M mAM 21 it - FEE
PREX S A BIEREGE Tk - U EASE
@E’]Hﬁﬁkﬁfﬁwulbi O 4 R AN S [
COESE

BEXER
AEEEAEENTEARR/RELE
BRELENREN RRFERENEARL
FoUXHHEEBELE REAMLRRE
B-

REEERERNER  WEBLHEBR
MEBEEELAE AEBE NS
%mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁu ) A% B AR & ok B
TR A ME RS S BB RS - AR E
H’aﬁ;’i%‘i@ﬁ%ﬁ&%@ﬂ%ﬁﬁé%ﬁ%&
2022F 2021 F 12 A3 HIEFEE YW £
R o

As explained in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have adopted or plan to adopt certain measures in order to
improve the Group's financial and cash flow positions and to
maintain the Group's as a going concern.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021.
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46. TRIEIMGEIEHERBER &)
BEXREE(£)
AEBEFERFEERBL R (IAER
MBS B AR AR EEE AR .

ERFRBEAERITREMERR B
ARBEIHEERERRENRAEEEY
UEZRHERE - REEHRENEE

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

BELERNT -

2022 F 2021

2022 2021

ARETRT ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FTERIT R E ALK Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3,862,262 3,596,241
BEERE Senior notes 772,673 915,930
HEAE Lease liabilities 30,377 2,012
o IR MIERTTAE Less: Cash and bank balances (78,268) (2,702,420)
B FE Net debt 4,587,044 1,811,763
R AR Total equity 1,318,671 4,251,375
FEEAGBLE Net gearing ratio 348% 43%

47. IEHEREE

@ F2023F 11 H29H  KARRIETL
Wi MARFEEZENE R A
HBHIERER AT EETRTER
%Wﬁﬁ%i%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ@

NAIRBRTIRE R HTKE -
HBEIERERA 7%W%$
MEZEZ2EHRNBAR - FHEHR
$@75%EMB¢1HBE&
2023F 12 B 11 BRIAE -

(o) M2023F11A23H A AAIER
EREEBEFEBRAR ([HERE])
FIUBEEEERGZ REER
MiHE AR e EBEEIE BT
AERMESENATE 2R
PR B () 3 B I8 B AR & B AR
BEE: Ri)EAQARESRH
A e AL NF RN &K
WEBAAUEE - FRBHRAA
AIHEIA2023F 12 ASHEAE ©

47. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

@  On 29 November 2023, the Company entered into an agreement
to acquire the remaining equity interest of Sincere Partner
Holdings Company Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company from Mr. Chen Jinxuan, a director and substantial
shareholder of Sincere Partner Holdings Company Limited. Upon
completion, Sincere Partner Holdings Company Limited will
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29
November 2023 and 11 December 2023.

(b)  On 23 November 2023, the Company entered into a letter of
intent of strategic cooperation with Dongguan Communications
Investment Property Co., Ltd. ("Dongguan Communications
Investment”). Pursuant to the letter of intent, the Company and
Dongguan Communications Investment will explore and study
on the feasibility of cooperation, including, but not limited to, (i)
cooperation related to equity interest and capital contribution in
relation to individual projects; and (ii) cooperation related to
equity interest of the Company, subject to the entering into of
definitive agreement(s) by the parties. Details are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 8 December 2023.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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48. AR ) I R & 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
REE R - AR A BT ER Information about the statement of financial position of the
N Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 &
2022

AR®T
RMB’000

2021 4F
2021
ARBTT
RMB'000

kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSET
R—REBRANEE Investment in a subsidiary - =
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BATEF AR EREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 84,523 132,910

TEAT IR ~ H A FEWGRIE & Prepayments, other receivables

HEmEE and other assets 5,294 14,537
W EE R RIFUIE Amounts due from group companies 1,119,397 1,368,738
fﬁfi\&fﬁu%%{g% Cash and cash equivalents 68 1,267
REBEEHAE TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,209,282 1,517,452
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hib R mIE » BliEE K& Other payables, deposits received and accruals

FEETER 140,456 2376
BREE Senior notes 772,673 915,930
sFESRIT R EMER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings - 74,846
REBAEHAE TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 913,129 993,152
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 296,153 524,300
EEHERABEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 296,153 524,300
EEFE NET ASSETS 296,153 524,300
= EQUITY
BT Issued capital 47,972 47,972
1 Reserves 248,181 476,328
A TOTAL EQUITY 296,153 524,300

fm BB B ERIE
Lun Zhao Ming Luo Chengyu
e B=E
Director Director

3R 2022 Annual Report
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48. A E) I IEARR =& (40 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Kt - Note:
REBRBEHERENT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
R4 RE BRERE E R R EE @it
Share  Share option Exchange  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ARETT AR®FTT AR®TT ARETTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
®2021F1 /18 At 1 January 2021 1,062,114 76,040 (82,363) (157,996) 897,795
FREEREZAEEBAE  Lossand total comprehensive loss for
the year - - (19,326) (199,249) (218,575)
DRELERMBIREZEE  Equity-settled share option
arrangements - 10,591 - 5,160 15751
2020 FRERE 2020 final dividend (218643) - - - (218643)
R2021612A31R At 31 December 2021 and
K202%F1 818 1 January 2022 843471 86,631 (101,689 (352,085) 476,328
FRNEBREEEEEE  Lossand total comprehensive loss for
the year - - 39,804 (164,285) (124,/481)
MRS EMERERYE  Equity-settled share option
arrangements - 7,266 - - 7,266
BIRERMKERMER  Transferring share option reserve
BRERE upon the forfeiture or expiring of
share options - (12,736) - 8,155 (4,581)
201 FRERE 2021 final dividend (106351) - - - (106351)
R202%128318 At 31 December 2022 737,120 81,161 (61,885) (508,215) 248,181
49. fbifE Bt 15 R * 49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI 2024 F 2 Ao HEE S St The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
R TE - the board of directors on 26 February 2024.

SESIERABR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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